
LINDSAY CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
City Hall, 251 E. Honolulu St., Lindsay, CA 93247 

Notice is hereby given that the Lindsay City Council will hold a Regular Meeting on September 14, 2021 
at 6:00 PM in person and via webinar. The webinar address for members of the public is 
https://zoom.us/j/99279557087. 

Persons with disabilities who may need assistance should contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to 
the meeting at (559) 562-7102 ext. 8011 or via email at lindsay.cityclerk@lindsay.ca.us.  

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE

Led by Councilmember CERROS. 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

The public is invited to comment on any subject under the jurisdiction of the Lindsay City Council. Please 
note that speakers that wish to comment on a Regular Item or Public Hearing on tonight’s agenda will have 
an opportunity to speak when public comment for that item is requested by the Mayor. Comments shall be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person, with thirty (30) minutes for the total comment period, unless 
otherwise indicated by the Mayor. The public may also choose to submit a comment before the meeting via 
email. Public comments received via email will be distributed to the Council prior to the start of the meeting 
and incorporated into the official minutes; however, they will not be read aloud. Under state law, matters 
presented under public comment cannot be acted upon by the Council at this time. 

6. COUNCIL REPORT

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT

8. PRESENTATIONS
8.1 Introduction of Lindsay High School Associated Student Body Representative Rogelio

Castillo 

Presented by Mayra Espinoza-Martinez, City Clerk & Assistant to the City Manager 

8.2 End of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget Overview and Update  

Presented by Juana Espinoza, Finance Director 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 1

https://zoom.us/j/99279557087
mailto:lindsay.cityclerk@lindsay.ca.us


2 of 3 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Routine items approved in one motion unless an item is pulled for discussion.  

9.1 Minutes from August 10, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting (pp. 4-7) 

9.2 Warrant List for July 23, 2021 through September 7, 2021(pp. 8-23) 

9.3 Treasurer’s Report for July 2021 (p. 24) 

9.4 Treasurer’s Report for August 2021 (p. 25) 

9.5 Constitution Week Proclamation (p. 26) 

9.6 Hispanic Heritage Month Proclamation (p. 27) 

9.7 Consider the Re-Appointment of Gary Meling as the City of Lindsay Representative to the 

Measure R Citizens’ Oversight Committee (pp. 28-29) 

9.8 Consider the Approval of Resolution 21-40, Authorizing Regional Early Action Planning 

(REAP) Grant Program Services Agreement with the Tulare County Association of 

Governments (TCAG) (pp. 30-110) 

10. ACTION ITEMS 
10.1 Consider Approval of Department of Parks and Recreation General Per Capita Program 

Expenditure at the Centennial Park Playground (pp. 111-115) 

Presented by Neyba Amezcua, City Services Assistant Director  

10.2 Consider Approval of City of Lindsay Grant Funding and Compliance Policy (pp. 116-131) 

Presented by Juana Espinoza, Finance Director 

11. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
11.1 First Reading of Ordinance 591, Amending Chapter 8.22.010 of Title 8 of the Lindsay 

Municipal Code, Amending Procedures and Chapter 8.22.020 of Title 8 of the Lindsay 

Municipal Code, Amending Permit Issuance (pp. 132-135) 

Presented by Edward Real, Assistant City Planner 

12. DISCUSSION ITEMS  
12.1 Review of Title 5 of the Lindsay Municipal Code as Related to Potential Mobile Vending 

Regulations 

Presented by Edward Real, Assistant City Planner 

  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 2



3 of 3 
 

13. EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
13.1 Conference with Real Property Negotiators  

Pursuant to Cal Gov. Code § 54956.8 

Property: 284 E. Hermosa St, Lindsay, CA 93247 APN 205-261-014 

Agency Negotiator: Joseph M. Tanner, City of Lindsay 

Negotiating Parties: Bank of Sierra 

Under Negotiation: Terms and Conditions of Potential Sale 

13.2 Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation  

Pursuant to Cal Gov. Code § 54956(d)(2) 

Significant exposure to litigation re: California State Auditor Report 2020-804  

13.3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation  

Pursuant to Cal Gov. Code § 54957(b)(1) 

Title: City Attorney  

14. REQUEST FOR FUTURE ITEMS 

15. ADJOURNMENT 

Lindsay City Council meetings are held in the City Council Chambers at 251 E. Honolulu Street in Lindsay, 
California beginning at 6:00 P.M. on the second and fourth Tuesday of every month unless otherwise 
noticed. Materials related to an Agenda item submitted to the legislative body after distribution of the 
Agenda Packet are available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk during normal business 
hours. Complete agenda is available at www.lindsay.ca.us. In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act & Ralph M. Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or to 
be able to access this agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact the office of the Deputy 
City Clerk at (559) 562-7102 x 8025. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting and/or provision of an alternative format of the agenda and documents 
in the agenda packet. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 3



 
LINDSAY CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MINUTES 

City Hall, 251 E. Honolulu St., Lindsay, CA 93247 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Lindsay City Council will hold a Regular Meeting on August 10, 2021 at 
6:00 PM in person and via webinar. The webinar address for members of the public is 
https://www.bigmarker.com/griswold_lasalle/August-10-2021-Lindsay-Council-Meeting. 

Persons with disabilities who may need assistance should contact the City Clerk at least 24 hours prior to 
the meeting at (559) 562-7102 ext. 8011 or via email at lindsay.cityclerk@lindsay.ca.us.  

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present 

Councilmember SERNA  
Mayor Pro Tem FLORES 

Mayor CAUDILLO* 
Councilmember CERROS 

Councilmember SANCHEZ 
Absent with Notice N/A 

Absent N/A 
 

3. PLEDGE 

Led by Mayor Pro Tem FLORES. 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Agenda 

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

SANCHEZ CERROS (5-0) 
Approved 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
• None. 

 
6. COUNCIL REPORT 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 4

https://www.bigmarker.com/griswold_lasalle/August-10-2021-Lindsay-Council-Meeting
mailto:lindsay.cityclerk@lindsay.ca.us


2 of 3 
 

• Councilmember SERNA reported regarding mental health resources offered at the Wellness 
Center, as well as back-to-school giveaways that include school supplies and free haircuts. Great 
to see an outpouring of support from local businesses for Lindsay Public Safety Department. 

• Councilmember CERROS reported regarding conversations with Bank of America Regional VP; 
some concerns were raised regarding staffing issues and an overall push towards online banking; 
special thank you to CITY CLERK for some pointers and background before the call. 

• Councilmember CERROS welcome new business Chacon Tattoos near Sol Del Valle. 
• Mayor CAUDILLO reported recent workshops with City Services Department which have been 

very informative; special thank you to Director Mike Camarena. 
 

7. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
• No update. 

 
8. PRESENTATIONS 

8.1 Electriq Power Municipal-Residential Solar Program 

Presented by Mark Simmons, VP of Government Programs at Electriq Power Inc. 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Routine items approved in one motion unless an item is pulled for discussion.  

9.1 Minutes from July 27, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting (pp. 4-9) 

9.2 Consider the Approval of Resolution 21-39, Authorizing Staff to Open a Cash Investment 

Account with Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. and Establishing Authorized Personnel for Use 

(pp. 10-28) 

• Mayor Pro Tem FLORES requested further clarification for Item 9.2. City Manager provided 
background regarding the City’s existing cash investment account with a local bank; the change is 
being requested to allow for more investment strategy flexibility.  

• Councilmember CERROS asked what the Finance Director thought of the change. Finance Director 
shared she was excited about the investment opportunity and is extremely familiar with these types 
of funds given her banking background. The time span selected would be based on the City’s risk 
for appetite whether it be 1, 3, or 6-months Certificates of Deposit. 

 

9.3 Consider the Minute Order Approval of Locations for Sixteen (16) Pole-Mounted Speed 

Radar Signs (pp. 29-31) 

9.4 Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance 590, Amending Chapter 8.34 of Title 8 of the 

Lindsay Municipal Code, Amending Organic Waste Recycling and Adding Senate Bill 1381 

Requirements (pp. 32-35) 

• The public hearing was opened at 7:02 PM. 
• The public hearing was continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting on September 14, 2021. 

 

Motion to Approve Consent Calendar 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 5



3 of 3 
 

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

CERROS CAUDILLO (5-0) 
Approved 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

10. ACTION ITEMS 
10.1 Consider Minute Order Authorization for the City Manager to Enter Into an Agreement with 

Utility Cost Management LLC (UCM) for Utility Bill Auditing Services and Execute 

Documents Thereto (pp. 36-39) 

Presented by Juana Espinoza, Director of Finance 

Motion to Grant Item 10.1 Minute Order Authorization 

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

CERROS FLORES 
(5-0) 

Approved 
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

10.2 Consider Minute Order Authorization to Award Contract to Telstar Instruments for RFP No. 

CS 22-12 Wastewater Influent and Effluent Flow Control & Monitoring Project (pp. 40-43) 

Presented by Neyba Amezcua, Assistant Director of City Services  

Motion to Grant Item 10.2 Minute Order Authorization 

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

CAUDILLO CERROS 
(5-0) 

Approved Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

10.3 Consider Minute Order Authorization to Implement Phase 4 of the City of Lindsay Water 

Conservation Plan (pp. 44-60) 

Presented by Michael Camarena, Director of City Services 

Motion to Grant Item 10.3 Minute Order Authorization  

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

CERROS FLORES 
(5-0) 

Approved Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

11. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
11.1 Consider Minute Order Authorization to Transition to Zoom Video Conferencing for Virtual 

Meeting Access (p. 61) 

Presented by Lt. Heinks, Public Safety 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 6



4 of 3 
 

Motion to Grant Item 11.1 Minute Order Authorization 

1st 2nd Result SERNA FLORES CAUDILLO CERROS SANCHEZ 

SERNA CERROS (5-0) 
Approved 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 

 

12. EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
12.1 Government Code § 54956.75: Audit by California State Auditor’s Office 

13. REQUEST FOR FUTURE ITEMS 
• Council requested staff revisit and consider re-publication of emergency numbers in the event of 

water leaks within the City.  
14. ADJOURNMENT 

Lindsay City Council meetings are held in the City Council Chambers at 251 E. Honolulu Street in Lindsay, 
California beginning at 6:00 P.M. on the second and fourth Tuesday of every month unless otherwise 
noticed. Materials related to an Agenda item submitted to the legislative body after distribution of the 
Agenda Packet are available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk during normal business 
hours. Complete agenda is available at www.lindsay.ca.us. In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act & Ralph M. Brown Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or to 
be able to access this agenda and documents in the agenda packet, please contact the office of the Deputy 
City Clerk at (559) 562-7102 x 8025. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting and/or provision of an alternative format of the agenda and documents 
in the agenda packet. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 7



CITY OF LINDSAY | WARRANT LIST 8/7/2021

TRANSACTION DATES: 07/23/2021 THROUGH 08/07/2021

Check# Fund Date Vendor # Vendor Name Description Amount

TOTAL 1,281,788.42          

16876           ($72.28)

779 ‐ 00‐HOME‐0487 05/01/20 2892 MOHSIN SAID REFUND SURPLUS IMP (72.28)                      

18921           ($1,265.30)

552 ‐ WATER 06/02/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD WATER & SEWER RATES (632.65)                    

553 ‐ SEWER 06/02/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD WATER & SEWER RATES (632.65)                    

19053           ($896.43)

552 ‐ WATER 06/29/21 6649 GREG BARTLETT CONST METER DEPOSIT ‐6/5/ (896.43)                    

19086           ($896.43)

552 ‐ WATER 06/29/21 6646 VALLEY CLEANING & R METER DEPOSIT REFUN (896.43)                    

19106           $995.00

102 ‐ PUBLIC SAFETY ASSET FORT 08/03/21 6410 A WISH YOUR HEART M (NNO) EVENT 4CHARAC 995.00                     

19107           $350.00

102 ‐ PUBLIC SAFETY ASSET FORT 08/03/21 6366 DJ REY DJ NATIONAL NIGHT O 350.00                     

19108           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 6650 PAMELA DAVIS ARBOR DEPOSIT 100.00                     

19109           $15,723.75

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 6579 MV CHENG & ASSOCIAT CONSULTING‐M.DEANO 15,723.75                

19110           $15,487.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 6579 MV CHENG & ASSOCIAT CONSULTING M. DEANO 15,487.50                

19111           $5,675.04

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO& JESUS6/7‐6/ 386.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO& JESUS6/7‐6/ 386.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO& JESUS6/7‐6/ 386.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/1‐6/ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/1‐6/ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/1‐6/ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/14‐6/ 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/14‐6/ 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/14‐6/ 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/21‐6/ 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/14‐6/ 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS6/14‐6/ 537.60                     

19112           $4,132.80

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JEUSUS 7/5‐7/11/21 215.04                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JEUSUS 7/5‐7/11/21 215.04                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JEUSUS 7/5‐7/11/21 215.04                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JEUSUS 7/5‐7/11/21 268.80                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JEUSUS 7/5‐7/11/21 268.80                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING JESUS 7/12‐7/18/21 268.80                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS7/19‐ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS7/19‐ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS7/19‐ 430.08                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/28‐7 463.68                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/28‐7 463.68                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/03/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING FRANCO&JESUS 6/28‐7 463.68                     

19113           $72,732.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/05/21 6646 VALLEY CLEANING & R DEBRIS CLEAN UP‐FIR 72,732.00                

19114           $150.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6504 ADVENTIST HEALTH TO JUNE 2021 LAB FEES 150.00                     

19115           $192.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 20.15                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 28.89                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES 24 VAC SOLENOID 29.85                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 3.28                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 34.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 55.07                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES 2 1/2 REPAIR CLAMP 21.16                       

19116           $1,035.99

779 ‐ 00‐HOME‐0487 08/13/21 2397 ALLSTATE L98‐17 GUARDADO 1,035.99                  

19117           $8.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6362 AMERICAN BUSINESS M TONER 8.00                          

19118           $835.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2323 ANDERSON FAMILY BUS CAR WASHES OCT‐JUNE 835.00                     

19119           $281.68

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 3428 AT&T MOBILITY 287297286867X061020 281.68                     

19120           $347.17

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA DURALAST SPI RADIAT 148.65                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA RATCHER 33.70                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA MOTOR OIL & FILTER 39.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA ANTIFREEZE/COOLANT 54.88                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA FUNNEL 1.73                          

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA MOTOR OIL & BATTERI 68.45                       

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 8



19121           $712.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 123.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 22.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 24.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 30.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 30.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 31.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 31.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 31.00                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 85.00                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 25.00                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 25.00                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 25.00                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 30.00                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 30.00                       

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 40.00                       

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 40.00                       

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 40.00                       

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/13/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT PEST CONTROL 50.00                       

19122           $81.90

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1979 CALIFORNIA BUILDING APR‐JUNE 2021 SB147 81.90                       

19123           $1,178.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 873 CALIFORNIA RURAL WA AUG 2021‐AUG 2022 1,178.00                  

19124           $77.36

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 3056 CALIFORNIA TURF EQU 3 BLADES & 1 12 VOL 77.36                       

19125           $3,500.00

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 1702 CENTRAL VALLEY SWEE JUNE 2021 AIR SWEEP 3,500.00                  

19126           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6653 CHRISTINA WALLER ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 100.00                     

19127           $1,126.62

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.58                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.58                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPLIES 33.58                       

305 ‐ COVID‐19 EMERGENCY FUND 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION ULTRACLEAN OFFICE 891.60                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.57                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.57                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.57                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/13/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION SUPPLIES 33.57                       

19128           $644.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 279 CITY OF PORTERVILLE MAY ANIMAL 01‐00068 76.00                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 279 CITY OF PORTERVILLE MAY 2021 LAB SERVIC 568.00                     

19129           $4,839.08

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE JUNE MONTHLY LANDSC 860.00                     

883 ‐ SIERRA VIEW ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SIERRA VIEW ESTATES 1,129.00                  

884 ‐ HERITAGE ASSESSMENT DIST 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE LABOR DISTRICT C 220.00                     

884 ‐ HERITAGE ASSESSMENT DIST 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE HERITAGE PARK MAY 274.00                     

884 ‐ HERITAGE ASSESSMENT DIST 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PARTS DISTRICT C 39.25                       

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SAMOA TOWN HOMES MA 133.00                     

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE HERMOSA TOWN HOMES 475.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PARTS 126.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PARKSIDE ESTATES MA 197.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE EXTRA IRRIGATION WO 240.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE LABOR BROKEN MAIN L 460.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PARTS DISTRICT B 48.50                       

889 ‐ SIERRA VISTA ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SIERRA VISTA ESTATE 83.33                       

890 ‐ MAPLE VALLEY ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE MAPLE VALLEY MAY 45.00                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/13/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PELOUS RANCH MAY 20 509.00                     

19130           $63.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2319 COMPUTER SYSTEMS PL MANAGED ANTIVIRUS 63.00                       

19131           $216.32

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 4567 COUNTY OF TULARE IT JUNE RADIO COMMUNIC 216.32                     

19132           $591.63

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 185 N GALE HILL 32.50                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 18899 AVE 240 116.25                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 18869 AVE 240 162.75                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 23965 RD 188 23.25                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 860 N SEQUOIA 65.13                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 18829 AVE 240 85.25                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN 251 E HONOLULU 98.50                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 102 CULLIGAN WASTE WATER PLANT 8.00                          

19133           $70.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6647 DEICY RANGEL ARBOR RENTAL REFUND 70.00                       

19134           $4,528.85

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 388 DENNIS KELLER/JAMES DBP,CCR,TOC,TESTING 1,493.45                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 388 DENNIS KELLER/JAMES WELL NO 14 42.00                       

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 388 DENNIS KELLER/JAMES FRIANT CANAL TESTIN 2,993.40                  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 9



19135           $158.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 111 DEPT OF CONSERVATIO RESIDENTIAL APR‐JUN 73.02                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 111 DEPT OF CONSERVATIO COMMERCIAL APR‐JUNE 85.48                       

19136           $262.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 316 DEPT OF JUSTICE LIVE SCAN JUNE 2021 32.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 316 DEPT OF JUSTICE LIVE SCAN JUNE 2021 64.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 316 DEPT OF JUSTICE LAB FEES‐JUNE 2021 70.00                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 316 DEPT OF JUSTICE LIVE SCAN JUNE 2021 96.00                       

19137           $1,483.11

700 ‐ CDBG REVOLVING LN FUND 08/13/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C CDBG AMOUNT TO HCD 1,483.11                  

19138           $6,850.33

720 ‐ HOME REVOLVING LN FUND 08/13/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C HOME AMOUNT TO HCD 6,850.33                  

19139           $9,803.42

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5978 DOMINO SOLAR LTD JUNE JB‐9325693‐00 4,389.65                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 5978 DOMINO SOLAR LTD MAY JB‐9325693‐00 5,413.77                  

19140           $387.80

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING REPAIRED 2 PARK BBQ 172.67                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING REPAIR 1 PARK BBQ 90.86                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING COUPLER & PIPE REPA 120.81                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING 3/4"X1/2" SS BUSHIN 3.46                          

19141           $498.89

779 ‐ 00‐HOME‐0487 08/13/21 5284 FARMERS L97‐22 JOSE HERNAND 498.89                     

19142           $203.72

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 3461 FERGUSON ENTERPRISE 200 PSI SIDR 7 NSF 148.26                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 3461 FERGUSON ENTERPRISE RIGID COUP W/E‐GKT 55.46                       

19143           $15,851.33

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR MONTHLY TPP,DMC,SLD 10,144.18                

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR MONTHLY DMC & SLDMW 2,135.56                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR 2ND JPP JULY 2021 3,571.59                  

19144           $1,312.64

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐042‐9309 1.99                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐2512 144.53                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2656 46.24                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2652 46.25                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT LATE FEE 5.72                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2662 61.16                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐1552 102.64                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐7131 140.50                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐150‐2936 84.17                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐150‐3621 120.44                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐7132 280.95                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2654 46.25                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2655 46.25                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐6317 93.03                       

19145           $695.13

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC1056323 RADIATOR 107.00                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG 2000 AIR COMPRESSOR 226.13                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG WIRE & BLEED PUMP 362.00                     

19146           $87.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 151 GRAINGER INC PARK RESTROOMS 87.50                       

19147           $9,888.33

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: CITY COUNCI 1,347.30                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: CITY MANAGE 1,671.66                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: CITY CLERK 2,362.49                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: CITY SERVIC 3,556.23                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: POLICE DEPA 58.33                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: USBR LAWSUI 793.32                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5647 GRISWOLD,LASSALLE,C MATTER: FINANCE 99.00                       

19148           $376.59

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1391 HOME DEPOT DRYWALL & HAMMER‐EN 25.35                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1391 HOME DEPOT LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES 259.13                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1391 HOME DEPOT DRYWALL 92.11                       

19149           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6654 JAIME CENTENO ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 100.00                     

19150           $300.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6346 JEFF PFEIFFER SQUIRREL TREATMENT 300.00                     

19151           $916.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 4076 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHI MATTER:LI012‐00001 916.00                     

19152           $2,170.52

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS DEPOSIT REFUND (312.75)                    

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS POOL CHEMICALS 516.94                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS POOL CHEMICALS 567.13                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS POOL CHEMICALS 567.13                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS POOL CHEMICALS 832.07                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 10



19153           $1,788.06

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 136.53                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 152.76                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 192.47                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 243.12                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE P.S. 5/31/21 25.57                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 37.47                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 521.06                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE WELLNESS 5/31/21 5.18                          

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 181.74                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 5/31/21 292.16                     

19154           $190.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5424 LINDSAY VETERINARY ANIMAL CONTROL 190.00                     

19155           $2,240.50

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 2548 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CO 4‐428 HERMOSA PLAN 249.00                     

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 2548 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CO 4‐428 HERMOSA PLAN 373.50                     

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 2548 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CO 4‐428 HERMOSA PLAN 788.50                     

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 2548 LOCAL GOVERNMENT CO PROJ‐4‐428 HERM PLA 829.50                     

19156           $22,801.80

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 6639 MOORE IACOFANO GOLT KAKU‐RENOVATION JUN 13,075.55                

600 ‐ CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 08/13/21 6639 MOORE IACOFANO GOLT KAKU RENOVATION MAY 9,726.25                  

19157           $160.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6437 MORINDA MEDICAL GRO JUNE 2021 CLAIMS 160.00                     

19158           $10.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 4323 OASIS LATE FEE 10.00                       

19159           $3,816.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT WORKSHOP LETTERS 6/ 635.27                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT LEVY & COLLECT NOTI 636.73                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT WORKSHOP LETTERS 6/ 635.27                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT LEVY & COLLECT NOTI 636.73                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT WORKSHOP LETTERS 6/ 635.27                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/13/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT LEVY & COLLECT NOTI 636.73                     

19160           $4,419.98

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD ANALYSIS JUNE SEWER 77.00                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD POND MONITORING JUN 1,207.90                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD MAY‐POND MONITORING 2,772.08                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD MAY‐ANALYSIS RATES 286.00                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 4618 PROVOST & PRITCHARD ANALYSIS JUNE WATER 77.00                       

19161           $2,343.60

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. CONTRACT PLANNING 136.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. CONTRACT PLANNING 199.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 2021 GENERAL ENGINE 220.50                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 2021 GENERAL ENGINE 221.80                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 2019 GENERAL ENGINE 763.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 2019 GENERAL ENGINE 802.30                     

19162           $2,472.25

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 106.55                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION STAPLER 113.09                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 114.63                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 129.86                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 131.83                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 15.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 211.51                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 25.55                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION TONER 30.78                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 46.75                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 46.75                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION LASER REMOTE 47.84                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION LOGITECH WIRELESS 48.93                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION CLEANING SUPPLIES 6.50                          

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION LANYARDS WRISTBANDS 149.91                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 217.98                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION RETURNED WALL CLOCK (32.61)                      

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 430.54                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 540.62                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 89.48                       

19163           $2,500.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2168 SELF‐HELP ENTERPRIS 2021 CDBG PREPARATI 2,500.00                  

19164           $3,176.82

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 3054 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO GUARD RAC,RAC 5 TIP 1,230.10                  

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 3054 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO HL 2153 FDTP WB YL 1,556.81                  

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 3054 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO GLSBEAD IDAC110 389.91                     

19165           $3,360.81

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN CONTAINER DEPOSIT R (1,200.00)                 

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN CHLORINE 4,560.81                  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 11



19166           $364.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, EQUIPMENT RENTAL 173.88                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, EQUIPMENT RENTAL 183.88                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, FINANCE CHARGE 3.00                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, FINANCE CHARGE 4.06                          

19167           $903.46

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6632 SIMMONS TIRE SERVIC TRACTOR REPAIRS 903.46                     

19168           $40,919.78

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 1,041.43                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 1,058.41                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 1,253.85                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700424206609 15.50                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 54.85                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700271196179 16.61                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700150343172 36.62                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700506806452 39.04                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700345129983 41.34                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700482892316 51.14                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700477296224 54.92                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700477332697 68.69                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700482892316 69.90                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 7,017.14                  

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700439853113 86.23                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700470455603 6,424.81                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 20,133.36                

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700152858405 20.73                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700152858405 21.84                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700141289638 2,114.93                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 234.97                     

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 359.24                     

883 ‐ SIERRA VIEW ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 151.66                     

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 26.51                       

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 56.35                       

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 14.62                       

889 ‐ SIERRA VISTA ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 60.82                       

890 ‐ MAPLE VALLEY ASSESSMENT 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 88.32                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700150343172 14.53                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700291172119 15.50                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 233.29                     

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/13/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700424206609 42.63                       

19169           $974.78

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6655 SPRECTRUM AQUATICS REPLACE FOLD DOWNSE 974.78                     

19170           $13,105.54

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 518 TCAG MEASURE R JUNE 2021 13,105.54                

19171           $2,456.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 1921 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS SIEMENS INJECTOR 2,456.00                  

19172           $1,536.33

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 03351591205 16.73                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 1637156900 16.73                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 1637158900 16.73                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 0314159000 16.73                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 11545462225 16.73                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 0986282905 1,452.68                  

19173           $258.70

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 5792 THOMSON REUTERS ‐ W SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTI 258.70                     

19174           $76.77

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6551 TIME WARNER CABLE 106076601 JUNE 76.77                       

19175           $332.74

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 3396 TK ELEVATOR CORPORA ELEVATOR 332.74                     

19176           $55.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6413 TRANS UNION LLC BASIC SERVICE 55.00                       

19177           $60.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 3953 TREE'S SIERRA MANAG NON‐DOT PRE EMPLOYM 60.00                       

19178           $272.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 473 TU CO RESOURCE MANA 20 PUNCH PASSES 272.00                     

19179           $1,791.84

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 3814 TURNUPSEED ELECTRIC WWTP SUPPLIES 1,791.84                  

19181           $8,373.70

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LATE FEE 100.05                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S FASTRIP STORE 11.94                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ZOOM 13.50                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S CHAIRS 130.49                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 138.16                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S BEST BUY 139.97                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DOLLAR GENERAL 15.44                       

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 12



101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DMI DELL 169.51                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DANNER‐LACROSSE 174.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ALASKA AIR 196.80                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S NEOGOV 199.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DESK 2,064.07                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S KEY EVIDENCE LOCK 21.90                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LINDSAY DONUT 24.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S USPS 26.35                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 28.25                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S MCDONALD'S 29.36                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DOLLAR GENERAL 3.85                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 33.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S SUN GAZETTE 35.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S FASTRIP STORE 47.57                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 51.03                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S STARBUCKS 53.85                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 55.68                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 64.45                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S CHAIRS 652.48                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DMI DELL CORP 683.03                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 9.99                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ICMA ONLINE 960.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S TONY'S PIZZA 98.63                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S COSTCO 149.64                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S SAVE MART 18.09                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S TARGET 305.88                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 358.86                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S SAVE MART 44.40                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S COSTCO 465.69                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 60.81                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DMI DELL 296.64                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DMI DELL 296.64                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/13/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DMI DELL 84.75                       

19182           $3,580.88

660 ‐ RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT 08/13/21 2468 URBAN FUTURES INC. 2012 REFUNDING BOND 1,688.13                  

660 ‐ RDA OBLIGATION RETIREMENT 08/13/21 2468 URBAN FUTURES INC. 2015 REFUNDING BOND 1,892.75                  

19183           $1,271.44

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 356 USA BLUEBOOK OPERATIONS SUPPLIES 154.28                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 356 USA BLUEBOOK LANDSCAPE TRUCK LIG 43.05                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 356 USA BLUEBOOK LANDSCAPE TRUCK LIG 527.76                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 356 USA BLUEBOOK WWTP CHLORINE 546.35                     

19184           $1,039.32

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 47.38                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00004 JUN 579.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.76                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.76                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.75                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/13/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003‐JUN 68.75                       

19185           $2,155.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 368 VOLLMER EXCAVATION, EXCAVATE FIRE HONOL 2,155.00                  

19186           $17,180.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2790 WILLDAN INC. JUNE‐BUILDING INSPE 2,040.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2790 WILLDAN INC. MAY‐BUILDING INSPEC 2,720.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2790 WILLDAN INC. MAY‐CODE ENFORCEMEN 5,760.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 2790 WILLDAN INC. JUNE‐CODE ENFORCEME 6,660.00                  

19187           $707.81

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 2873 ADVANTAGE ANSWERING 07/01/2021‐07/31/20 707.81                     

19188           $216.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6504 ADVENTIST HEALTH TO AUG. 2021 TOXICOLOG 216.00                     

19189           $91.37

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6362 AMERICAN BUSINESS M TONER 6.14                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6362 AMERICAN BUSINESS M TONER 85.23                       

19190           $817.64

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6600 AMERICAN HERITAGE L JULY ACCIDENT PLAN 817.64                     

19191           $294.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 1986 AMERICAN WATER WORK 7001938746 MEMBERSH 294.00                     

19192           $225.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 5819 ANITA GUTIERREZ JULY ZUMBA 225.00                     

19193           $5,600.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5809 APPLICATION DATA SY ANNUAL SOFTWARE 5,600.00                  

19194           $660.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3428 AT&T MOBILITY 287297286867X071020 281.68                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3428 AT&T MOBILITY 287297286867X081020 281.68                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3428 AT&T MOBILITY 877432145X07162021 96.79                       

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 13



19195           $229.59

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA TOW PRESSURE WASHER 145.06                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA STARTING FLUID & OI 19.32                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA TRUCK #88 RAIN‐X 8.59                          

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA TRUCK #26 BATTERY 56.62                       

19196           $1,356.14

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT HR‐INSTALL NEW SWIT 139.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT GIGABIT ETHERNET 216.98                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT P.S‐INSTALL CONVERT 259.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT CITY HALL SERVER 369.86                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT CITY HALL SERVER 369.86                     

19197           $243.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT 150 N MIRAGE 123.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT 157 N MIRAGE 30.00                       

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/17/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT 165‐173 W SAMOA 40.00                       

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/17/21 5013 BUZZ KILL PEST CONT 201‐265 N SWEET BRI 50.00                       

19198           $56.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3056 CALIFORNIA TURF EQU LANDSCAPE RUBY TRAN 56.82                       

19199           $1,799.53

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER CANON  7/1/21‐7/31/ 449.86                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER CANON  7/1/21‐7/31/ 449.89                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER CANON  7/1/21‐7/31/ 449.89                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER CANON  7/1/21‐7/31/ 449.89                     

19200           $343,909.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA AUTO PHYSICAL PROGR 10,056.00                

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 1,050.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE 1,104.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA GENERAL ADMINISTRAT 1,758.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA PROPERTY PROGRAM 235,732.00             

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 4,500.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 5,356.80                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA WORKER'S COMP. 57,099.00                

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 2,155.00                  

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 6,274.55                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 6,274.55                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 6,274.55                  

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 075 CSJVRMA LIABILITY PROGRAM 6,274.55                  

19201           $325.30

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 076 CENTRAL VALLEY BUSI PUBLIC SAFETY ENVEL 99.58                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 076 CENTRAL VALLEY BUSI METER SERVICE ORDER 225.72                     

19202           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5619 CENTRO CRISTIANO LA REFUND FIREWORKS DE 100.00                     

19203           $120.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3845 CHADS AUTO GLASS SILVERADO & FORD 120.00                     

19204           $400.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5930 CHRIS ALLARD CHILD SUPPORT IWO (400.00)                    

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 5930 CHRIS ALLARD PM SERVICES 800.00                     

19205           $195.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6658 CHRIS SMITH ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 100.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6658 CHRIS SMITH PARK RENTAL REFUND 95.00                       

19208           $2,275.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.71                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.71                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.71                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.14                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.14                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.14                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.85                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.85                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.85                       

305 ‐ COVID‐19 EMERGENCY FUND 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION ULTRA CLEAN 891.60                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.71                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.14                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.86                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 14



553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.71                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.14                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.86                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.72                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.15                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.86                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 27.48                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 31.72                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.15                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 33.99                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/17/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 43.86                       

19209           $1,500.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 279 CITY OF PORTERVILLE FY20/21 FIRING RANG 1,500.00                  

19210           $1,558.02

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6506 CITY OF VISALIA FY21/22 HAZ MAT COS 1,558.02                  

19211           $1,520.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6412 CLASSIC UPHOLSTERY PLATE#1366703 UPHOL 760.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6412 CLASSIC UPHOLSTERY PLATE#1366732 UPHOL 760.00                     

19212           $2,845.33

883 ‐ SIERRA VIEW ASSESSMENT 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SIERRA VIEW ESTATES 1,129.00                  

884 ‐ HERITAGE ASSESSMENT DIST 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE HERITAGE PARK 274.00                     

886 ‐ SAMOA 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE HERMOSA TOWN HOMES 133.00                     

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SWEETBRIER TOWN HOM 475.00                     

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PARKSIDE ESTATES 197.00                     

889 ‐ SIERRA VISTA ASSESSMENT 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE SIERRA VISTA ESTATE 83.33                       

890 ‐ MAPLE VALLEY ASSESSMENT 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE MAPLE VALLEY 45.00                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/17/21 6090 CLEAN CUT LANDSCAPE PELOUS RANCH 509.00                     

19213           $63.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 2319 COMPUTER SYSTEMS PL MANAGED WORKSTATION 63.00                       

19214           $5,000.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6565 CORDICO INC. WELLNESS APP 5,000.00                  

19215           $65.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 102 CULLIGAN 185 N GALE HILL 65.50                       

19216           $2,043.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6492 DATAWORKS PLUS LLC MAINTENANCE FEE 2,043.00                  

19217           $300.00

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 4000 DEPT. OF TOXIC SUBS VQ NUMBER 202121081 300.00                     

19218           $41,464.27

781 ‐ CAL HOME RLF 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C 7/31 CALHOME TO HCD 41,464.27                

19219           $2,080.39

700 ‐ CDBG REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C CDBG TO HCD 2,080.39                  

19220           $2,493.58

700 ‐ CDBG REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C 7/31/21 CDBG TO HCD 2,493.58                  

19221           $1,609.48

700 ‐ CDBG REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C CDBG TO HCD 8/15/21 1,609.48                  

19222           $14,694.48

720 ‐ HOME REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C 7/15/21 HOME TO HCD 14,694.48                

19223           $84,477.18

720 ‐ HOME REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C 7/31/21 HOME TO HCD 84,477.18                

19224           $4,264.04

720 ‐ HOME REVOLVING LN FUND 08/17/21 2540 DEPT.OF HOUSING & C HOME TO HCD 8/15/21 4,264.04                  

19225           $1,664.78

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING WATER DEPT. GUTTER 1,664.78                  

19226           $7,928.57

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6113 EAST KAWEAH GSA FY2021 #3 GOVERNANC 7,928.57                  

19227           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6660 FERNANDA BARRIENTOS ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 100.00                     

19228           $75.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6442 FERNANDO LEMUS OROZ ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 75.00                       

19229           $23,749.72

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR 7/15/21 SLDMWA WY21 10,176.96                

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR FKC CONVEYANCE COST 5,607.00                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 137 FRIANT WATER AUTHOR AUGUST SLDMWA BILLI 7,965.76                  

19230           $92.19

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐6317 92.19                       

19231           $753.96

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 1925 FRUIT GROWERS SUPPL LANDSCAPE SUPPLIES 172.12                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 1925 FRUIT GROWERS SUPPL LANDSCAPE SAW STIHL 581.84                     

19232           $3,543.09

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1226737 SMOG 103.74                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#029950 CLEANER 266.98                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1400809 OIL CHA 27.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG HONDA PRESSURE WASH 439.06                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 15



101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1226627 SENSORS 654.19                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1389807 INTAKE 852.56                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG 2013 BACKHOE ELECTR 205.00                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1456093 OIL CHA 47.00                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG 2013 BACKHOE ELECTR 920.56                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 148 GOMEZ AUTO & SMOG LIC#1400808 OIL CHA 27.00                       

19233           $804.22

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6649 GREG BARTLETT CONST METER DEPOSIT 6/5/2 804.22                     

19234           $200.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6665 HERNANDEZ PRIVATE S 7/24/21 SECURITY 200.00                     

19235           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6604 HIPOLITO CERROS JUNE & JULY STIPEND 100.00                     

19236           $300.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6346 JEFF PFEIFFER #9 2021 300.00                     

19237           $240.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6659 JOHN HARRISON CONTR PERMIT 103121 REFUN 240.00                     

19238           $348.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6659 JOHN HARRISON CONTR PERMIT 103215 REFUN 348.00                     

19239           $50.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 2601 JOHN HIBLER WEATHER JULY WEATHER SERVIC 50.00                       

19240           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6661 JOSE GODOY ARBOR DEPOSIT REFUN 100.00                     

19241           $57,735.77

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES PPO 250 RETIREE AUG 2,587.02                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES COMPLETE CARE AUGUS 428.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES PPO 250 ACTIVE AUGU 47,514.87                

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES PPO 500 ACTIVE AUGU 7,205.88                  

19242           $55,148.75

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES RETIREE JULY 2021 2,587.02                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES COMPLETE CARE JULY 428.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES PPO 250 ACTIVE JULY 44,927.85                

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6100 KEENAN & ASSOCIATES PPO 500 ACTIVE JULY 7,205.88                  

19243           $50.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 5804 KELSIE AVINA JULY ZUMBA 50.00                       

19244           $1,143.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5542 KRC SAFETY CO., INC STREET SIGNS 1,143.82                  

19245           $4,913.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 2421 TULARE COUNTY LAFCO 21/22 LAFCO COSTS 4,913.31                  

19246           $8,070.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6225 LIFTOFF LLC YEARLY OFFICE 365 L 8,070.00                  

19247           $7,966.42

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4067 LINCOLN NAT'L INSUR AUGUST DENTAL PLAN 2,789.91                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4067 LINCOLN NAT'L INSUR JULY DENTAL PLAN 3,211.71                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4067 LINCOLN NAT'L INSUR LIFE 8/1/21‐8/31/21 982.40                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4067 LINCOLN NAT'L INSUR LIFE 7/1/21‐7/31/21 982.40                     

19248           $260.67

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6662 LINDSAY COMM CENTER CREDIT ON ACCOUNT 260.67                     

19249           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6663 LINDSAY CULTURAL AR REFUND FIREWORKS DE 100.00                     

19250           $1,800.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6260 LLEON SERVICES AUG CHEMICAL CONSUL 1,800.00                  

19251           $125.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6499 MARGARITA BENITEZ B JULY ZUMBA 125.00                     

19252           $125.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6599 MARIA EDWARDS JULY ZUMBA 125.00                     

19253           $1,127.64

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6550 MARIO SAGREDO ELECT WELL #14 LABOR 402.94                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6550 MARIO SAGREDO ELECT WELL #15 LABOR W/HE 724.70                     

19254           $585.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5911 MISSION COMMUNICATI WELL #15 S.O.#13250 585.00                     

19255           $601.47

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6162 MUNISERVICES SUTA CA 1ST QTR 202 19.33                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6162 MUNISERVICES SUTA CA 1ST QTR 202 32.55                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6162 MUNISERVICES STARS CA 1ST QTR 20 549.59                     

19256           $904.30

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5625 NGLIC‐SUPERIOR VISI JULY 2021 VISION PL 452.15                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5625 NGLIC‐SUPERIOR VISI AUGUST VISION PLAN 452.15                     

19257           $8,348.83

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 1991 NTU TECHNOLOGIES, I WTP 1000 GAL OJ0630 8,348.83                  

19258           $10.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4323 OASIS LATE CHARGE 10.00                       

19259           $6,075.59

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT CCR WATER & MIDVALL 1,035.81                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT 7/7/21 DELINQUENT U 114.13                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB DELINQUENT NOTIC 189.64                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB BILLING 551.55                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT CCR WATER & MIDVALL 1,035.80                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT 7/7/21 DELINQUENT U 114.12                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 16



553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB DELINQUENT NOTIC 189.64                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB BILLING 551.55                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT CCR WATER & MIDVALL 1,035.80                  

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT 7/7/21 DELINQUENT U 114.12                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB DELINQUENT NOTIC 189.63                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT 7/9/21 REFUSE LETTE 402.25                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6498 PACWEST DIRECT UB BILLING 551.55                     

19260           $761.18

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6652 PERFORMANCE GRADING METER DEPOSIT 6/1/2 761.18                     

19261           $2,494.80

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE SAFETY FEES 108.74                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE GANN LIMITS PUBLIC 108.74                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE CULTIVATION HEARING 122.77                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE RETAIL CANNABIS DIS 148.02                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE AMENDMENT NO 590 OR 162.05                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE NOTICE INVITING BID 523.88                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE P/N DELINQ FEES 158.50                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE P/N DELINQ FEES 158.50                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE PU NOTICE/SEWER FEE 407.90                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE P/N DELINQ FEES 158.49                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 276 PORTERVILLE RECORDE PU NOTICE/REFUSE FE 437.21                     

19262           $2,955.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 7/1‐7/10 PARK&ENGIN 1,762.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 7/1‐7/10 PLANNING 539.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 399 QUAD KNOPF,INC. 7/1‐7/10 ENGINEERIN 653.90                     

19263           $667.98

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 243.55                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION CABLE TIE 27.25                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 316.42                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OPERATING SUPPLIES 32.93                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION DAX HARDWOOD DOCUME 47.83                       

19264           $4,000.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6095 RALPH GUTIERREZ WAT WWTP JULY 2021 2,000.00                  

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6095 RALPH GUTIERREZ WAT WWTP JULY 2021 2,000.00                  

19265           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6602 RAMINO SERNA JUNE & JULY STIPEND 100.00                     

19266           $150.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6603 RAMONA CAUDILLO JUNE & JULY STIPEND 150.00                     

19267           $2,538.50

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3622 RLH FIRE PROTECTION MCDERMONT FIRE INSP 1,858.50                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3622 RLH FIRE PROTECTION LIBRARY ALARM INSPE 680.00                     

19268           $15,298.75

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5491 ROCKWELL ENGINEERIN WWTP RAS PUMP 15,298.75                

19269           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5511 ROSAENA SANCHEZ JUNE & JULY STIPEND 100.00                     

19270           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6664 ROTARY CLUB OF LIND REFUND FIREWORKS DE 100.00                     

19271           $200.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 3208 SHANNON PATTERSON JULY WATER AEROBICS 200.00                     

19272           $1,903.13

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/17/21 3054 SHERWIN‐WILLIAMS CO POWERLINE 850 7/14/ 1,903.13                  

19273           $445.69

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5314 SHRED‐IT USA LLC 6/30 7/26 SERVICE 169.81                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5314 SHRED‐IT USA LLC 6/30 7/26 SERVICE 275.88                     

19274           $189.88

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, OLIVE/HERMOSA RENTA 183.88                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5624 SIERRA SANITATION, FINANCE CHARGE 6.00                          

19275           $96.92

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6632 SIMMONS TIRE SERVIC LIC#029950 SMOG TES 96.92                       

19276           $1,248.37

102 ‐ PUBLIC SAFETY ASSET FORT 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 355.68                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL 6/30/21 102.65                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL PUBLIC POOL SNACK B 134.13                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL MOVIE SUMMER NIGHT 162.77                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL COVID CLEANING SUPP 275.88                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL PUBLIC POOL SNACK B 46.08                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL PUBLIC POOL SNACK B 82.54                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 1776 SMART & FINAL PUBLIC POOL SNACK B 88.64                       

19277           $322.68

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6500 CHARTER COMMUNICATI WELLNESS INTERNET 322.68                     

19278           $250.00

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5691 STATE WATER RESOURC TRAINING JOSE & MAR 250.00                     

19279           $735.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 4914 STEPHANIE OROSCO JULY STRENGTH & BAL 735.00                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 17



19280           $3,901.59

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6146 SUPERION, LLC 7/1/21‐7/31/21 975.39                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6146 SUPERION, LLC 7/1/21‐7/31/21 975.40                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 6146 SUPERION, LLC 7/1/21‐7/31/21 975.40                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 6146 SUPERION, LLC 7/1/21‐7/31/21 975.40                     

19281           $3,816.56

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.09                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.09                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.09                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.10                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.10                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/17/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 7/9/21‐8/8/21 636.09                     

19282           $2,190.61

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 1921 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS JOB#20‐37652 HOURS 1,342.00                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 1921 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS JOB#20‐37652 VALVE 848.61                     

19283           $388.76

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 163‐715‐8900 15.68                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 031‐415‐9000 15.68                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 163‐715‐6900 15.68                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 144 THE GAS COMPANY 098‐628‐2905 341.72                     

19284           $76.77

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6551 TIME WARNER CABLE 106076601071421 JUL 76.77                       

19285           $665.48

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 3396 TK ELEVATOR CORPORA JULY SERVICES 332.74                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 3396 TK ELEVATOR CORPORA AUGUST SERVICES 332.74                     

19286           $1,530.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6656 TOTAL COMPENSATION 1ST INSTALLMENT GAS 1,530.00                  

19287           $76.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6413 TRANS UNION LLC 12/25/20 21.31                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6413 TRANS UNION LLC 7/25/21 BASIC SRV 55.00                       

19288           $1,029.00

779 ‐ 00‐HOME‐0487 08/17/21 4922 TRAVELERS INDEMNITY S.MAGANA 6096756336 1,029.00                  

19289           $30.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 3953 TREE'S SIERRA MANAG NON‐DOT PREEMPLOYME 30.00                       

19290           $2,500.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 1627 TU CO ECONOMIC DEVE FY21/22 CONTRIBUTIO 2,500.00                  

19291           $10,397.61

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON (13.01)                      

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ZOOM 13.50                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON (14.09)                      

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ZOOM 15.89                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S BOOTBARN 180.53                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S NEOGOV 199.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 21.59                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S GRASSROOTS LAB 225.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON (23.86)                      

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S PAYPAL 236.94                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 26.39                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S DOLLAR GENERAL 3.95                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 30.42                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S WAYFAIR 307.75                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 33.99                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S OFFICE DEPOT 347.99                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON (35.31)                      

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 36.87                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 38.83                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S USPS 4.15                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S CA CITIES REGISTRAT 4,550.00                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 47.23                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S RITE AID 48.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 515.63                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S PAYPAL 600.47                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LINDSAY DONUT SHOP 72.50                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 86.75                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 9.99                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S AMAZON 97.86                       

102 ‐ PUBLIC SAFETY ASSET FORT 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S NATW.ORG 1,575.67                  

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S IDW 129.42                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S ADOBE 14.99                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S COSTCO 179.01                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S COSTCO 246.76                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 30.41                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 30.41                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 30.41                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S COSTCO 374.59                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 18



400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 38.01                       

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 6326 CORPORATE PAYMENT S LITTLE CAESARS 38.01                       

19292           $492.13

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 348 USA NORTH 811 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 246.07                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 348 USA NORTH 811 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 246.06                     

19293           $736.01

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 1513 UNITED RENTALS, INC SHOP‐OPERATING SUPP 218.50                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 1513 UNITED RENTALS, INC SHOP‐PUMP 299.00                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/17/21 1513 UNITED RENTALS, INC SHOP‐OPERATING SUPP 218.51                     

19294           $0.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING STREETS 7/11/21 215.04                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING C.S. 7/11/21 215.04                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING STREETS 7/11/21 (215.04)                    

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING C.S. 7/11/21 (215.04)                    

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING PARKS 7/11/21 (215.04)                    

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING PARKS 7/11/21 215.04                     

19295           $22,175.94

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 2960 UNITED STATES BUREA 5‐07‐20 W428L 12,602.72                

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 2960 UNITED STATES BUREA 5‐07‐20 W428L 9,573.22                  

19296           $875.72

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6646 VALLEY CLEANING & R METER DEPOSIT 6/18/ 875.72                     

19297           $597.08

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00004 JUL 597.08                     

19298           $174.79

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 612 WEISENBERGERS ACE H CANOPY 174.79                     

19299           $856.35

552 ‐ WATER 08/17/21 6644 WOOD BROS INC METER DEPOSIT 6/4/2 856.35                     

19300           $100.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/17/21 4068 YOLANDA FLORES JUNE & JULY STIPEND 100.00                     

19301           $450.00

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/17/21 5912 YVETTE DURAN JULY POUND & TRX 450.00                     

19302           $463.48

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6591 ADVANCED EQUIPMENT SERVICE AND REPAIRS 463.48                     

19303           $367.32

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES CITY PARK SPRINKLER 126.76                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES CITY PARK SPRINKLER 159.62                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES SOCCER FIELD SOLENO 19.91                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES CITY PARK SPRINKLER 26.30                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES FUSE 6.07                          

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 007 AG IRRIGATION SALES TRUCK#28 COUPLINGS 28.66                       

19304           $99.85

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 400 AGRI‐HOME OPERATING SUPPLIES 38.69                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 400 AGRI‐HOME STREETS SUPPLIES 61.16                       

19305           $146.10

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1858 ALL PRO FIRE AND SA LIBRARY DRY CHEMICA 146.10                     

19306           $817.64

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6600 AMERICAN HERITAGE L AUGUST ACCIDENT PLA 817.64                     

19307           $940.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 3898 AMERICAN INCORPORAT HVAC 801 ELMWOOD 195.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 3898 AMERICAN INCORPORAT SEMI ANNUAL HVAC 295.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 3898 AMERICAN INCORPORAT HVAC 911 PARKSIDE 450.00                     

19308           $90.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 4135 BILL WALL'S DIRECT P.S. REMOTE SETUP N 90.00                       

19309           $2,008.99

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER 8/1/21‐8/31/21 502.24                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER 8/1/21‐8/31/21 502.25                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER 8/1/21‐8/31/21 502.25                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6351 CANON FINANCIAL SER 8/1/21‐8/31/21 502.25                     

19310           $278.89

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 076 CENTRAL VALLEY BUSI UTILITY BILL CARDS 278.89                     

19311           $3,500.00

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/20/21 1702 CENTRAL VALLEY SWEE AIR SWEEPING JULY 3,500.00                  

19312           $2,128.96

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.63                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.63                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.63                       

305 ‐ COVID‐19 EMERGENCY FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION ULTRACLEAN 891.60                     

305 ‐ COVID‐19 EMERGENCY FUND 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION ULTRA CLEAN 891.60                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.63                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.64                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.64                       

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 22.76                       

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 19



556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/20/21 5832 CINTAS CORPORATION UNIFORMS 26.64                       

19313           $449.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 279 CITY OF PORTERVILLE JUNE ANIMAL 01‐0006 449.00                     

19314           $164.51

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6549 COLANTUONO, HIGHSMI UNDER COLLECTION UU 164.51                     

19315           $684.04

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 18899 AVE 240 203.17                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 18869 AVE 240 203.87                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 860 N SEQUOIA 39.90                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 23965 RD 188 54.75                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 18829 AVE 240 86.45                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 251 E HONOLULU 87.40                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 102 CULLIGAN 23611 RD 196 8.50                          

19316           $81.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 316 DEPT OF JUSTICE JUNE FINGERPRINTS 81.00                       

19317           $381.87

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/20/21 113 DEPT OF TRANSPORTAT SIGNAL LIGHTS 4/1‐6 381.87                     

19318           $6,226.63

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING MISC. SUPPLY MATERI 5,243.08                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 119 DOUG DELEO WELDING PARK SUPPLIES 983.55                     

19319           $0.00

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/20/21 5760 ED & EDNA BROWER IR VITAPAKT LEASE PMT (9,000.00)                 

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/20/21 5760 ED & EDNA BROWER IR VITAPAKT LEASE PMT 9,000.00                  

19320           $81.13

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6666 EDNA HUBBARD REIMBURSE WORK BOOT 81.13                       

19321           $730.70

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 3478 FRESNO PIPE & SUPPL MAINTENANCE SUPPLIE 730.70                     

19322           $1,225.12

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐042‐9309 1.99                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐2512 143.14                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.12                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.12                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐188‐3200 4.60                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐188‐3200 4.60                          

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2652 46.25                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2656 46.25                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2662 61.16                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐1552 101.25                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐7131 139.07                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐188‐3200 4.60                          

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐150‐2936 84.17                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐150‐3621 119.86                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2650 23.13                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 562‐7132 278.58                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐188‐3200 4.60                          

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2654 46.25                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6010 FRONTIER COMMUNICAT 209‐151‐2655 46.25                       

19323           $236.75

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6667 JOSE ANGEL FLORES PMT TO WRONG BL ACC 174.75                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6667 JOSE ANGEL FLORES PMT WRONG CASP ACCT 62.00                       

19324           $2,789.91

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 4067 LINCOLN NAT'L INSUR SEPTEMBER DENTAL PL 2,789.91                  

19325           $996.68

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 194.31                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 205.31                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 211.79                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 77.35                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 277.49                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 1422 LINDSAY TRUE VALUE C.S. 7/31/21 30.43                       

19326           $3,500.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5399 MARCOS LOYA MIRAGE & LINDMORE 3,500.00                  

19327           $2,470.34

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6550 MARIO SAGREDO ELECT CITY HALL LABOR 2,375.34                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 6550 MARIO SAGREDO ELECT SWEETBRIER PARK 7/2 95.00                       

19328           $230.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5852 MID VALLEY DISPOSAL P.S. 185 N GALE HIL 230.00                     

19329           $591.53

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 272 PITNEY BOWES INC. POSTAGE SUPPLIES 591.53                     

19330           $795.95

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 114.19                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 309.07                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 285 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 372.69                     

19331           $7,105.46

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN WTP CONTAINER REFUN (1,500.00)                 

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN WTP CONTAINER REFUN (1,500.00)                 

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN CHLORINE WTP SUPPLI 4,778.98                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN WTP CHLORINE SUPPLI 5,326.48                  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 20



19332           $673.60

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6632 SIMMONS TIRE SERVIC BACKHOE REPAIRS 203.71                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6632 SIMMONS TIRE SERVIC BACKHOE MAINTENANCE 469.89                     

19333           $39,114.20

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 1,127.79                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 1,651.66                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 2,267.32                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 48.95                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 700150343172 36.62                       

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 7,031.90                  

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 25,761.22                

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 269.17                     

556 ‐ VITA‐PAKT 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 312.25                     

883 ‐ SIERRA VIEW ASSESSMENT 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 148.72                     

887 ‐ SWEETBRIER TOWNHOUSES 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 64.89                       

888 ‐ PARKSIDE 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 13.25                       

889 ‐ SIERRA VISTA ASSESSMENT 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 60.92                       

890 ‐ MAPLE VALLEY ASSESSMENT 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 85.83                       

891 ‐ PELOUS RANCH 08/20/21 310 SOUTHERN CA. EDISON 600001505934 233.71                     

19334           $3,841.87

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.31                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.31                     

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.31                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.32                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.31                     

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/20/21 5755 TELEPACIFIC COMMUNI 8/9/21‐9/8/21 640.31                     

19335           $282.00

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 1921 TELSTAR INSTRUMENTS WELL 15 CL17 ANALYZ 282.00                     

19336           $271.75

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 6445 USA NORTH 811 118779 CA. STATE FE 135.88                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 6445 USA NORTH 811 118779 CA. STATE FE 135.87                     

19337           $1,473.57

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 1513 UNITED RENTALS, INC WATER OPERATING TOO 1,473.57                  

19338           $3,064.32

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS 7/26 483.84                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS 7/26 483.84                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS 7/26 483.84                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS8/2‐8 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS8/2‐8 537.60                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 5747 UNITED STAFFING LAWRENCE&JESUS8/2‐8 537.60                     

19339           $225.49

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.58                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.58                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.58                       

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.58                       

553 ‐ SEWER 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.58                       

554 ‐ REFUSE 08/20/21 1041 VERIZON WIRELESS 642065758‐00003JULY 37.59                       

19340           $299.01

552 ‐ WATER 08/20/21 368 VOLLMER EXCAVATION, STREETS, DG LOAD 299.01                     

19341           $370.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3977 AFLAC DED:015 AFLAC 370.40                     

19342           $401.62

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:L203 CDBG LOAN 397.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:052 WELLNESS 4.62                          

19343           $9.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 451 CITY OF LINDSAY EMP DED:0505 SEC 125 9.00                          

19344           $118.36

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3192 SEIU LOCAL 521 DED:DUES UNION DUES 118.36                     

19345           $8,062.78

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0555 DC LOANPAY 2,076.99                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:ROTH ROTH 225.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:151 DEFERCOMP 2,873.51                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0500 DEF COMP 2,887.28                  

19346           $94.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6409 BERNARD HEALTH LEGA DED:MET MET LAW 94.15                       

19347           $50.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 2325 LINDSAY PUBLIC SAFE DED:LPOA LPOA DUES 50.82                       

19348           $94.60

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6246 MCDERMONT VENTURE I DED:051 MCDERMONT 94.60                       

19349           $189.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT DED:0512 CHILD SUPT 189.23                     

19350           $391.21

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 1955 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856 DED:0508 TEAMSTERS 391.21                     

19351           $370.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3977 AFLAC DED:015 AFLAC 370.40                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 21



19352           $584.34

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:CDBG CDBG PMT 182.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:L203 CDBG LOAN 397.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:052 WELLNESS 4.62                          

19353           $9.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 451 CITY OF LINDSAY EMP DED:0505 SEC 125 9.00                          

19354           $121.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3192 SEIU LOCAL 521 DED:DUES UNION DUES 121.31                     

19355           $7,576.62

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:ROTH ROTH 100.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0555 DC LOANPAY 1,422.68                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:151 DEFERCOMP 2,938.25                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0500 DEF COMP 3,115.69                  

19356           $94.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6409 BERNARD HEALTH LEGA DED:MET MET LAW 94.15                       

19357           $50.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 2325 LINDSAY PUBLIC SAFE DED:LPOA LPOA DUES 50.82                       

19358           $117.67

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6246 MCDERMONT VENTURE I DED:051 MCDERMONT 117.67                     

19359           $189.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT DED:0512 CHILD SUPT 189.23                     

19360           $461.54

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 1955 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856 DED:0508 TEAMSTERS 461.54                     

19361           $370.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3977 AFLAC DED:015 AFLAC 370.40                     

19362           $608.96

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY A ANDRADE LATE FEE 10.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY S. PEREZ LATE FEE 10.00                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:CDBG CDBG PMT 182.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:L203 CDBG LOAN 397.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:052 WELLNESS 9.24                          

19363           $9.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 451 CITY OF LINDSAY EMP DED:0505 SEC 125 9.00                          

19364           $121.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3192 SEIU LOCAL 521 DED:DUES UNION DUES 121.31                     

19365           $7,921.95

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:ROTH ROTH 100.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0555 DC LOANPAY 1,396.68                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:151 DEFERCOMP 3,124.65                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0500 DEF COMP 3,300.62                  

19366           $94.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6409 BERNARD HEALTH LEGA DED:MET MET LAW 94.15                       

19367           $50.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 2325 LINDSAY PUBLIC SAFE DED:LPOA LPOA DUES 50.82                       

19368           $117.67

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6246 MCDERMONT VENTURE I DED:051 MCDERMONT 117.67                     

19369           $189.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT DED:0512 CHILD SUPT 189.23                     

19370           $461.54

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 1955 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856 DED:0508 TEAMSTERS 461.54                     

19371           $370.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3977 AFLAC DED:015 AFLAC 370.40                     

19372           $588.96

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:CDBG CDBG PMT 182.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:L203 CDBG LOAN 397.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:052 WELLNESS 9.24                          

19373           $9.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 451 CITY OF LINDSAY EMP DED:0505 SEC 125 9.00                          

19374           $121.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3192 SEIU LOCAL 521 DED:DUES UNION DUES 121.31                     

19375           $7,667.96

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:ROTH ROTH 100.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0555 DC LOANPAY 1,142.68                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:151 DEFERCOMP 3,124.66                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0500 DEF COMP 3,300.62                  

19376           $94.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6409 BERNARD HEALTH LEGA DED:MET MET LAW 94.15                       

19377           $50.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 2325 LINDSAY PUBLIC SAFE DED:LPOA LPOA DUES 50.82                       

19378           $117.67

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 6246 MCDERMONT VENTURE I DED:051 MCDERMONT 117.67                     

19379           $189.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT DED:0512 CHILD SUPT 189.23                     

19380           $461.54

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/24/21 1955 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856 DED:0508 TEAMSTERS 461.54                     

19381           $370.40

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 3977 AFLAC DED:015 AFLAC 370.40                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 22



19382           $593.58

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:052 WELLNESS 13.86                       

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:CDBG CDBG PMT 182.72                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 4660 CITY OF LINDSAY DED:L203 CDBG LOAN 397.00                     

19383           $9.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 451 CITY OF LINDSAY EMP DED:0505 SEC 125 9.00                          

19384           $121.31

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 3192 SEIU LOCAL 521 DED:DUES UNION DUES 121.31                     

19385           $7,858.41

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:ROTH ROTH 100.00                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0555 DC LOANPAY 1,333.13                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:151 DEFERCOMP 3,124.66                  

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6452 GREAT‐WEST TRUST DED:0500 DEF COMP 3,300.62                  

19386           $94.15

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6409 BERNARD HEALTH LEGA DED:MET MET LAW 94.15                       

19387           $50.82

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 2325 LINDSAY PUBLIC SAFE DED:LPOA LPOA DUES 50.82                       

19388           $117.67

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 6246 MCDERMONT VENTURE I DED:051 MCDERMONT 117.67                     

19389           $189.23

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT DED:0512 CHILD SUPT 189.23                     

19390           $461.54

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/30/21 1955 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 856 DED:0508 TEAMSTERS 461.54                     

19396           ($18.00)

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 09/08/21 5457 AUTO ZONE COMMERCIA DURALAST BATTERY (18.00)                      

19400           ($282.26)

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 09/08/21 4661 BURTON'S FIRE, INC. E87 CREDIT ON ACCOU (282.26)                    

19431           ($326.00)

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 09/08/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS CHEMICAL BOTTLE DEP (119.00)                    

400 ‐ WELLNESS CENTER 09/08/21 5788 LINCOLN AQUATICS CHEMICAL BOTTLE DEP (207.00)                    

19452           ($3,150.00)

552 ‐ WATER 09/08/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN WTP CONTAINER DEPOS (1,500.00)                 

552 ‐ WATER 09/08/21 4555 THATCHER COMPANY IN WTP CONTAINER DEPOS (1,650.00)                 

CHEV86           $8,322.14

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 519.49                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 519.49                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 519.49                     

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK P.S FUEL AUG 2021 5,205.83                  

261 ‐ GAS TAX FUND 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 518.86                     

552 ‐ WATER 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 519.49                     

553 ‐ SEWER 08/06/21 6408 WEX BANK C.S FUEL AUG 2021 519.49                     

IRS823           $437.03

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/23/21 2011 INTERNAL REVENUE SE PENALTY ‐2% PMT6/9/ 437.03                     

IWO716           $400.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/13/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT ALLARD‐WD 7/16/21 400.00                     

IWO820           $400.00

101 ‐ GENERAL FUND 08/20/21 3042 STATE DISBURSEMENT ALLARD‐ WDATE 8/17/ 400.00                     

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 23



CASH RESOURCES

LOCATION GL ACCOUNT # TYPE BALANCE

Cash Register Funds (City Hall & Wellness) 100‐102 RES 800$ 

Bank of the Sierra‐ Depository Account 100‐114 GEN 7,136,435$ 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ AP/Operating 100‐100 GEN 236,964$ 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Payroll 100‐106 GEN 510,552$ 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Wellness Center 100‐500 GEN 651,412$ 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Impound Account 100‐120 RES 88,518$ 

LAIF Savings:  City & Successor Agency 100‐103 INV‐RES 4,317,864$ 

12,942,545$ 

CASH EXPENDED

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL AMOUNT DEBT SERVICE AMOUNT

Accounts Payable ‐$  2015 Bonds 678,922$ 

Payroll (July 02 Payday) 246,226$  Wellness Center 92,212$ 

Payroll (July 16 Payday) 230,685$  McDermont 26,431$ 

Payroll (July 30 Payday) 228,311$ 

TOTAL  $              705,223  TOTAL  $   797,565 

INVESTMENTS

INVESTED FUNDS $4,317,864

Respectfully submitted,

GEN: GENERAL UNRESTR

RES: RESTRICTED ACTIVIT

Director of Finance INV: INVESTMENT

City of Lindsay

ABBREVIATIONS

Juana Espinoza

Monthly Treasurer's Report

July 31, 2021

Cash Balances Classified by Depository

TOTAL

INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE

As of the end of the month, the investments were in compliance with the requirements of the City's investment policy. This 

report reflects all cash and investments of the City of Lindsay (O/S checks not reflected in End Cash Balance).

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 24



CASH RESOURCES

LOCATION GL ACCOUNT # TYPE BALANCE

Cash Register Funds (City Hall & Wellness) 100‐102 RES 800$ 

Bank of the Sierra‐ Depository Account 100‐114 GEN 3,226,235 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ AP/Operating 100‐100 GEN 290,196 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Payroll 100‐106 GEN 514,166 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Wellness Center 100‐500 GEN 672,621 

Bank of the Sierra ‐ Impound Account 100‐120 RES 94,766 

LAIF Savings:  City & Successor Agency 100‐103 INV‐RES 5,928,864 

MBS Investments 755,972 

11,483,620$ 

CASH EXPENDED

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL AMOUNT DEBT SERVICE AMOUNT

Accounts Payable 1,050,480$  None. 

Payroll (August 13th Payday) 228,017$ 

Payroll (August 27th Payday) 239,893$ 

TOTAL  $          1,518,390  TOTAL  $                          ‐   

INVESTMENTS

INVESTED FUNDS $6,684,836

Respectfully submitted,

GEN: GENERAL UNRESTRICTED

RES: RESTRICTED ACTIVITY

Director of Finance INV: INVESTMENT

City of Lindsay

ABBREVIATIONS

Juana Espinoza

Monthly Treasurer's Report

August 31, 2021

Cash Balances Classified by Depository

TOTAL

INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE
As of the end of the month, the investments were in compliance with the requirements of the City's investment policy. This report 

reflects all cash and investments of the City of Lindsay (O/S checks not reflected in End Cash Balance).

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 25



 

 Proclamation  
  
 

WHEREAS, The Constitution of the United States of America, the guardian of our 
liberties, embodies the principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule 
by law; and 

WHEREAS, September 17, 2021, marks the two hundred and thirty-fourth anniversary 
of the framing of the Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional 
Convention; and  

WHEREAS, it is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent 
document and its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebrations which will 
commemorate it; and 

WHEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the 
President of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as 
Constitution Week. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Ramona Caudillo, Mayor of the 
City of Lindsay, along with members of the Lindsay City Council, do hereby proclaim 
September 17th through 23rd as Constitution Week in the City of Lindsay. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Lindsay to be affixed this 14th day of September 2021.  

 

       LINDSAY CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
                                   ______________________________ 
       Ramona Caudillo, Mayor 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 26



 

 Proclamation  
  
 

WHEREAS, since 1988, Hispanic Heritage Month has been celebrated across the 
United States; and 

WHEREAS, Hispanic Heritage Month is an opportunity to honor the traditions and 
countless artistic, scientific, political, and cultural contributions of people residing in 
the United States who trace their roots to Spain, Mexico, Puerto Rico, and the Spanish-
speaking nations of Central America, South America, and the Caribbean; and   

WHEREAS, as of 2020, the United States Census Bureau estimates that Hispanics 
comprise 86.5 percent of Lindsay’s population, 39.4 percent of California’s population, 
and 18.7 percent of the United States population, making up the largest minority ethnic 
group in our city, state, and country; and 

WHEREAS, this month, the City of Lindsay invites the community to reflect on the 
cultural heritage, collective resilience, and countless contributions of Hispanic 
Americans to our city, state, and country; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Ramona Caudillo, Mayor of the 
City of Lindsay, along with members of the Lindsay City Council, do hereby proclaim 
September 15th through October 15th, 2021 as Hispanic Heritage Month in the City of 
Lindsay. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereby set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of 
Lindsay to be affixed this 14th day of September 2021.  

 

       LINDSAY CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
                                   ______________________________ 
       Ramona Caudillo, Mayor 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 27



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 
 

 
TO: Lindsay City Council 
FROM: Mayra Espinoza-Martinez, City Clerk  
DEPARTMENT: City Manager  
ITEM NO.: 9.7 
MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021  
 
ACTION & RECOMMENDATION 

Consider the Re-Appointment of Gary Meling as the City of Lindsay Representative to the Measure R 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee (COC). 
 
BACKGROUND | ANALYSIS 

Gary Meling is the current representative for the City of Lindsay and is eligible to serve another 2-year term 
on the COC. Mr. Meling continues to satisfy the requirements to serve and has expressed interest in 
continuing to represent the City of Lindsay should the City Council choose to re-appoint him per staff’s 
recommendation. 

On November 7, 2006, the voters of Tulare County approved Measure R, imposing a 1/2 cent sales tax for 
transportation within the incorporated and unincorporated area of Tulare County for the next 30 years. The 
transportation measure will generate slightly more than $652 million over 30 years to Tulare County’s 
transportation needs. 

The Measure R Expenditure Plan calls for a 16-member Oversight Committee that meets on a quarterly 
basis to provide input on the implementation of the plan. The committee also advises the Authority Board 
on if and when the plan needs to be augmented, ensures the funds are being spent in accordance with the 
plan, inform the public, and ensures the Transportation Measure funding program revenues and 
expenditures are spent as promised in the Measure passed by the voters. The COC is comprised of members 
representing the following cities, agencies, and interests: 

City of Dinuba 
City of Exeter 
City of Farmersville 
City of Lindsay 
City of Porterville 
City of Tulare 
City of Visalia 
City of Woodlake 
County of Tulare 
Tulare County Economic Development Corporation 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 28



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 2 
 

Tulare County Farm Bureau 
Tulare County Home Builders Association 
Tulare Kings Hispanic Chamber of Commerce 
Audit/Finance/Budgeting 
Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit 
Environment 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 29



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 
 

 
TO: Lindsay City Council 
FROM: Michael Camarena, Director of City Services and Planning 
DEPARTMENT: City Services and Planning 
ITEM NO.: 9.8 
MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
ACTION & RECOMMENDATION 

Consider the Approval of Resolution 21-40, Authorizing Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) Grant 
Program Services Agreement with the Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG). 
 
BACKGROUND | ANALYSIS 

The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program was established for the purpose of providing 
regions and jurisdictions with one-time funding, including grants for planning activities to enable 
jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the regional housing needs assessment. Approximately one hundred 
twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) is available to councils of governments and other regional 
entities. The Department of Housing and Community Development (Department or HCD) is administering 
the Program (referred to herein as the Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program, or “REAP”). 
 
On behalf of the eight regional planning agencies within the San Joaquin Valley Council of Governments 
(COG’s), the Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) received a local government planning support grant 
and executed an agreement with the State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development in the amount of $10.2M to provide local jurisdictions with grant funding for technical 
assistance, preparation and adoption of planning documents and process improvements to accelerate 
housing production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth cycle of the Reginal Housing Needs 
Assessment (RHNA). 
 
The COG’s entered a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) November 19, 2020, and amended the MOU 
effective July 1, 2021, whereby FCOG was named the fiscal agent for the grant on behalf of the COG’s and 
in turn agreed to distribute grant funds to each of the COG’s in proportion to each COG’s relative population 
as of January 2020.  
 
TCAG expects to receive approximately $1,613,803 of such grant funds under the REAP MOU and will 
use $225,000 of such funds to prepare the RHNA Plan and provide technical assistance and regional 
planning coordination for the provision of housing, and has agreed to suballocate the balance of said grant 
funds to the County of Tulare and to each of the Cities within Tulare County (the “member agencies”) to 
carry out the purposes of the grant, with each member agency to receive a base amount of $100,000 and 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 30



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 2 
 

the remaining suballocated funds to be distributed based on each member agency’s percentage of population 
within Tulare County. The total allocation identified for Lindsay is $113,396. 
 
Funds can used for technical assistance, establishing housing trust funds, RHNA/Housing Element 
planning, infrastructure planning, feasibility studies, staffing and consulting needs, and other uses. REAP 
funds cannot be used for housing construction activities. Recommendations at this time for a portion of 
these funds are to provide gap funding to complete the Housing and Circulation Element of the General 
Plan. This project is expected to be completed in 2024.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no net City cost to the General Fund; a budget amendment will be necessary to include these 
potential planning grant funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Resolution 21-40, Authorizing Regional Early Action Planning (REAP) Grant Program Services 
Agreement with the Tulare County Association of Governments (TCAG). 

• TCAG Services Agreement for Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 31



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY 

 
 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-40 
Page 1 of 2 

NUMBER 21-40 

TITLE 
 
 
 
 
MEETING 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY 
AUTHORIZING REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING (REAP) 
GRANT PROGRAM SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE TULARE 
COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS (TCAG)  
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting of the City of Lindsay City Council held on 
September 14, 2021, at 6:00 PM at 251 E. Honolulu Street, Lindsay, CA 
93247 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Government Planning Support Grants Program was established for the 
purpose of providing regions and jurisdictions with one-time funding, including grants for planning 
activities to enable jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the regional housing needs assessment; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, approximately one hundred twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) is available to 
councils of governments and other regional entities. The Department of Housing and Community 
Development (Department or HCD) is administering the Program (referred to herein as the Regional 
Early Action Planning Grant Program, or “REAP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, TCAG expects to receive approximately $1,613,803 of such grant funds under the 
REAP MOU and will use $225,000 of such funds to prepare the Regional Housing Need Assessment 
Plan and provide technical assistance and regional planning coordination for the provision of 
housing, and has agreed to suballocate the balance of said grant funds to the County of Tulare and to 
each of the Cities within Tulare County (the “member agencies”) to carry out the purposes of the 
grant, with each member agency to receive a base amount of $100,000 and the remaining 
suballocated funds to be distributed based on each member agency’s percentage of population within 
Tulare County; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. That the City Council of the City of Lindsay hereby authorizes the center to 
enter into a Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program Services 
Agreement with the Tulare County Association of Governments 
 

SECTION 2. Delegates the authority to the City Manager, or designee to sign and submit all 
documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 32



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY 

 
 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-40 
Page 2 of 2 

amendments, and payment requests, which may be necessary for the 
completion of the grant scope(s); and 

 
SECTION 3. 

 
This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its approval and 
adoption.  The Mayor, or presiding officer, is hereby authorized to affix her/his 
signature to the Resolution signifying its adoption by the City Council of the 
City of Lindsay, and the City Clerk, or the duly appointed deputy, is directed 
to attest thereto 
 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lindsay as follows: 

 

MEETING DATE September 14, 2021 

MOTION  

SECOND MOTION  

AYES  

ABSENT  

ABSTAIN  

NAYS  

 

 

CERTIFICATION OF THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION AS FULL, TRUE, PASSED AND 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY AS DETAILED. 

   

MAYRA ESPINOZA-MARTINEZ             RAMONA CAUDILLO 
CITY CLERK                MAYOR 
 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 33



TCAG SERVICES AGREEMENT FORM 
REVISION APPROVED 05/10/2018 

TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program 

Page 1 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into effective as of July 1, 2021, between the TULARE COUNTY 
ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS, a joint powers authority established under the laws of the State of 
California (“TCAG”), and the CITY OF _________________, a California Municipal Corporation] (“CON-
TRACTOR”). TCAG and CONTRACTOR is each a “Party” and together are the “Parties” to this Agreement, 
which is made with reference to the following: 

A. WHEREAS, the Fresno Council of Governments (“FCOG”) received a local government planning 
support grant and executed an Agreement with the State of California’s Department of Housing and Com-
munity Development in the amount of $10,218,830.75 on August 20, 2020 (the “REAP Grant 
Agreement”, which is attached as Attachment A) on behalf of the eight regional planning agencies 
within the San Joaquin Valley (the “COGs”) to provide local jurisdictions with grant funding for technical 
assistance, preparation and adoption of planning documents, and process improvements to accelerate 
housing production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth cycle of the Regional Housing Need 
Assessment; and 
B. WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the grant, the COGs entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding as of November 19, 2020 and amended that Memorandum of Understanding effective 
as of July 1, 2021 (together, the “REAP MOU”, which is attached as Attachment B) whereby FCOG was 
named as the fiscal agent for the grant on behalf of the COGs, and in turn agreed to distribute grant 
funds to each of the COGs in proportion to each COG’s relative population as of January 2020; and 

C. WHEREAS, TCAG expects to receive approximately $1,613,803 of such grant funds under the REAP 
MOU, will use $225,000 of such funds to prepare the Regional Housing Need Assessment Plan and provide 
technical assistance and regional planning coordination for the provision of housing, and has agreed to 
suballocate the balance of said grant funds to the County of Tulare and to each of the Cities within Tulare 
County (the “member agencies”) to carry out the purposes of the grant, with each member agency to 
receive a base amount of $100,000 and the remaining suballocated funds to be distributed based on each 
member agency’s percentage of population within Tulare County; and  

D. WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is willing and able to utilize its share of such funds, the amount and 
distribution of which TCAG will confirm in writing, for the permitted purposes, and TCAG is willing to make 
such funds available to CONTRACTOR under the terms of this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. TERM: This Agreement becomes effective as of July 1, 2021, and expires at 11:59 PM on December
31, 2024, unless its term is extended by written amendment or it is earlier terminated as provided below. 

2. SERVICES: CONTRACTOR shall provide the services shown in the attached Attachment C.

3. REAP Grant Agreement and REAP MOU: The terms and conditions of the REAP Grant Agreement and
of the REAP MOU are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement and CONTRACTOR shall 
abide by said terms and conditions in its performance under this Agreement. 

4. INSURANCE: Before approval of this Agreement by TCAG, CONTRACTOR must file with the Clerk of the 
Board of Governors of TCAG evidence of the required insurance as set forth in the attached Attachment D. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 34



TCAG SERVICES AGREEMENT FORM 
REVISED 05/10/2018 

TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program 

Page 2 

5. GENERAL AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS: TCAG’S “General Agreement Terms and Condi-
tions” are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth 
herein. TCAG’S “General Agreement Terms and Conditions” are included in the attached Attachment E. 

6. NOTICES: (a) Except as may be otherwise required by law, any no�ce to be given must be writen and
must be either personally delivered, sent by facsimile transmission, or sent by first class mail, postage 
prepaid and addressed as follows:  

TCAG:   
Atn: Ted Smalley 
210 N. Church Street, Suite B 
Visalia, CA 93291  
Phone No.: (559) 623-0450 
Fax No.: (559) 733-6720 

CONTRACTOR: 
Atn: ____________________________ 
________________________________ 
________________________________ 
________________________________ 
________________________________ 

 (b)  No�ce personally delivered is effec�ve when delivered. No�ce sent by facsimile transmission is 
deemed to be received upon successful transmission. No�ce sent by first class mail will be deemed re-
ceived on the fi�h calendar day a�er the date of mailing. Either Party may change the above address by 
giving writen no�ce under this sec�on. 

7. SUBCONTRACTING: If this box is checked , CONTRACTOR has indicated it will utilize subcontractors
to provide certain services related to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR has selected the following subcon-
tractors (“Subcontractors”) to provide the goods or services related to this Agreement: N/A. CONTRACTOR 
will supervise all Subcontractors and ensure that Subcontractors comply with all applicable laws and reg-
ulations. CONTRACTOR will include all applicable provisions of this Agreement in its contracts with Sub-
contractors and ensure compliance with those provisions. No other subcontractors shall be utilized with-
out prior written approval from the Executive Director of TCAG. 

8. AUTHORITY: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants to TCAG that the individual(s) signing this Agree-
ment on its behalf are duly authorized and have legal capacity to sign this Agreement and bind CONTRAC-
TOR to its terms. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that TCAG has relied upon this representation and 
warranty in entering into this Agreement.  

9. COUNTERPARTS: The Parties may sign this Agreement in counterparts, each of which is an original
and all of which taken together form one single document. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 35



TCAG SERVICES AGREEMENT FORM 
REVISED 05/10/2018 

TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program 

Page 3 

THE PARTIES, having read and considered the above provisions, indicate their agreement by their au-
thorized signatures below. 

CITY OF _________________________________ 

Date: 
By 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 

By 

TULARE COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

Date: By 

Ted Smalley 
Executive Director 

ATTEST: Leslie Davis, Finance Director 

By  

Approved as to Form: 
County Counsel 

By 
Deputy 

Matter # 2021557 

Attachments 
A = REAP Grant Agreement; 
B = REAP MOU and Amendment No. 1; 
C = Scope of Services; 
D = Insurance Provisions; 
E = TCAG’S General Agreement Terms and Conditions. 

Title:

Title:

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 36



ATTACHMENT A 

REAP GRANT AGREEMENT (ATTACHED)

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 37



Exhibit A 

Grant funding agreement number 19-REAP-14029 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 38



9/3/2020

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 39



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

AUTHORITY, PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF WORK 

1. Authority

The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program is established for the 
purpose of providing regions and jurisdictions with one-time funding, including 
grants for planning activities to enable jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the 
regional housing needs assessment. Up to two hundred fifty million dollars 
($250,000,000) shall be distributed under the program in accordance with 
Health and Safety Code sections 50515.02 and 50515.03. Of this amount, 
approximately one hundred twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) is 
available to councils of governments and other regional entities. The 
Department of Housing and Community Development (Department or HCD) 
shall administer the Program (referred to herein as the Regional Early Action 
Planning Grant Program, or “REAP”) to councils of governments and other 
regional entities in accordance with the Notice of Funding Availability (“NOFA”) 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (f).  

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515.02, subdivision (d)(3), a 
council of governments or a fiscal agent of a multiagency working group, as 
defined in section 50515.02, may request up to 25 percent of its available 
funding in advance. This Standard Agreement authorizes the encumbrance of 
full funds available to the applicant pursuant to the NOFA, subject to all statutory 
requirements and all applicable provisions including the NOFA, initial application 
and award for advance payment, subsequent advance payment application and 
award, application and award for the full remaining fund amount and 
amendment to this agreement.   

The Grantee shall consult with the Department on any amendment or other 
provision related to the implementation of the Program.  The Department 
decisions related to the administration of the Program shall be final pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (g). 

2. Purpose

In accordance with the authority cited above, the Grantee has been awarded 
financial assistance in the form of a grant from the Program. The Department has 
agreed to make the grant for planning activities pursuant to the NOFA and this 
Agreement. By entering into this Agreement and thereby accepting the award of 
the Program funds, the Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 40



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

of the NOFA, this Agreement, subsequent amendments to this Agreement, the 
representations contained in the initial advance payment and subsequent full 
application(s), and the requirements of the authority cited above. Based on all 
representations made by the Grantee, the Department shall encumber the full 
amount pursuant the NOFA and provide advance payment and subsequent 
payments in accordance with Exhibit B. All terms, conditions and other relevant 
provisions will be subject to amendments as a result of subsequent applications 
and awards for remaining funds after the initial application up to 25 percent of the 
full amount described in Exhibit B.   

3. Definitions

Terms herein shall have the same meaning as defined by the NOFA.

4. Scope of Work

Grantee shall use the awarded funds in accordance with the approved Scope of
Work as contained in the timeline and budget and related information outlined in
the application for 25 percent advance payment and any subsequent applications
for partial or full funding.  The Scope of Work may be amended in compliance
with statutory requirements subject to approval by the Department.

5. Monitoring

A. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, documents, and other 
evidence that demonstrates the funding was used for the appropriate 
purposes, as described in the Scope of Work, approved application, 
subsequent approved applications and all other pertinent documents. 
These books, records, documents and other evidence shall be made 
available for audit and inspection by the Department at any point during 
the term of the agreement and subject to any amendments to this 
agreement. 

B. The Department may request additional information, as needed, to meet 
the statutory requirements of the Program and facilitate amendments to 
this agreement, including but not limited to reporting or audit requirements, 
progress in implementing advance payment(s), or award of the full amount 
available to the Grantee.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 41



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

C. The Department may monitor expenditures and activities of an applicant, 
as the Department deems necessary, to ensure compliance with statutory 
or Department requirements.  

D. The Department may, as it deems appropriate or necessary, request the 
repayment of funds from an applicant, or pursue any other remedies 
available to it by law for failure to comply with statutory or Department 
requirements.  

E. The Department’s decision to approve or deny an application or request 
for funding pursuant to the Program, and its determination of the amount 
of funding to be provided, shall be final. 

F. Monitoring provisions may be amended and are subject to additional 
provisions in accordance with this agreement or subsequent amendments.  

6. Department Contract Coordinator

The Contract Coordinator of this Agreement for the Department is the Housing
Policy Development Manager, or the Manager’s designee. Unless otherwise
informed, any notice, report, or other communication required by this Agreement
shall be mailed by first class mail to the Department Contract Coordinator at the
following address:

Department of Housing and Community Development 
Housing Policy Development Division 

Land Use Planning Unit 
Attention:  REAP Program Manager 

2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 500  
Sacramento, CA 95833 

P. O. Box 952050 
Sacramento, CA  94252-2050 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 42



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. Application for Funds

A. The Department is entering into this Agreement on the basis of, and in 
reliance on facts, information, assertions and representations contained in 
any application and award and any subsequent modifications or additions 
thereto approved by the Department. All awarded applications for funding 
and any approved modifications and additions thereto are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 

B. The Grantee warrants that all information, facts, assertions and 
representations contained in any approved application and approved 
modifications and additions thereto are true, correct, and complete to the 
best of the Grantee’s knowledge. In the event that any part of an 
application and any approved modification and addition thereto is untrue, 
incorrect, incomplete, or misleading in such a manner that would 
substantially affect the Department's approval, disbursement, or 
monitoring of the funding and the grant or activities governed by this 
Agreement, the Department may declare a breach hereof and take such 
action or pursue such remedies as are provided for breach hereof. 

2. Grant and Reimbursement Limit

A. The maximum total amount encumbered to the Grantee pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not exceed $10,218,830.75. 

B. This Agreement authorizes an initial advance payment(s) for eligible 
activities as described in the application.  

C. This Agreement authorizes subsequent award amounts or advance 
payment up to the total award amount as described in Section 2A, of this 
Exhibit, and subject to Department approval.  

D. The Grantee shall submit and follow a schedule for the expenditure of the 
advance payment, any subsequent payment and the total amount prior to 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 43



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

disbursement of funds. The schedule is subject to Department approval 
and may be revised as the Department deems necessary.   

3. Grant Timelines

A. This Agreement is effective upon approval by the Department 
representative’s signature on page one of the fully executed Standard 
Agreement, STD 213, (the “Effective Date”).  

B. All Grant funds must be expended by December 31, 2023 pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code section 50515.04(c )(1).  

C. The Grantee shall deliver to the Department all final invoices for 
reimbursement on or before November 1, 2023, to ensure the Department 
meets the December 31, 2023 expenditure deadline. Under special 
circumstances, approved by the Department, the Department may modify 
the November 1, 2023 deadline and may provide exception, including, but 
not limited to, advance payment to carry out the terms of this agreement.  

D. It is the responsibility of the Grantee to monitor the project and timeliness 
of draws within the specified dates. 

4. Allowable Uses of Grant Funds

A. The Department shall not award or disburse funds unless it determines 
that the grant funds shall be expended in compliance with the terms and 
provisions of the NOFA which includes associated forms and guidelines 
and this Agreement.  

B. Grant funds shall only be used by the Grantee for project activities 
approved by the State that involve planning activities in accordance with 
the NOFA. 

C. Grant funds may not be used for administrative costs of persons employed 
by the Grantee for activities not directly related to eligible activities. 

D. The Grantee shall use no more than 5 percent of the total grant amount 
for costs related to administration of the project. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 44



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

E. A Grantee that receives funds under this Program may use a 
subcontractor and Grantee shall be accountable to the Department to 
ensure subcontractor’s performance. The subcontract shall provide for 
compliance with all the requirements of the Program. The subcontract 
shall not relieve the Grantee of its responsibilities under the Program. 

F. After the contract has been executed by the Department and all parties, 
approved and eligible costs for eligible activities may be reimbursed for 
the project(s) upon completion of deliverables or paid in advance in 
accordance with the scope of work and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

G. Only approved and eligible costs incurred for work after October 1, 2019, 
continued past the date of execution and acceptance of the Standard 
Agreement and completed during the grant term will be reimbursable. 

5. Performance

The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of future 
applications and awards. 

6. Fiscal Administration

A. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards, in consultation with the Grantee. 

B. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any 
subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate 
sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall immediately 
terminate and be of no further force and effect. In this event, the State and 
Contractor shall be relieved of any and all obligations under this Grant 
Agreement.  

C. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for 
purposes of this program, the State shall have the sole discretion to 
cancel this Agreement without cause, no liability occurring to the State, or 
amend the current Grant Agreement and amount allocated to Contractor. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 45



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

REAP TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Reporting

A. During the term of the Standard Agreement the Grantee shall submit, upon 
request of the Department, a performance report that demonstrates satisfaction 
of all requirements identified in this Standard Agreement. 

B. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

2. Accounting Records

A. The Grantee, its staff, contractors and subcontractors shall establish and 
maintain an accounting system and reports that properly accumulate incurred 
project costs by line. The accounting system shall conform to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), enable the determination of incurred costs at 
interim points of completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment 
vouchers or invoices.  

B. The Grantee shall establish a separate ledger account for receipts and 
expenditures of grant funds and maintain expenditure details in accordance with 
the scope of work, project timeline and budget. Separate bank accounts are not 
required.  

C. The Grantee shall maintain documentation of its normal procurement policy and 
competitive bid process (including the use of sole source purchasing), and 
financial records of expenditures incurred during the course of the project in 
accordance with GAAP.  

D. The Grantee agrees that the State or designated representative shall have the 
right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining 
to the performance of the Standard Agreement.  

E. Subcontractors employed by the Grantee and paid with moneys under the terms 
of this Standard Agreement shall be responsible for maintaining accounting 
records as specified above.    

3. Audits

A. At any time during the term of the Standard Agreement, the Department may 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 46



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

perform or cause to be performed a financial audit of any and all phases of the 
award. At the Department’s request, the Grantee shall provide, at its own 
expense, a financial audit prepared by a certified public accountant. The State of 
California has the right to review project documents and conduct audits during 
and over the project life.   

1) The Grantee agrees that the Department or the Department’s designee
shall have the right to review, obtain, and copy all records and supporting
documentation pertaining to performance of this Agreement.

2) The Grantee agrees to provide the Department or the Department’s
designee, with any relevant information requested.

3) The Grantee agrees to permit the Department or the Department’s
designee access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal
business hours for the purpose of interviewing employees who might
reasonably have information related to such records and inspecting and
copying such books, records, accounts, and other material that may be
relevant to a matter under investigation for the purpose of determining
compliance with statutes, Program guidelines, and this Agreement.

B. If a financial audit is required by the Department, the audit shall be performed by 
an independent certified public accountant. Selection of an independent audit 
firm shall be consistent with procurement standards contained in Exhibit D, 
Section 8 subsection A. of this Standard Agreement. 

1) The Grantee shall notify the Department of the auditor's name and
address immediately after the selection has been made. The contract for
the audit shall allow access by the Department to the independent
auditor's working papers.

2) The Grantee is responsible for the completion of audits and all costs of
preparing audits.

3) If there are audit findings, the Grantee shall submit a detailed response
acceptable to the Department for each audit finding within 90 days from
the date of the audit finding report.

C. The Grantee agrees to maintain such records for possible audit after final 
payment pursuant to Exhibit D, Section 3, subsection E. below, unless a longer 
period of records retention is stipulated.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 47



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

1) If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, monitoring, inspection or other
action has been started before the expiration of the required record
retention period, all records must be retained by the Grantee, contractors
and sub-contractors until completion of the action and resolution of all
issues which arise from it. The Grantee shall include in any contract that it
enters into in an amount exceeding $10,000.00, the Department’s right to
audit the contractor’s records and interview their employees.

2) The Grantee shall comply with the caveats and be aware of the penalties
for violation of fraud and for obstruction of investigation as set forth in
California Public Contracts Code section 10115.10.

D. The determination by the Department of the eligibility of any expenditure shall be 
final. 

E. The Grantee shall retain all books and records relevant to this Agreement for a 
minimum of (3) three years after the end of the term of this Agreement. Records 
relating to any and all audits or litigation relevant to this Agreement shall be 
retained for five years after the conclusion or resolution of the matter. 

4. Remedies of Non-performance

A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Standard Agreement 
that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the Department’s 
Housing Policy Development Manager, or the Manager’s designee, who may 
consider any written or verbal evidence submitted by the Grantee. The decision 
of the Department’s Housing Policy Development Manager or Designee shall be 
the Department’s final decision regarding the dispute, not subject to appeal. 

B. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the Department will 
excuse the Grantee from full and timely performance in accordance with the 
terms of this Standard Agreement. 

C. In the event that it is determined, at the sole discretion of the Department, that 
the Grantee is not meeting the terms and conditions of the Standard Agreement, 
immediately upon receiving a written notice from the Department to stop work, 
the Grantee shall cease all work under the Standard Agreement. The 
Department has the sole discretion to determine that the Grantee meets the 
terms and conditions after a stop work order, and to deliver a written notice to the 
grantee to resume work under the Standard Agreement.   

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 48



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 4 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

D. Both the Grantee and the Department have the right to terminate the Standard 
Agreement at any time upon 30 days written notice. The notice shall specify the 
reason for early termination and may permit the Grantee or the Department to 
rectify any deficiency(ies) prior to the early termination date. The Grantee shall 
submit any requested documents to the Department within 30 days of the early 
termination notice.  

E. A strong implementation component for the funded activity through this Program 
is required, including, where appropriate, agreement by Grantee and its 
subcontractors to formally adopt or complete a planning or other activity 
consistent with the NOFA. The Grantee must carry out provisions to ensure the 
adoption or completion of activities in accordance with the NOFA, including 
activities subcontracted to localities. Grantee may be subject to repayment of the 
grant should the Grantee or any of its subcontractors under this agreement fail to 
adopt or complete activities set forth in its application, this Agreement or any 
amendments to this Agreement.  

F. The following shall each constitute a breach of this Agreement: 

1) Grantee’s failure to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

2) Use of, or permitting the use of, grant funds provided under this Agreement
for any ineligible costs or for any activity not specified and approved under
this Agreement.

3) Any failure to comply with the deadlines set forth in this Agreement unless
approved by the Program Manager in writing.

G. In addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Department in law 
or equity for breach of this Agreement, the Department may at its discretion, 
exercise a variety of remedies, including but not limited to:  

1) Revoke existing REAP award(s) to the Grantee;

2) Require the return of unexpended REAP funds disbursed under this
Agreement;

3) Require repayment of REAP Funds disbursed and expended under this
agreement;

4) Seek a court order for specific performance of the obligation defaulted upon,
or the appointment of a receiver to complete the obligations in accordance

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 49



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 5 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

with the REAP Program requirements; and 

5) Other remedies available at law, by and through this agreement. All
remedies available to the Department are cumulative and not exclusive.

6) The Department may give written notice to the Grantee to cure the breach
or violation within a period of not less than 15 days.

H. The Grantee may be subject to amendment of this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

5. Indemnification

Neither the Department nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by the
Grantee, its officers, employees, agents, its contractors, its sub-recipients or its
subcontractors under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred
upon the Grantee under this Standard Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the
Grantee shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless the Department and all of the
Department’s staff from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description
brought forth under, including, but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse
condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything
done or omitted to be done by the Grantee, its officers, employees, agents contractors,
sub-recipients, or subcontractors under this Standard Agreement.

6. Waivers

No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any prior or
subsequent breach. The failure of the Department to enforce at any time the provisions
of this Agreement, or to require at any time, performance by the Grantee of these
provisions, shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor to affect
the validity of this Agreement or the right of the Department to enforce these provisions.

7. Relationship of Parties

It is expressly understood that this Standard Agreement is an agreement executed by
and between two independent governmental entities and is not intended to, and shall
not be construed to, create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership,
joint venture or association, or any other relationship whatsoever other than that of an
independent party.

8. Third-Party Contracts

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 50



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 6 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

A. All state-government funded procurements must be conducted using a fair and 
competitive procurement process. The Grantee may use its own procurement 
procedures as long as the procedures comply with all City/County laws, rules and 
ordinances governing procurement, and all applicable provisions of California 
state law.  

B. Any contract entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain all the 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement and shall be applicable to the Grantee’s 
sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors. Copies of all agreements with 
sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors shall be submitted to the 
Department’s program manager.  

C. The Department does not have a contractual relationship with the Grantee’s sub-
recipients, contractors, or subcontractors, and the Grantee shall be fully 
responsible for monitoring and enforcement of those agreements and all work 
performed thereunder. 

9. Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Rules, Guidelines and Regulations

A. The Grantee agrees to comply with all state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations that pertain to construction, health and safety, labor, fair employment 
practices, equal opportunity, and all other matters applicable to the grant, the 
Grantee, its contractors or subcontractors, and any other grant activity.  

B. During the performance of this Agreement, the Grantee assures that no 
otherwise qualified person shall be excluded from participation or employment, 
denied program benefits, or be subjected to discrimination based on race, color, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
genetic information, age, disability, handicap, familial status, religion, or belief, 
under any program or activity funded by this contract, as required by Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 3601-20) and all 
implementing regulations, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and all 
implementing regulations. 

C. The Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of 
this clause in all agreements with its sub-recipients, contractors, and 
subcontractors, and shall include a requirement in all agreements that each of 
them in turn include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 51



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 7 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

clause in all contracts and subcontracts they enter into to perform work under 
REAP. 

D. The Grantee shall, in the course of performing project work, fully comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable 
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

E. The Grantee shall adopt and implement affirmative processes and procedures 
that provide information, outreach and promotion of opportunities in the REAP 
project to encourage participation of all persons regardless of race, color, 
national origin, sex, religion, familial status, or disability.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, a minority outreach program to ensure the inclusion, to the maximum 
extent possible, of minorities and women, and entities owned by minorities and 
women, as required by 24 CFR 92.351.   

10. Litigation

A. If any provision of this Agreement, or an underlying obligation, is held invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, at the sole discretion of the 
Department, shall  not affect any other provisions of this Agreement and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the 
provisions of this Agreement are, and shall be, deemed severable. 

B. The Grantee shall notify the Department immediately of any claim or action 
undertaken by or against it, which affects or may affect this Agreement or the 
Department, and shall take such action with respect to the claim or action 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the interests of the Department. 

11. Changes in Terms/Amendments

A. The Grantee may be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

B. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by mutual written agreement 
of both parties. 

12. State-Owned Data

A. Definitions

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 52



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 8 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

1) Work:

The work to be directly or indirectly produced by the Grantee, its employees, or 
by and of the Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s and/or sub-recipient’s 
employees under this Agreement. 

2) Work Product:

All deliverables created or produced from Work under this Agreement including, 
but not limited to, all Work and Deliverables conceived or made, either solely or 
jointly with others during the term of this Agreement, which relates to the Work 
commissioned or performed under this Agreement.  Work Product includes all 
deliverables, inventions, innovations, improvements, or other works of authorship 
Grantee and/or Grantee’s contractor subcontractor and/or sub-recipient may 
conceive of or develop in the course of this Agreement, whether or not they are 
eligible for patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other legal protection. 

3) Inventions:

Any ideas, methodologies, designs, concept, technique, invention, discovery, 
improvement or development regardless of patentability made solely by the 
Grantee or jointly with the Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or sub-
recipient and/or Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor, and/or sub-recipient’s 
employees with one or more employees of the Department during the term of this 
Agreement and in performance of any Work under this Agreement, provided that 
either the conception or reduction to practice thereof occurs during the term of 
this Agreement and in performance of Work issued under this Agreement. 

B. Ownership of Work Product and Rights 

1) All work Product derived by the Work performed by the Grantee, its
employees or by and of the Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s and/or
sub-recipient’s employees under this Agreement, shall be owned by the
Department and shall be considered to be works made for hire by the
Grantee and the Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient
for the Department.  The Department shall own all copyrights in the work
product.

2) Grantee, its employees and all of Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s
and sub-recipient’s employees agree to perpetually assign, and upon
creation of each Work Product automatically assign, to the Department,
ownership of all United States and international copyrights in each and

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 53



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 9 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

every Work Product, insofar as any such Work Product, by operation of 
law, may not be considered work made for hire by the Grantee’s 
contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient from the Department. From 
time to time upon the Department’s request, the Grantee’s contractor, 
subcontractor and/or subrecipients, and/or its employees, shall confirm 
such assignments by execution and delivery of such assignment, 
confirmations or assignment or other written instruments as the 
Department may request.  The Department shall have the right to obtain 
and hold in its name all copyright registrations and other evidence of rights 
that may be available for Work Product under this Agreement. Grantee 
hereby waives all rights relating to identification of authorship restriction or 
limitation on use or subsequent modification of the Work. 

3) Grantee, its employees and all Grantee’s contractors, subcontractors and
sub-recipients hereby agree to assign to the Department all Inventions,
together with the right to seek protection by obtaining patent rights
therefore and to claim all rights or priority thereunder and the same shall
become and remain the Department’s property regardless of whether such
protection is sought. The Grantee, its employees and Grantee’s
contractor, subcontractor and /or subrecipient shall promptly make a
complete written disclosure to the Department of each Invention not
otherwise clearly disclosed to the Department in the pertinent Work
Product, specifically noting features or concepts that the Grantee, its
employees and/or Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient
believes to be new or different.

4) Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, all intellectual property
rights, ownership and title to all reports, documents, plans, specifications
and estimates, produced as part of this Agreement shall automatically vest
in the Department and no further agreement will be necessary to transfer
ownership to the Department.

13. Special Conditions

The State reserves the right to add any special conditions to this Agreement it deems 
necessary to assure that the policy and goals of the Program are achieved, in 
consultation with the Grantee. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 54



Exhibit B 

Pro-rata Initial Allocations to Each Regional Transportation Planning Agency 
Based on January 2020 California Department of Finance Population Estimates 

REAP PLANNING GRANT INITIAL ALLOCATIONS MPO 

DISTRIBUTION 

MPO Share by Population* 

 Fresno Council of Governments 1,032,227 23.50% $1,114,737.62 

 Kern Council of Governments  927,251 21.11% $1,001,370.41 

 Kings County Association of Governments 156,444 3.56% $168,949.28 

 Madera County Transportation Commission 160,089 3.64% $172,885.65 

 Merced County Association of Governments 287,420 6.54% $310,394.79 

 San Joaquin Council of Governments 782,545 17.81% $845,097.40 

 Stanislaus Council of Governments 562,303 12.80% $607,250.45 

 Tulare County Association of Governments 484,423 11.03% $523,145.14 

Total 4,392,702 100.00% $4,743,830.75 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 55



ATTACHMENT B 

REAP MOU and AMENDMENT No. 1 TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR HOUSING 

(ATTACHED)

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 56



Page 1 of 7 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

San Joaquin Valley Regional Early Action Planning Committee for Housing 

This memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) is made this 19th day of November 2020 
(“Effective Date”), by and between the agencies (“Members”) comprising the San 
Joaquin Valley Regional Early Action Planning Committee for Housing (“Committee”) 
set forth below: 

Fresno Council of Governments 
2035 Tulare Street Suite 201 
Fresno, CA 93721 
Email: tboren@fresnocog.org 

Kern Council of Governments 
1401 19th Street, Suite 300 
Bakersfield, California 93301 
Email: ahakimi@kerncog.org 

Kings County Association of 
Governments 
339 W D Street 
Lemoore, CA 93245 
Email: terri.king@co.kings.ca.us 

Madera County Transportation 
Commission 
2001 Howard Road, Suite 201 
Madera, CA 93637 
Email: patricia@maderactc.org 

Merced County Association of 
Governments 
369 W 18th Street 
Merced, CA 95340 
Email: stacie.guzman@mcagov.org 

San Joaquin Council of Governments 
555 E Weber Avenue 
Stockton, CA 95202 
Email: achesley@sjcog.org 

Stanislaus Council of Governments 
1111 “I” Street, Suite 308 
Modesto, CA 95354 
Email: rpark@stancog.org 

Tulare County Association of 
Governments 
210 N Church Street, Suite B 
Visalia, CA 93291 
Email: tsmalley@tularecog.org 

RECITALS 

A. Under section 50515.02, subdivision (a), of the Health and Safety Code, the State 
of California Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”) has 
made available one hundred twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) in local 
government planning support grants to regional entities and working groups as 
outlined by the statute. 

B. The Committee is one of the working groups identified in section 50515.02, 
subdivision (a), of the Health and Safety Code. 

C. On June 26, 2020, the Members approved submission of an application for grant 
funding (“Application”) to HCD by Fresno Council of Governments (“FCOG”) as 
the fiscal agent on behalf of the Committee. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 57



Page 2 of 7 

D. On August 14, 2020, HCD approved the Application and an allocation of 
$10,218,830.75 in grant funds (the “Initial Grant”) to the Members through FCOG. 

E. On August 20, 2020, FCOG and HCD executed grant funding agreement number 
19-REAP-14029 (“Agreement”). A true and correct copy of the Agreement is 
attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” 

F. This MOU is intended to reflect the Members’ understanding of the distribution of 
the Initial Grant and to facilitate the subsequent implementation of activities by the 
Members in furtherance of the purposes for which the Initial Grant was approved 
by HCD. 

The Members therefore agree as follows: 

1. Allocation of Initial Grant. The Members agree to allocate the $10,218,830.75 of
the Initial Grant as follows:

a. FCOG will retain $5,475,000 of the Initial Grant to perform the following
tasks:

i. FCOG shall prepare a comprehensive housing report and policy
recommendations for implementation, as stated in the Application.
FCOG may enter into agreements as necessary to perform its
obligations under this provision of the MOU and under the
Application and Agreement.

ii. FCOG shall conduct regional planning and coordination, and provide
technical assistance, as stated in the Application. FCOG may enter
into agreements as necessary to perform its obligations under this
term of the MOU and under the Application and Agreement.

iii. FCOG shall administer of the Application, Agreement, this MOU, and
the Initial Grant, as stated in the Application.

b. FCOG shall distribute the remaining $4,743,830.75 of the Initial Grant
directly to each of the Members, as more particularly described in “Exhibit
B,” in proportion to each Member’s relative population using California
Department of Finance population estimates updated as of January 2020.

2. Compliance with the Agreement and MOU. Each Member hereby acknowledges
its cognizance of and its understanding of its obligation to comply with the terms
and conditions of the Agreement and MOU. Each Member agrees to abide by the
terms and conditions of the Agreement and to undertake all actions requested by
FCOG pursuant to the Agreement or MOU, in order to facilitate FCOG’s
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

3. Compliance with the Law. Each Member agrees to comply with all Federal, State,
and local laws in the performance of its obligations under this MOU.

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 58



Page 3 of 7 

4. Sub-Agreements. Copies of all agreements between any Member and any sub-
recipient, contractor or subcontractor shall be submitted to FCOG, so that they
then may be provided to HCD’s Program Manager as required by Exhibit D, section
8, paragraph B of the Agreement.

5. Quarterly Reports. Each Member also shall deliver to FCOG, on a quarterly basis,
status reports and accounting records reflecting any expenditure of the Initial Grant
by that Member or by a sub-recipient of that Member. Each Member shall deliver
its status reports and accounting records within thirty (30) days following the end
of the period covered by the document. Each member’s quarterly status reports
shall, at a minimum, include discussion of any allocations or sub-allocations of the
Initial Grant, a description of any project initiated in whole or in part with the Initial
Grant and a description of the progress made on any such project.

6. Retention of Records. Each Member shall maintain public records (as that term is
defined in Government Code section 6252) (collectively, “Records”) required
under the Agreement, relating to any matter contained in this MOU, or
demonstrating that the Initial Grant was used in a manner consistent with the
Agreement. Each Member shall make the Records available to FCOG, HCD or the
State Auditor upon demand. Each Member shall maintain the Records and make
them available for inspection for a period of at least one (1) year following the
termination of this MOU or the time specified in Government Code section 8546.7,
whichever is later. Records relating to any audit or litigation relevant to this MOU
or the Agreement shall be retained by each Member for five years after the
conclusion or final resolution of such matter, as required by Exhibit D, section 3,
paragraph E of the Agreement.

7. Disallowed Costs. Each Member shall return to FCOG any funds which HCD has
disallowed within 90 days following notice to the Member.

8. Indemnity.

a. Each Member shall indemnify FCOG, along with FCOG’s officers, directors,
and employees, for any costs or liabilities (including without limitation for 
damages, court costs, attorneys’ fees, and expert witness fees) arising from, 
resulting from, or in connection with that Member’s actions with respect to 
subject matter of this MOU or relating in any way to the use of the Initial Grant 
proceeds by that Member or any sub-recipient, contractor, or subcontractor of 
that Member. 

b. Notwithstanding, the obligation to indemnify shall not apply to any costs or
liabilities caused solely by the active negligence or willful misconduct of FCOG 
or any of its officers, directors, and employees. 

9. Duration of MOU. This MOU shall be in effect from the Effective Date until
December 31, 2024 unless its term is extended by written modification in
accordance with the provisions of section 12, paragraph c of this MOU.

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 59



Page 4 of 7 

10. Subsequent MOUs. The Members understand and agree that subsequent MOUs
may be necessary to facilitate the distribution of further grant funding from HCD
under section 50515.02, subdivision (a), of the Health and Safety Code. The
Members hereby commit to negotiate the terms and conditions of such subsequent
MOUs in good faith, in order to achieve concurrence and ensure execution of same
in a timely fashion.

11. Notices. All notices provided for or permitted under this MOU must be in writing
and delivered either by personal service, by first-class United States mail, by an
overnight commercial courier service, or as a PDF attachment to an email sent to
the addresses provided for the Members above. Any Member may change its
address for receipt of notice by providing notice of that change as provided in this
section 11.

a. A notice delivered by personal service is effective upon service to the
recipient.

b. A notice delivered by first-class United States mail is effective three
business days after deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to the recipient.

c. A notice delivered by an overnight commercial courier service is effective
one County business day after deposit with the overnight commercial
courier service, delivery fees prepaid, with delivery instructions given for
next day delivery, addressed to the recipient.

d. A notice delivered by email is effective when sent, if the email is sent
between the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm on a business day. If sent
outside the hours of 8:00 am and 5:00 pm on a business day, a notice
delivered by email becomes effective on the first business day following.

12. General Provisions.

a. This MOU is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of any successors
or assigns of the Members.

b. This MOU represents the entire understanding of the Members as to those
matters contained in this MOU. No prior oral or written understanding shall
be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered in this MOU.

c. This MOU may not be modified or altered except by writing signed by all
Members.

d. No Member may assign, delegate or transfer its rights and duties in this
MOU without the written consent of all other Members, except that any
Member may enter into one or more sub-agreements with any sub-recipient,
contractor, or subcontractor to implement activities in furtherance of the

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 60



Page 5 of 7 
 

purposes for which the Initial Grant was approved by HCD without the 
necessity of obtaining such consent. 

e. Any dispute arising under this MOU, which is not resolvable by informal 
mediation between or among the Members, shall be adjudicated in a court 
of law under the laws of the State of California. 

f. For all claims arising from or related to this MOU, nothing in this MOU 
establishes, waives, or modifies any claims presentation requirements or 
procedures provided by law, including the Government Claims Act (Division 
3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code, beginning with section 810). 

g. This MOU shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State 
of California. Jurisdiction of litigation arising from this MOU shall only be in 
California. Any action brought to interpret or enforce this MOU, or any of the 
terms or conditions hereof, shall be brought and maintained in the Fresno 
County Superior Court.  

h. If any part of this MOU is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
unlawful or otherwise unenforceable, the balance of this MOU remains in 
full force and effect, and the Members shall make best efforts to replace the 
unlawful or unenforceable part of this MOU with lawful and enforceable 
terms intended to accomplish the Members’ original intent. 

i. Section headings are provided for convenience only and are not part of this 
MOU. 

j. This MOU does not and is not intended to create any rights or obligations 
for any person or entity except for the Members. 

k. Each Member represents and warrants that the individual signing this MOU 
is duly authorized to do so and their signature on this MOU legally binds 
that Member to the terms of this MOU. 

l. This MOU may be signed in counterparts, each of which is an original, and 
all of which together constitute this MOU. 

[Signature pages follow.] 

  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 61



Page 6 of 7 

The Members have caused this MOU to be executed as of the date and year first above 
written. 

Fresno Council of Governments 

By:  
___________________________ 
Tony Boren, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_____________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

Kern Council of Governments 

By: 
____________________________ 
Ahron Hakimi, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By 
:_____________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

Kings County Association of 
Governments 

By: 
___________________________ 
Terri King, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

Madera County Transportation 
Commission 

By: 
______________________________ 
Patricia Taylor, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 62



Page 7 of 7 

Merced County Association of 
Governments 

By: 
_______________________________ 
Stacie Guzman, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

San Joaquin Council of Governments 

By: 
_______________________________ 
Andrew Chesley, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

Stanislaus Council of Governments 

By: 
_______________________________ 
Rosa Park, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By: 
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

Tulare County Association of 
Governments 

By: 
_______________________________ 
Ted Smalley, Director 

Approved as to Legal Form: 

By:  
_______________________________ 

Print: 
_______________________________ 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 63



Exhibit A 

Grant funding agreement number 19-REAP-14029 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 64



9/3/2020

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 65



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

AUTHORITY, PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF WORK 

1. Authority

The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program is established for the 
purpose of providing regions and jurisdictions with one-time funding, including 
grants for planning activities to enable jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the 
regional housing needs assessment. Up to two hundred fifty million dollars 
($250,000,000) shall be distributed under the program in accordance with 
Health and Safety Code sections 50515.02 and 50515.03. Of this amount, 
approximately one hundred twenty-five million dollars ($125,000,000) is 
available to councils of governments and other regional entities. The 
Department of Housing and Community Development (Department or HCD) 
shall administer the Program (referred to herein as the Regional Early Action 
Planning Grant Program, or “REAP”) to councils of governments and other 
regional entities in accordance with the Notice of Funding Availability (“NOFA”) 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (f).  

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 50515.02, subdivision (d)(3), a 
council of governments or a fiscal agent of a multiagency working group, as 
defined in section 50515.02, may request up to 25 percent of its available 
funding in advance. This Standard Agreement authorizes the encumbrance of 
full funds available to the applicant pursuant to the NOFA, subject to all statutory 
requirements and all applicable provisions including the NOFA, initial application 
and award for advance payment, subsequent advance payment application and 
award, application and award for the full remaining fund amount and 
amendment to this agreement.   

The Grantee shall consult with the Department on any amendment or other 
provision related to the implementation of the Program.  The Department 
decisions related to the administration of the Program shall be final pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code section 50515.04, subdivision (g). 

2. Purpose

In accordance with the authority cited above, the Grantee has been awarded 
financial assistance in the form of a grant from the Program. The Department has 
agreed to make the grant for planning activities pursuant to the NOFA and this 
Agreement. By entering into this Agreement and thereby accepting the award of 
the Program funds, the Grantee agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 66



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

of the NOFA, this Agreement, subsequent amendments to this Agreement, the 
representations contained in the initial advance payment and subsequent full 
application(s), and the requirements of the authority cited above. Based on all 
representations made by the Grantee, the Department shall encumber the full 
amount pursuant the NOFA and provide advance payment and subsequent 
payments in accordance with Exhibit B. All terms, conditions and other relevant 
provisions will be subject to amendments as a result of subsequent applications 
and awards for remaining funds after the initial application up to 25 percent of the 
full amount described in Exhibit B.   

3. Definitions

Terms herein shall have the same meaning as defined by the NOFA.

4. Scope of Work

Grantee shall use the awarded funds in accordance with the approved Scope of
Work as contained in the timeline and budget and related information outlined in
the application for 25 percent advance payment and any subsequent applications
for partial or full funding.  The Scope of Work may be amended in compliance
with statutory requirements subject to approval by the Department.

5. Monitoring

A. The Grantee shall maintain books, records, documents, and other 
evidence that demonstrates the funding was used for the appropriate 
purposes, as described in the Scope of Work, approved application, 
subsequent approved applications and all other pertinent documents. 
These books, records, documents and other evidence shall be made 
available for audit and inspection by the Department at any point during 
the term of the agreement and subject to any amendments to this 
agreement. 

B. The Department may request additional information, as needed, to meet 
the statutory requirements of the Program and facilitate amendments to 
this agreement, including but not limited to reporting or audit requirements, 
progress in implementing advance payment(s), or award of the full amount 
available to the Grantee.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 67



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 3 
Rev.8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT A 

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

C. The Department may monitor expenditures and activities of an applicant, 
as the Department deems necessary, to ensure compliance with statutory 
or Department requirements.  

D. The Department may, as it deems appropriate or necessary, request the 
repayment of funds from an applicant, or pursue any other remedies 
available to it by law for failure to comply with statutory or Department 
requirements.  

E. The Department’s decision to approve or deny an application or request 
for funding pursuant to the Program, and its determination of the amount 
of funding to be provided, shall be final. 

F. Monitoring provisions may be amended and are subject to additional 
provisions in accordance with this agreement or subsequent amendments.  

6. Department Contract Coordinator

The Contract Coordinator of this Agreement for the Department is the Housing
Policy Development Manager, or the Manager’s designee. Unless otherwise
informed, any notice, report, or other communication required by this Agreement
shall be mailed by first class mail to the Department Contract Coordinator at the
following address:

Department of Housing and Community Development 
Housing Policy Development Division 

Land Use Planning Unit 
Attention:  REAP Program Manager 

2020 West El Camino Avenue, Suite 500  
Sacramento, CA 95833 

P. O. Box 952050 
Sacramento, CA  94252-2050 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 68



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. Application for Funds

A. The Department is entering into this Agreement on the basis of, and in 
reliance on facts, information, assertions and representations contained in 
any application and award and any subsequent modifications or additions 
thereto approved by the Department. All awarded applications for funding 
and any approved modifications and additions thereto are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 

B. The Grantee warrants that all information, facts, assertions and 
representations contained in any approved application and approved 
modifications and additions thereto are true, correct, and complete to the 
best of the Grantee’s knowledge. In the event that any part of an 
application and any approved modification and addition thereto is untrue, 
incorrect, incomplete, or misleading in such a manner that would 
substantially affect the Department's approval, disbursement, or 
monitoring of the funding and the grant or activities governed by this 
Agreement, the Department may declare a breach hereof and take such 
action or pursue such remedies as are provided for breach hereof. 

2. Grant and Reimbursement Limit

A. The maximum total amount encumbered to the Grantee pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not exceed $10,218,830.75. 

B. This Agreement authorizes an initial advance payment(s) for eligible 
activities as described in the application.  

C. This Agreement authorizes subsequent award amounts or advance 
payment up to the total award amount as described in Section 2A, of this 
Exhibit, and subject to Department approval.  

D. The Grantee shall submit and follow a schedule for the expenditure of the 
advance payment, any subsequent payment and the total amount prior to 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 69



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

disbursement of funds. The schedule is subject to Department approval 
and may be revised as the Department deems necessary.   

3. Grant Timelines

A. This Agreement is effective upon approval by the Department 
representative’s signature on page one of the fully executed Standard 
Agreement, STD 213, (the “Effective Date”).  

B. All Grant funds must be expended by December 31, 2023 pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code section 50515.04(c )(1).  

C. The Grantee shall deliver to the Department all final invoices for 
reimbursement on or before November 1, 2023, to ensure the Department 
meets the December 31, 2023 expenditure deadline. Under special 
circumstances, approved by the Department, the Department may modify 
the November 1, 2023 deadline and may provide exception, including, but 
not limited to, advance payment to carry out the terms of this agreement.  

D. It is the responsibility of the Grantee to monitor the project and timeliness 
of draws within the specified dates. 

4. Allowable Uses of Grant Funds

A. The Department shall not award or disburse funds unless it determines 
that the grant funds shall be expended in compliance with the terms and 
provisions of the NOFA which includes associated forms and guidelines 
and this Agreement.  

B. Grant funds shall only be used by the Grantee for project activities 
approved by the State that involve planning activities in accordance with 
the NOFA. 

C. Grant funds may not be used for administrative costs of persons employed 
by the Grantee for activities not directly related to eligible activities. 

D. The Grantee shall use no more than 5 percent of the total grant amount 
for costs related to administration of the project. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 70



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 3 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT B 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: March 30, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020  

E. A Grantee that receives funds under this Program may use a 
subcontractor and Grantee shall be accountable to the Department to 
ensure subcontractor’s performance. The subcontract shall provide for 
compliance with all the requirements of the Program. The subcontract 
shall not relieve the Grantee of its responsibilities under the Program. 

F. After the contract has been executed by the Department and all parties, 
approved and eligible costs for eligible activities may be reimbursed for 
the project(s) upon completion of deliverables or paid in advance in 
accordance with the scope of work and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

G. Only approved and eligible costs incurred for work after October 1, 2019, 
continued past the date of execution and acceptance of the Standard 
Agreement and completed during the grant term will be reimbursable. 

5. Performance

The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of future 
applications and awards. 

6. Fiscal Administration

A. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards, in consultation with the Grantee. 

B. It is mutually agreed that if the Budget Act of the current year and/or any 
subsequent years covered under this Agreement does not appropriate 
sufficient funds for the program, this Agreement shall immediately 
terminate and be of no further force and effect. In this event, the State and 
Contractor shall be relieved of any and all obligations under this Grant 
Agreement.  

C. If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the Budget Act for 
purposes of this program, the State shall have the sole discretion to 
cancel this Agreement without cause, no liability occurring to the State, or 
amend the current Grant Agreement and amount allocated to Contractor. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 71



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 1 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

REAP TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Reporting

A. During the term of the Standard Agreement the Grantee shall submit, upon 
request of the Department, a performance report that demonstrates satisfaction 
of all requirements identified in this Standard Agreement. 

B. The Grantee will be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

2. Accounting Records

A. The Grantee, its staff, contractors and subcontractors shall establish and 
maintain an accounting system and reports that properly accumulate incurred 
project costs by line. The accounting system shall conform to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), enable the determination of incurred costs at 
interim points of completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment 
vouchers or invoices.  

B. The Grantee shall establish a separate ledger account for receipts and 
expenditures of grant funds and maintain expenditure details in accordance with 
the scope of work, project timeline and budget. Separate bank accounts are not 
required.  

C. The Grantee shall maintain documentation of its normal procurement policy and 
competitive bid process (including the use of sole source purchasing), and 
financial records of expenditures incurred during the course of the project in 
accordance with GAAP.  

D. The Grantee agrees that the State or designated representative shall have the 
right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation pertaining 
to the performance of the Standard Agreement.  

E. Subcontractors employed by the Grantee and paid with moneys under the terms 
of this Standard Agreement shall be responsible for maintaining accounting 
records as specified above.    

3. Audits

A. At any time during the term of the Standard Agreement, the Department may 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 72



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 2 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

perform or cause to be performed a financial audit of any and all phases of the 
award. At the Department’s request, the Grantee shall provide, at its own 
expense, a financial audit prepared by a certified public accountant. The State of 
California has the right to review project documents and conduct audits during 
and over the project life.   

1) The Grantee agrees that the Department or the Department’s designee
shall have the right to review, obtain, and copy all records and supporting
documentation pertaining to performance of this Agreement.

2) The Grantee agrees to provide the Department or the Department’s
designee, with any relevant information requested.

3) The Grantee agrees to permit the Department or the Department’s
designee access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal
business hours for the purpose of interviewing employees who might
reasonably have information related to such records and inspecting and
copying such books, records, accounts, and other material that may be
relevant to a matter under investigation for the purpose of determining
compliance with statutes, Program guidelines, and this Agreement.

B. If a financial audit is required by the Department, the audit shall be performed by 
an independent certified public accountant. Selection of an independent audit 
firm shall be consistent with procurement standards contained in Exhibit D, 
Section 8 subsection A. of this Standard Agreement. 

1) The Grantee shall notify the Department of the auditor's name and
address immediately after the selection has been made. The contract for
the audit shall allow access by the Department to the independent
auditor's working papers.

2) The Grantee is responsible for the completion of audits and all costs of
preparing audits.

3) If there are audit findings, the Grantee shall submit a detailed response
acceptable to the Department for each audit finding within 90 days from
the date of the audit finding report.

C. The Grantee agrees to maintain such records for possible audit after final 
payment pursuant to Exhibit D, Section 3, subsection E. below, unless a longer 
period of records retention is stipulated.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 73



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 3 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

1) If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, monitoring, inspection or other
action has been started before the expiration of the required record
retention period, all records must be retained by the Grantee, contractors
and sub-contractors until completion of the action and resolution of all
issues which arise from it. The Grantee shall include in any contract that it
enters into in an amount exceeding $10,000.00, the Department’s right to
audit the contractor’s records and interview their employees.

2) The Grantee shall comply with the caveats and be aware of the penalties
for violation of fraud and for obstruction of investigation as set forth in
California Public Contracts Code section 10115.10.

D. The determination by the Department of the eligibility of any expenditure shall be 
final. 

E. The Grantee shall retain all books and records relevant to this Agreement for a 
minimum of (3) three years after the end of the term of this Agreement. Records 
relating to any and all audits or litigation relevant to this Agreement shall be 
retained for five years after the conclusion or resolution of the matter. 

4. Remedies of Non-performance

A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under this Standard Agreement 
that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by the Department’s 
Housing Policy Development Manager, or the Manager’s designee, who may 
consider any written or verbal evidence submitted by the Grantee. The decision 
of the Department’s Housing Policy Development Manager or Designee shall be 
the Department’s final decision regarding the dispute, not subject to appeal. 

B. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the Department will 
excuse the Grantee from full and timely performance in accordance with the 
terms of this Standard Agreement. 

C. In the event that it is determined, at the sole discretion of the Department, that 
the Grantee is not meeting the terms and conditions of the Standard Agreement, 
immediately upon receiving a written notice from the Department to stop work, 
the Grantee shall cease all work under the Standard Agreement. The 
Department has the sole discretion to determine that the Grantee meets the 
terms and conditions after a stop work order, and to deliver a written notice to the 
grantee to resume work under the Standard Agreement.   

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 74



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 4 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

D. Both the Grantee and the Department have the right to terminate the Standard 
Agreement at any time upon 30 days written notice. The notice shall specify the 
reason for early termination and may permit the Grantee or the Department to 
rectify any deficiency(ies) prior to the early termination date. The Grantee shall 
submit any requested documents to the Department within 30 days of the early 
termination notice.  

E. A strong implementation component for the funded activity through this Program 
is required, including, where appropriate, agreement by Grantee and its 
subcontractors to formally adopt or complete a planning or other activity 
consistent with the NOFA. The Grantee must carry out provisions to ensure the 
adoption or completion of activities in accordance with the NOFA, including 
activities subcontracted to localities. Grantee may be subject to repayment of the 
grant should the Grantee or any of its subcontractors under this agreement fail to 
adopt or complete activities set forth in its application, this Agreement or any 
amendments to this Agreement.  

F. The following shall each constitute a breach of this Agreement: 

1) Grantee’s failure to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement.

2) Use of, or permitting the use of, grant funds provided under this Agreement
for any ineligible costs or for any activity not specified and approved under
this Agreement.

3) Any failure to comply with the deadlines set forth in this Agreement unless
approved by the Program Manager in writing.

G. In addition to any other remedies that may be available to the Department in law 
or equity for breach of this Agreement, the Department may at its discretion, 
exercise a variety of remedies, including but not limited to:  

1) Revoke existing REAP award(s) to the Grantee;

2) Require the return of unexpended REAP funds disbursed under this
Agreement;

3) Require repayment of REAP Funds disbursed and expended under this
agreement;

4) Seek a court order for specific performance of the obligation defaulted upon,
or the appointment of a receiver to complete the obligations in accordance

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 75



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 5 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

with the REAP Program requirements; and 

5) Other remedies available at law, by and through this agreement. All
remedies available to the Department are cumulative and not exclusive.

6) The Department may give written notice to the Grantee to cure the breach
or violation within a period of not less than 15 days.

H. The Grantee may be subject to amendment of this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

5. Indemnification

Neither the Department nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by the
Grantee, its officers, employees, agents, its contractors, its sub-recipients or its
subcontractors under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred
upon the Grantee under this Standard Agreement. It is understood and agreed that the
Grantee shall fully defend, indemnify and save harmless the Department and all of the
Department’s staff from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description
brought forth under, including, but not limited to, tortuous, contractual, inverse
condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything
done or omitted to be done by the Grantee, its officers, employees, agents contractors,
sub-recipients, or subcontractors under this Standard Agreement.

6. Waivers

No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be held to be a waiver of any prior or
subsequent breach. The failure of the Department to enforce at any time the provisions
of this Agreement, or to require at any time, performance by the Grantee of these
provisions, shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions nor to affect
the validity of this Agreement or the right of the Department to enforce these provisions.

7. Relationship of Parties

It is expressly understood that this Standard Agreement is an agreement executed by
and between two independent governmental entities and is not intended to, and shall
not be construed to, create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership,
joint venture or association, or any other relationship whatsoever other than that of an
independent party.

8. Third-Party Contracts

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 76



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 6 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

A. All state-government funded procurements must be conducted using a fair and 
competitive procurement process. The Grantee may use its own procurement 
procedures as long as the procedures comply with all City/County laws, rules and 
ordinances governing procurement, and all applicable provisions of California 
state law.  

B. Any contract entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain all the 
provisions stipulated in this Agreement and shall be applicable to the Grantee’s 
sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors. Copies of all agreements with 
sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors shall be submitted to the 
Department’s program manager.  

C. The Department does not have a contractual relationship with the Grantee’s sub-
recipients, contractors, or subcontractors, and the Grantee shall be fully 
responsible for monitoring and enforcement of those agreements and all work 
performed thereunder. 

9. Compliance with State and Federal Laws, Rules, Guidelines and Regulations

A. The Grantee agrees to comply with all state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations that pertain to construction, health and safety, labor, fair employment 
practices, equal opportunity, and all other matters applicable to the grant, the 
Grantee, its contractors or subcontractors, and any other grant activity.  

B. During the performance of this Agreement, the Grantee assures that no 
otherwise qualified person shall be excluded from participation or employment, 
denied program benefits, or be subjected to discrimination based on race, color, 
ancestry, national origin, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, 
genetic information, age, disability, handicap, familial status, religion, or belief, 
under any program or activity funded by this contract, as required by Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Fair Housing Act (42 USC 3601-20) and all 
implementing regulations, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and all 
implementing regulations. 

C. The Grantee shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of 
this clause in all agreements with its sub-recipients, contractors, and 
subcontractors, and shall include a requirement in all agreements that each of 
them in turn include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 77



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 7 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

clause in all contracts and subcontracts they enter into to perform work under 
REAP. 

D. The Grantee shall, in the course of performing project work, fully comply with the 
applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable 
regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

E. The Grantee shall adopt and implement affirmative processes and procedures 
that provide information, outreach and promotion of opportunities in the REAP 
project to encourage participation of all persons regardless of race, color, 
national origin, sex, religion, familial status, or disability.  This includes, but is not 
limited to, a minority outreach program to ensure the inclusion, to the maximum 
extent possible, of minorities and women, and entities owned by minorities and 
women, as required by 24 CFR 92.351.   

10. Litigation

A. If any provision of this Agreement, or an underlying obligation, is held invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, at the sole discretion of the 
Department, shall  not affect any other provisions of this Agreement and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Therefore, the 
provisions of this Agreement are, and shall be, deemed severable. 

B. The Grantee shall notify the Department immediately of any claim or action 
undertaken by or against it, which affects or may affect this Agreement or the 
Department, and shall take such action with respect to the claim or action 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the interests of the Department. 

11. Changes in Terms/Amendments

A. The Grantee may be subject to amendments to this section as a result of 
subsequent applications and awards. 

B. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by mutual written agreement 
of both parties. 

12. State-Owned Data

A. Definitions

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 78



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 8 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

1) Work:

The work to be directly or indirectly produced by the Grantee, its employees, or 
by and of the Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s and/or sub-recipient’s 
employees under this Agreement. 

2) Work Product:

All deliverables created or produced from Work under this Agreement including, 
but not limited to, all Work and Deliverables conceived or made, either solely or 
jointly with others during the term of this Agreement, which relates to the Work 
commissioned or performed under this Agreement.  Work Product includes all 
deliverables, inventions, innovations, improvements, or other works of authorship 
Grantee and/or Grantee’s contractor subcontractor and/or sub-recipient may 
conceive of or develop in the course of this Agreement, whether or not they are 
eligible for patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other legal protection. 

3) Inventions:

Any ideas, methodologies, designs, concept, technique, invention, discovery, 
improvement or development regardless of patentability made solely by the 
Grantee or jointly with the Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or sub-
recipient and/or Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor, and/or sub-recipient’s 
employees with one or more employees of the Department during the term of this 
Agreement and in performance of any Work under this Agreement, provided that 
either the conception or reduction to practice thereof occurs during the term of 
this Agreement and in performance of Work issued under this Agreement. 

B. Ownership of Work Product and Rights 

1) All work Product derived by the Work performed by the Grantee, its
employees or by and of the Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s and/or
sub-recipient’s employees under this Agreement, shall be owned by the
Department and shall be considered to be works made for hire by the
Grantee and the Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient
for the Department.  The Department shall own all copyrights in the work
product.

2) Grantee, its employees and all of Grantee’s contractor’s, subcontractor’s
and sub-recipient’s employees agree to perpetually assign, and upon
creation of each Work Product automatically assign, to the Department,
ownership of all United States and international copyrights in each and

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 79



Fresno Council of Governments 
19-REAP-14029 

Page 9 of 9 
Rev. 8/19/2020 

EXHIBIT D 

Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 
NOFA Date: October 10, 2019 
Approved Date: April 9, 2020 
Prep. Date: August 12, 2020 

every Work Product, insofar as any such Work Product, by operation of 
law, may not be considered work made for hire by the Grantee’s 
contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient from the Department. From 
time to time upon the Department’s request, the Grantee’s contractor, 
subcontractor and/or subrecipients, and/or its employees, shall confirm 
such assignments by execution and delivery of such assignment, 
confirmations or assignment or other written instruments as the 
Department may request.  The Department shall have the right to obtain 
and hold in its name all copyright registrations and other evidence of rights 
that may be available for Work Product under this Agreement. Grantee 
hereby waives all rights relating to identification of authorship restriction or 
limitation on use or subsequent modification of the Work. 

3) Grantee, its employees and all Grantee’s contractors, subcontractors and
sub-recipients hereby agree to assign to the Department all Inventions,
together with the right to seek protection by obtaining patent rights
therefore and to claim all rights or priority thereunder and the same shall
become and remain the Department’s property regardless of whether such
protection is sought. The Grantee, its employees and Grantee’s
contractor, subcontractor and /or subrecipient shall promptly make a
complete written disclosure to the Department of each Invention not
otherwise clearly disclosed to the Department in the pertinent Work
Product, specifically noting features or concepts that the Grantee, its
employees and/or Grantee’s contractor, subcontractor and/or subrecipient
believes to be new or different.

4) Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, all intellectual property
rights, ownership and title to all reports, documents, plans, specifications
and estimates, produced as part of this Agreement shall automatically vest
in the Department and no further agreement will be necessary to transfer
ownership to the Department.

13. Special Conditions

The State reserves the right to add any special conditions to this Agreement it deems 
necessary to assure that the policy and goals of the Program are achieved, in 
consultation with the Grantee. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 80



Exhibit B 

Pro-rata Initial Allocations to Each Regional Transportation Planning Agency 
Based on January 2020 California Department of Finance Population Estimates 

REAP PLANNING GRANT INITIAL ALLOCATIONS MPO 

DISTRIBUTION 

MPO Share by Population* 

 Fresno Council of Governments 1,032,227 23.50% $1,114,737.62 

 Kern Council of Governments  927,251 21.11% $1,001,370.41 

 Kings County Association of Governments 156,444 3.56% $168,949.28 

 Madera County Transportation Commission 160,089 3.64% $172,885.65 

 Merced County Association of Governments 287,420 6.54% $310,394.79 

 San Joaquin Council of Governments 782,545 17.81% $845,097.40 

 Stanislaus Council of Governments 562,303 12.80% $607,250.45 

 Tulare County Association of Governments 484,423 11.03% $523,145.14 

Total 4,392,702 100.00% $4,743,830.75 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 81



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 82



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 83



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 84



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 85



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 86



September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 87



Page C-1 

ATTACHMENT C 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CONTRACTOR will undertake professional activities consistent with the requirements of Chapter 3.1 of 
Part 2 of Division 31 (commencing with section 50515) of the California Health & Safety, the REAP Grant 
Agreement, and the REAP MOU, and comply with the terms and conditions of same. CONTRACTOR’S at-
tention is called to the requirements of the REAP MOU for submission of quarterly status reports and 
accounting records (section 5) and retention of records related to use of the grant funds (section 6). In 
additional, CONTRACTOR shall substantially comply with (1) the “Eligible Activities Best Practices” guide-
lines promulgated by the State of California’s Department of Housing and Community Development dated 
as of May 12,2020; and (2) the “San Joaquin Valley Regional Early Action Planning for Housing - 
REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY GUIDANCE” dated as of May 6, 2021, copies of which are attached. Per 
the REAP MOU and the Grant Agreement, all funds provided to CONTRACTOR hereunder must be 
expended in full on or before August 31, 2023. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 88



Best_Practices_5_12_2020 1

Regional Early Action Planning Grant Program (REAP) 

Eligible Activities Best Practices  

This document will be updated periodically with new ideas. 
Additions will be attached as a new page at the end of the 
document with the date of the addition. 

Eligible Activity: Developing an Improved RHNA Methodology to 
Further Gov Code Section 65584 (d) Objectives.  
Gov Code Section 65584 (d) “affirmatively furthering fair housing” means taking 
meaningful actions, in addition to combating discrimination, that overcome patterns of 
segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that restrict access to 
opportunity based on protected characteristics. Specifically, affirmatively furthering fair 
housing means taking meaningful actions that, taken together, address significant 
disparities in housing needs and in access to opportunity, replacing segregated living 
patterns with truly integrated and balanced living patterns, transforming racially and 
ethnically concentrated areas of poverty into areas of opportunity, and fostering and 
maintaining compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws. 

• Analyzing and incorporating Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing and
making data available to jurisdictions

• Increasing zoned capacity in jurisdictions with disproportionately high jobs-
housing ratio, including an improved balance between the number of low-
wage jobs and the number of housing units affordable to low-wage
workers in each jurisdiction

• Outreach strategies in addition to conducting a survey to combat
segregation and foster inclusive communities free from barriers that would
restrict access to opportunity based on protected characteristics

• Education and awareness of fair housing laws and issues to stakeholders
(e.g. community, developers, public staff)

• Providing language assistance for limited proficiency in English
• Incorporating and developing policy guide for displacement avoidance

plan and affordable housing preservation
• Incorporating climate mitigation strategies (e.g. make housing more

energy efficient, adopting renewable energy sources such as solar and
wind)

• Incorporating disaster / climate adaptation and encouraging strategies in
local land use documents

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 89



Best_Practices_5_12_2020 2

• Incorporating ways to promote infill development (i.e., promoting higher
zoned capacity in areas with low per capita vehicle miles traveled and high
access to opportunity, focusing new growth land that has already been
developed with urban uses or is substantially surrounded by urban uses
and/or incorporating ways to promote transportation-efficient development
(i.e., development in places where there are multiple transportation
options besides a single occupancy vehicle--transit, bike lanes, sidewalks-
- and the density and mix of uses that make these transportation options a
viable choice),

• Mapping regional Priority Development Areas or similar
• Implementing a Sustainable Communities Strategies (SCS) consistency

program (e.g. Association of Bay Area Government’s Resilience Program)
• Promotion of more zoned capacity for housing in jurisdictions with the

highest housing costs.
• Local input surveys
• Mini grants to community groups and partnership with grassroots partners

and community leaders to support full engagement in RHNA development
• Aligning transportation funding – especially competitive transportation

grant programs and investments in transit, streetscape, placemaking, and
active transportation – with RHNA plans for housing (i.e., Bay Area’s
Resolution 3434)

• Incorporating homelessness data to plan for meeting supply of below 30
percent AMI units

• Education and awareness of various tax increment financing tools,
promoting use of local tax increment financing tools (i.e., Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing Districts (EIFDs), Community Revitalization and
Investment Authorities (CRIAs), Affordable Housing Authorities (AHAs),
Infrastructure and Financing Revitalization Districts (IFRDs) and
Neighborhood Infill Finance and Transit Improvements (NIFTI) districts.
CRIAs have alignment with CalEnviro Screen and affordable housing
requirement, see tool comparison.

• Education and awareness on pairing federal Opportunity Zone (OZ)
program with state programs (i.e., Strategic Growth Council
Transformative Climate Community in Ontario has an affordable housing
project funded by state with OZ funding). Opportunity Zones are census
tracts that are defined by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as
“economically-distressed community where new investments, under
certain conditions, may be eligible for preferential tax treatment.” They
were added to the tax code by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act on December
22, 2017. https://opzones.ca.gov/faqs/.

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 90

https://edacademy.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/current-tif-tools.pdf
https://opzones.ca.gov/faqs/


Best_Practices_5_12_2020 3

• Incorporating methods to pair federal Opportunity Zone program with
affordable housing

Eligible Activity: Suballocations to Jurisdictions 

• Developing approaches to insure equitable distribution of funding such as
location-based minimums (e.g., at least 20% in a specified county), non-
competitive programs coupled with population based or RHNA based
award amounts, proactive outreach and technical assistance with under-
resourced communities.

• Program criteria for SCS consistency, displacement, affordability,
including deeper targeting, climate adaption

• Program criteria for Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing
• COG to develop grant program to support development of compliant

Housing Elements and community engagement strategies (i.e., Bay Area’s
80k by 2020 challenge grant program, SANDAG’s Policy 33)

• Program criteria or other incentives to facilitate pro-housing jurisdictions
• Jurisdictions’ specific best practices after a COG develops a grant

program:
o Prepare a form based zoning or overlay zone to provide

development standards and zoning that allows future higher-density
housing and mixed-use development (may include Environmental
Impact Report [EIR])

o Develop framework for a trust to support the preservation and
production of long-term affordable housing for lower-income
households

o Completing CEQA analysis and specific plan EIRs that promote
streamlined approvals at the project-level or eliminate the need for
project-level specific review.

o Undertake rezoning efforts to bring local zoned capacity into
compliance with HCD requirements for housing element prior to
Housing Element due data

o Objective design and/or development standards to comply with
SB35 and other laws to provide more clarity and certainty for
applicants.

o Planning associated with local financial strategies such as a local
housing trust fund, fee reductions for infill, TOD, or affordable
developments, published fee schedules and fee calculators.

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 91



Best_Practices_5_12_2020 4

o Intensifying land-use patterns to allow for a variety of housing types
(duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, multi-family) and increasing
densities on sites identified to accommodate the jurisdictions lower-
income RHNA.

o When suballocating funds for comprehensive marketing strategies
that the marketing is equitably designed and inclusive of
disadvantage communities.

o Feasibility studies to determine the most efficient locations to site
housing, such as those with lowest per capita vehicle miles traveled
and highest access to jobs and other opportunities.

o Infrastructure planning that prioritizes infill development.
o Establishing a flexible housing subsidy pool.
o Anti-displacement strategies which may be applicable are those

eligible pursuant to the program guidelines of other state housing
assistance programs such as the Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program, or policies and
programs to implement the provisions of Government Code section
65583 (a)(9) and (c)(6) for preservation of assisted housing
developments.

o Examples of priorities that may complement the acceleration of
housing production can include consideration of practices that
prohibit residential uses in areas zoned for open space, agriculture,
areas considered environmentally hazardous (e.g., floodplains or
high wildfire severity zone areas), or other sensitive areas.

o Feasibility for a tax increment financing tool that expedites housing
development; prepare an Infrastructure Financing Plan for a tax
increment financing tool to plan for future housing and housing
funding. Such as Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts
(EIFDs), Community Revitalization and Investment Authorities
(CRIAs), Affordable Housing Authorities (AHAs), Infrastructure and
Financing Revitilization Districts (IFRDs) and Neighborhood Infill
Finance and Transit Improvements (NIFTI) districts. CRIAs have
alignment with CalEnviro Screen and affordable housing
requirement. Tool comparison:

o Pairing Federal Opportunity Zone Program for affordable housing
development
 Developing plan to increase affordable housing development

in Federal Opportunity Zones.

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 92

https://edacademy.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/current-tif-tools.pdf


Best_Practices_5_12_2020 5

 Creating toolkit/project pipleline to pair Opportunity Zone
funding with state affordable housing programs (such as
AHSC project or Infill Infrastructure Grant with an OZ Fund)

 Examples include the Strategic Growth Council
Transformative Climate Community in Ontario has an
affordable housing project funded by state with OZ funding

Eligible Activity: Technical Assistance, Temporary Staffing or 
Consultant Needs and Other Actions 

• To build capacity develop a planning academy (educate and engage on
planning processes) for staff. E.g. City of Sacramento’s Citizen’s Planning
Academy.

• Developing regional toolkits on a variety of housing-specific topics such as
objective design and development standards, housing elements, CEQA
streamlining, by-right zoning, ADUs, infrastructure planning, housing
finance strategies, public engagement, planning adaptation, Opportunity
Zones, tax-increment financing tools, and equity and environmental
justice.

• Creation of data service menus and analysis templates to support
preparation of housing elements

• Assistance with sites inventories to support preparation of the housing
elements

• Developing public engagement and educational strategies to build support
from local elected officials, stakeholders, and the general public on a
variety of housing policies that encourage affordable housing. Strategies
can include workshops, campaigns, fact sheets, customizable PowerPoint
slide decks, etc.,

• Creating tools to encourage the development of ADUs such as,
handbooks, prototype plans and designs that can be customized to a local
jurisdiction. Other tools may include web-based ADU calculators,
entitlement processing assistance and websites specific to jurisdictions.

• Establishing consulting benches or circuit rider programs that can provide
targeted TA on a variety of housing and land use topics in the form of
training, workshops, panel discussions, and direct assistance to
jurisdictions around specific housing policy areas such as housing
elements, ADUs, CEQA, by-right zoning, expediated permit processing,
infrastructure, equity and environmental Justice, etc.,

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 93



Best_Practices_5_12_2020 6

• Toolboxes that include model ordinances, templates, checklists, and
handbooks that help jurisdictions comply with land-use and planning laws
such as density bonus, ADUs, supportive housing, reasonable
accommodation, etc.,

• Developing a peer-to-peer learning environment through facilitating
regional convenings and regularly scheduled meetings where local
governments can exchange best practices and share resources.

• Establishing relationship and planning housing needs with Continuum of
Care

• Outreach to jurisdictions applying for/receiving emergency shelter funds to
assist with planning movement from shelter to permanent homes, i.e. site
and funding readiness for permanent supportive housing.

• Technical assistance on how to incorporate homelessness data into
housing element updates or housing planning.

• Developing toolkits or support for planning of infrastructure financing plans
for tax-increment financing tools that support housing, such as Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing Districts (EIFDs), Community Revitalization and
Investment Authorities (CRIAs), Affordable Housing Authorities (AHAs),
Infrastructure and Financing Revitilization Districts (IFRDs) and
Neighborhood Infill Finance and Transit Improvements (NIFTI) districts.

• CRIAs have alignment with CalEnviro Screen and affordable housing
requirement. See tool comparison.

• Identifying infill opportunity areas or sites
• Compiling and providing information about regional conservation plans

and other resource-area data to preclude time-consuming conflicts related
to special-status species and other resource-conservation efforts (i.e.,
Butte County Association of Government’s assistance in General Plan
updates)

• Mapping of transportation costs to facilitate assessment of the combined
cost of housing and transportation

• Development of a multi-jurisdictional Housing Element and other
collaborative processes to assist the preparation and implementation of
housing elements

• Convening regional stakeholders to identify solutions to regional housing
challenges (e.g., the Committee to House the Bay Area (CASA) process)

• Public surveys, communications planning, development of
communications materials (e.g., brochures) or tools (e.g., an online
game), or communications purchases (e.g., a radio spot) to support local-
government housing outreach

• Establishing a Transfer of Development Rights program

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 94

https://edacademy.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/current-tif-tools.pdf


Best_Practices_5_12_2020 7

• CEQA streamlining support (i.e., Sacramento Area of Council of
Government’s (SACOG) assists projects within its region in utilizing the
SB 375 CEQA streamlining provisions. SB 375 allows for streamlined
review and analysis of residential or mixed-use projects consistent with an
SCS; modified review and analysis, through an expedited Sustainable
Communities Environmental Assessment (SCEA), for Transit Priority
Projects (TPPs) that are consistent with an SCS; and a complete CEQA
exemption for TPPs that are consistent with an SCS and meet a specific
list of other requirements. In each of these cases, SACOG's MTP/SCS
EIR serves as a first-tier environmental document under CEQA. SACOG
provides lead agencies with a CEQA streamlining worksheet to determine
if projects are consistent with their region's SCS, and to help determine
the appropriate CEQA streamlining.)

• Facilitating partnerships between developers, local agencies, transit
providers, and State agencies to secure a diverse set of investments in
key housing areas, especially to facilitate infill development with many
transportation choices

• Supporting efforts to secure other public funds by publicizing grant
availability or providing grant-writing or other grant-related technical
support for eligible projects

Eligible Activity: Program Administration 
Applicants may consult with HCD to identify whether a task is an activity or 
administration. 

• Activity costs:
o Applicants staff time for implementation of improving RHNA

methodology directly related to eligible activity 1
o Applicants staff time to review suballocation applications from

jurisdictions directly related to eligible activity 2
o Applicants staff time to develop contracts for jurisdictions as part of

suballocation directly related to eligible activity 3
• Administrative costs (max 5%):

o Monitoring and Reporting on allocations and suballocations
o Prepare REAP application, including staff time to participate in

Steering Committee calls/meetings. Preparing invoices and
supporting documentation

o File management

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 95



1	  

San	  Joaquin	  Valley	  Regional	  Early	  Action	  Planning	  for	  Housing
REGIONAL	  PLANNING	  AGENCY	  FUNDING	  GUIDANCE	  
Revised	  Version	  –	  May	  6,	  2021	  

Background	  

The	  Local	  Government	  Planning	  Support	  Grants	  Program	  (AB	  101)	  was	  established	  to	  provide	  
regions	  and	   jurisdictions	  with	  one-‐time	  grant	   funding	   for	  planning	  activities	   to	  meet	  the	  sixth	  
cycle	   of	   the	   Regional	   Housing	   Needs	   Allocation	   (RHNA),	   and	   to	   spur	   affordable	   housing	  
production.	   	   A	   total	   of	   $18,975,323	   in	   Regional	   Early	   Action	   Planning	   (REAP)	   grant	   funds	   is	  
available	  to	  the	  eight	  San	  Joaquin	  Valley	  regional	  planning	  agencies.	  

The	   San	   Joaquin	   Valley	   Regional	   Early	   Action	   Committee	   for	   Housing	   (SJV	   REAP	   Committee),	  
required	  by	  statute,	  will	  help	  guide	  the	  Valley’s	  REAP	  planning	  efforts.	  The	  SJV	  REAP	  Committee	  
comprises	  24	  members	  of	  the	  San	  Joaquin	  Valley	  regional	  planning	  agencies,	  cities,	  counties	  and	  
community	  members.	  	  The	  SJV	  REAP	  Committee	  meets	  two	  to	  four	  times	  a	  year.	  	  The	  San	  Joaquin	  
Valley	  Regional	  Planning	  Agencies’	  Directors’	  Committee	  will	  also	  advise	  the	  SJV	  REAP	  program	  
implementation	  process.	  

Overview	  

The	  Fresno	  Council	  of	  Governments	  is	  the	  fiscal	  agent	  for	  this	  regional	  effort.	  	  There	  are	  three	  
primary	  work	  areas	  highlighted	  below:	  	  

§   RHNA	  (Regional	  Housing	  Needs	  Allocation)	   -‐	  Developing	  an	   improved	  methodology	  for	  
the	  distribution	  of	  the	  sixth	  cycle	  RHNA.	  

§   Suballocations	  to	   jurisdictions	  –	  Providing	  grants	  to	  accelerate	  housing	  production	   in	  a	  
way	  that	  aligns	  with	  state	  planning	  priorities,	  housing,	  transportation,	  equity,	  and	  climate	  
goals.	  

§   Valleywide	   activities	   and	   deliverables	   –	   Conducting	   a	   comprehensive	   housing	   report,	  
regional	  planning	  and	  coordination,	  program	  implementation,	  technical	  assistance,	  and	  
other	   activities.	   	   REAP	   program	   administration,	   agreements,	   consultants,	   outreach,	  
communication,	  and	  other	  administrative	  and	  program	  management	  duties.	  	  	  

RHNA	   and	   jurisdictional	   suballocations	   will	   primarily	   be	   conducted	   at	   the	   regional	   planning	  
agency	   level,	   with	   each	   regional	   planning	   agency	   receiving	   a	   pro-‐rata	   share	   of	   funding	   for	  
developing	   and	   implementing	   its	   RHNA	   process,	   and	   for	   distributing	   and	   coordinating	   the	  
jurisdictional	   suballocations.	   Please	   reference	   the	   attached	  REAP	   Summary	   Funding	   Table	   for	  
additional	  information.	  

The	  SJV	  Housing	  Program	  Manager	  (Sigala	  Inc.)	  and	  Fresno	  COG	  will	  lead	  the	  Valleywide	  planning	  
efforts	   in	   coordination	  with	   the	   SJV	   REAP	   Committee,	   the	  Directors’	   Committee,	   staff	   at	   the	  
regional	  planning	  agencies,	  and	  other	  partners.	  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 96



2	  

Distribution	  Process	  (initial	  funding)	  

Fresno	  COG,	  on	  behalf	  of	   the	  San	   Joaquin	  Valley,	  has	   received	  $10.2	  million	  of	   initial	   funding	  
(REAP	  applications	  one	  and	   two)	   for	   the	  SJV	  REAP	  process.	   	  The	   initial	   funding	   is	  being	  made	  
available	  to	  the	  San	  Joaquin	  Valley	  as	  “front	  loaded”	  grant	  funds	  for	  immediate	  distribution.	  	  This	  
is	  not	  typical	  of	  state	  planning	  grant	  funding,	  which	  is	  traditionally	  provided	  on	  a	  reimbursable	  
basis.	  	  The	  SJV	  REAP	  Committee	  has	  approved	  a	  pro-‐rata	  funding	  allocation	  methodology	  for	  the	  
initial	  funding	  amount.	  

Breakdown	  of	  Initial	  Funding	  

Fresno	  Council	  of	  Governments	   $1,114,737.62	  
Kern	  Council	  of	  Governments	  	   $1,001,370.41	  
Kings	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	   	   	  	  	  $168,949.28	  
Madera	  County	  Transportation	  Commission	  	   	  	  	  $172,885.65	  
Merced	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	  	  	  	   	  	  	  $310,394.79	  
San	  Joaquin	  Council	  of	  Governments	  	   	  	  	  $845,097.40	  
Stanislaus	  Council	  of	  Governments	   	   	  	  	  $607,250.45	  
Tulare	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	   	   	  	  	  $523,145.14	  

Subtotal	   $4,743,830.75	  

Funding	  for	  Valleywide	  work	  efforts	  *	   $5,475,000.00	  
(including	  Fresno	  COG	  administrative	  cost)	  

Total	  	  	  $10,218,830.75	  

*$1	   million	   of	   Valleywide	   funding	   is	   to	   be	   transferred	   to	   regional	   planning	   agencies	   for	  
supplemental	  RHNA	  planning.	  	  See	  below,	  “Supplemental	  RHNA	  Planning	  Funds.”	  

Each	   regional	   planning	   agency	   is	   responsible,	   through	   their	   respective	   boards,	   to	   determine	  
funding	  amounts	  and	  policies	  for	  RHNA	  planning	  and	  jurisdictional	  suballocations.	  	  Fresno	  COG,	  
the	   SJV	   Housing	   Program	   Manager,	   and	   staff	   at	   the	   eight	   regional	   planning	   agencies	   will	  
coordinate	  and	  further	  develop	  policies	  and	  guidance	  for	  RHNA	  and	  suballocation	  disbursements	  
across	  the	  region,	  as	  needed.	  	  	  

Initial	   funding	   distributions	   at	   the	   regional	   planning	   agency	   level	   should	   prioritize	   direct	  
suballocations	  to	  jurisdictions,	  consistent	  with	  the	  policy	  direction	  as	  approved	  by	  the	  SJV	  REAP	  
Committee	  and	  the	  amounts	  approved	  in	  first	  REAP	  funding	  application.	  	  Fresno	  COG	  advises	  that	  
regional	  planning	  agencies	  generally	  adhere	  to	  the	  jurisdictional	  allocation	  amounts	  approved	  by	  
the	  State	  of	  California	  in	  the	  first	  REAP	  application	  submittal.	  	  Those	  amounts	  are	  detailed	  in	  the	  
table	  below	  and	  in	  the	  attached	  REAP	  Summary	  Funding	  Table.	  	  	  

Each	   regional	   planning	   agency	   may	   use	   up	   to	   five	   percent	   (5%)	   of	   funding	   for	   program	  
administration	  (reporting,	  invoicing,	  etc.).	  	  Project	  management	  (staffing)	  can	  reasonably	  be	  used	  
for	  program	  implementation	  outside	  of	  the	  five	  percent	  administration	  figure.	  	  Fresno	  COG	  	  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 97



3	  

advises	   that	   administration	   and	   project	   management	   costs	   come	   out	   of	   the	   RHNA	   Planning	  
amounts	  and	  not	  the	  jurisdictional	  suballocation	  amounts.	  	  

*Supplemental	  RHNA	  Planning	  Funds

Due	   to	   the	   limited	   pro-‐rata	   RHNA	   planning	   shares,	   $1	   million	   of	   Valleywide	   funding	   will	   be	  
apportioned	  equally	  to	  each	  regional	  planning	  agency	  in	  the	  amount	  of	  $125,000.	  

Combined	  breakdown	  of	   initial	   and	   supplemental	   funding	  amounts	   for	  RHNA	  planning	   and	  
jurisdictional	  suballocations:	  

RHNA	  Planning	   Suballocations	   Total	  
Fresno	  Council	  of	  Governments	   	   $477,480	   $762,257	   $1,239,738	  
Kern	  Council	  of	  Governments	  	   $441,633	   $684,737	   $1,126,370	  
Kings	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	   	   $178,422	   $115,527	   $293,949	  
Madera	  County	  Transportation	  Commission	  	   $179,666	   $118,219	   $297,886	  
Merced	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	  	   $223,147	   $212,248	   $435,395	  
San	  Joaquin	  Council	  of	  Governments	   $392,220	   $577,877	   $970,097	  
Stanislaus	  Council	  of	  Governments	   	   $317,013	   $415,238	   $732,250	  
Tulare	  County	  Association	  of	  Governments	   	   $290,419	   $357,727	   $648,145	  

$2,500,000	   $3,243,831	   $5,743,831	  

Please	  reference	  the	  attached	  REAP	  Summary	  Funding	  Table	  for	  additional	  information.	  

Use	  of	  Funds	  

The	  region,	  and	  regional	  planning	  agencies,	  shall	  establish	  priorities	  and	  use	  funding	  to	  increase	  
housing	  planning	  and	  accelerate	  housing	  production.	  The	  following	  are	  eligible	  activities:	  

§   RHNA	  planning	  activities	  including	  developing	  an	  improved	  methodology	  for	  the	  
distribution	  of	  the	  sixth	  cycle	  RHNA.	  	  

§   Providing	   jurisdictions	   and	   other	   local	   agencies	   with	   technical	   assistance,	  
planning,	  temporary	  staffing	  or	  consultant	  needs	  associated	  with	  updating	  local	  
planning	   and	   zoning	   documents,	   expediting	   application	   processing,	   and	   other	  
actions	  to	  accelerate	  additional	  housing	  production.	  

§   Covering	  the	  costs	  of	  administering	  any	  programs.	  
§   Suballocating	  moneys	  directly	  and	  equitably	  to	  jurisdictions	  or	  other	  subregional	  

entities	  in	  the	  form	  of	  grants,	  to	  accelerate	  housing	  production	  in	  a	  way	  that	  aligns	  
with	  state	  planning	  priorities,	  housing,	  transportation,	  equity,	  and	  climate	  goals.	  	  	  

§   A	   jurisdiction	   that	   receives	   a	   suballocation	   of	   funds	   shall	   only	   use	   that	  
suballocation	  for	  housing-‐related	  planning	  activities,	  including,	  but	  not	  limited	  to,	  
the	  following:	  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 98



4	  

Ø   Technical	   assistance	   in	   improving	   housing	   permitting	   processes,	  
tracking	  systems,	  and	  planning	  tools.	  

Ø   Facilitating	  technical	  assistance	  between	  jurisdictions.	  
Ø   Establishing	  regional	  or	  countywide	  housing	  trust	  funds	  for	  affordable	  

housing.	  
Ø   Performing	   infrastructure	  planning,	   including	  sewers,	  water	  systems,	  

transit,	   roads,	   or	   other	   public	   facilities	   necessary	   to	   support	   new	  
housing	  and	  new	  residents.	  

Ø   Performing	  feasibility	  studies	  to	  determine	  the	  most	  efficient	  locations	  
to	  site	  housing.	  

Ø   Performing	   feasibility	   studies	   for	   affordable	   housing	   projects	   on	  
surplus	   properties	   owned	   by	   school	   districts	   of	   county	   offices	   of	  
education.	  

Ø   Covering	   the	   costs	   of	   temporary	   staffing	   or	   consultant	   needs	  
associated	  with	  the	  activities	  described	  above.	  

The	  following	  are	  ineligible	  activities:	  

§   Activities	  unrelated	  to	  accelerating	  housing	  production.	  
§   Activities	   unrelated	   to	   preparation	   and	   adoption	   of	   planning	   documents,	   and	  

process	  improvements	  to	  accelerate	  housing	  production.	  
§   Activities	  that	  obstruct	  or	  hinder	  housing	  production.	  
§   Capital	  financing,	  operation	  or	  funding	  related	  to	  programs	  of	  individual	  housing	  

development	  projects.	  
§   Administrative	  costs	  of	  persons	  employed	  by	  the	  grantee	  for	  activities	  not	  directly	  

related	  to	  the	  preparation	  and	  adoption	  of	  the	  proposed	  Activity	  or	  Activities.	  

Distribution	  Process	  (remaining	  funds)	  

The	  remaining	  funds	  for	  Valley	  REAP	  planning	  purposes	  are	  $8,756,492.25.	  	  An	  application	  to	  the	  
state	  for	  the	  remaining	  funds	  needs	  has	  been	  submitted	  to	  the	  State	  of	  California,	  Housing	  and	  
Community	  Development	  Department	  (HCD).	  	  The	  SJV	  REAP	  Committee	  has	  determined	  that	  the	  
remaining	   funds	   shall	   be	   allocated	   on	   a	   population	   pro-‐rata	   basis	   to	   each	   regional	   planning	  
agency	  process	  for	  jurisdictional	  suballocations	  and	  additional	  housing	  related	  activities	  at	  the	  
regional	   planning	   agency	   level.	   	   Please	   see	   attached	   REAP	   Summary	   Funding	   Table	   for	   the	  
breakdown	  by	  regional	  planning	  agency.	  

All	  REAP	  funds	  shall	  be	  expended	  by	  August	  31,	  2023.	  

Reporting	  Requirements	  

There	  will	  be	  quarterly,	  annual	  (by	  April	  1	  of	  each	  year)	  and	  a	  final	  report	  (by	  December	  21,	  2024)	  
required	  by	  all	  entities	   that	  receive	  REAP	  funding.	   	  Fresno	  COG	  and	  the	  SJV	  Housing	  Program	  
Manager	  will	  work	  with	  each	   regional	  planning	  agency	   to	  ensure	   compliance	  with	   State	  HCD	  
reporting	  requirements.	  	  	  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 99



San  Joaquin  Valley  REAP  Summary  Funding  Table

<  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  Initial  Funding  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -    >
Summary

Phase  I Phase  II Phase  III
(1st  app) (2nd  app) (3rd  app)

Funds Funds Total
Original  for   Sub  Aloc Additional   Total Valleywide Supplemental Total Sub  Aloc Dedicated  to Dedicated  to   HCD

RHNA Cities\County RHNA  (a) Phase  I Planning RHNA  (b) Phase  II Cities\County REAP RHNA   Program

FCOG 187,989 762,257 164,491 1,114,738 4,475,000 125,000 4,600,000 2,057,660 7,294,918 477,480 7,772,398
Kern 168,871 684,737 147,762 1,001,370 125,000 125,000 1,848,399 2,533,136 441,633 2,974,769
Kings 28,492 115,527 24,930 168,949 125,000 125,000 311,858 427,386 178,422 605,808
Madera 29,155 118,219 25,511 172,886 125,000 125,000 319,124 437,344 179,666 617,010
Merced 52,345 212,248 45,802 310,395 125,000 125,000 572,948 785,196 223,147 1,008,343
San  Joaquin 142,517 577,877 124,703 845,097 125,000 125,000 1,559,939 2,137,817 392,220 2,530,037
Stanislaus 102,407 415,238 89,606 607,250 125,000 125,000 1,120,905 1,536,143 317,013 1,853,156
Tulare 88,223 357,727 77,195 523,145 125,000 125,000 965,658 1,323,384 290,419 1,613,803

Total 800,000 3,243,831 700,000 4,743,831 4,475,000 1,000,000 5,475,000 8,756,492 16,475,323 2,500,000 18,975,323

Percentage 17% 68% 15% 100% 82% 18% 100% 100% 87% 13% 100%

Significant  Local Proposed  future  
Agency  Involvement   funding,  subject  to  
in  REAP  process change  by  HCD

Notes: (a)  Sum  of  Valleywide  Tech  Assist,  Admin  and  Housing  Report  that  was  in  the  1st  app  and  subsequently  moved  to  the  2nd  app.  
(b)  $1M  transferred  from  Valleywide  to  regional  planning  agencies  for  RHNA  planning.  Also  can  be  used  for  admin  and  project  staffing/management.

Phase  II  (2nd  app)  Valleywide  Budget

Supplemental  RHNA 1,000,000
Comprehensive  Housing  Report 500,000
Housing  Report  Policy  Implem. 1,000,000
Household  Travel  Survey 500,000
Consultant  Bench 1,500,000
Outreach,  Marketing 250,000
Fresno  COG  Admin 300,000
Housing  Program  Manager 314,200
Reserve/Contingencies 110,800

5,475,000

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 100



Page D-1 

ATTACHMENT D 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain insurance for the duration of this Agreement against claims for 
injuries to persons and damage to property which may arise from, or in connection with, performance 
under the Agreement by the CONTRACTOR, his agents, representatives, employees, and subcontractors, 
if applicable. 

A. Minimum Scope & Limits of Insurance 

1. Coverage at least as broad as Commercial General Liability, insurance Services Office Commercial Gen-
eral Liability coverage occurrence form GC 00 01, with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence in-
cluding products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, and personal & advertising 
injury. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 
project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occur-
rence limit.  

2. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering Automobile Liability of $1,000,000 per oc-
currence including any auto or, if the CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, hired and non-owned auto cov-
erage. If an annual aggregate applies it must be no less than $2,000,000.  

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and Em-
ployer’s Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease. 

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance appropriate to the CONTRACTOR’s profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate. 

B. Specific Provisions of the Certificate  

1. If the required insurance is written on a claims-made form, the retroactive date must be before the date 
of the contract or the beginning of the contract work and must be maintained and evidence of insurance 
must be provided for at least three (3) years after completion of the contract work. 

2. CONTRACTOR must submit endorsements to the General Liability reflecting the following provisions:

a. TCAG and CONTRACTOR, their officers, agents, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds as respects; liability arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of 
the CONTRACTOR including material, parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or op-
erations. 

b. For any claims related to this project, the CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects TCAG and CONTRACTOR, their officers, agents, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insur-
ance or self-insurance maintained by TCAG or CONTRACTOR, their officers, agents, officials, employees, or 
volunteers shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

c. CONTRACTOR hereby grants to TCAG a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of CON-
TRACTOR may acquire against the CONTRACTOR by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 101



Page D-2 

subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the TCAG or the CONTRACTOR has 
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

d. Each insurance policy required by this agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except after written notice has been provided to TCAG. 

3. The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of TCAG
and the CONTRACTOR for all work performed by the CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, and subcon-
tractors. CONTRACTOR waives all rights against TCAG and the CONTRACTOR, their officers, agents, officials, 
employees, and volunteers for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the work-
ers compensation and employer’s liability. 

C. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Deductibles and Self-insured retentions must be declared and any deductible or self-insured retention that 
exceeds $100,000 will be reviewed by the TULARE COUNTY Risk Manager for approval. 

D. Acceptability of Insurance 
Insurance must be placed with insurers with a current rating given by A.M. Best and Company of no less 
than A-:VII and a Standard & Poor’s Rating (if rated) of at least BBB and from a company approved by the 
Department of Insurance to conduct business in California. Any waiver of these standards is subject to 
approval by the County Risk Manager. 

E. Verification of Coverage 
Prior to approval of this Agreement by the TCAG, the CONTRACTOR shall file with the submitting depart-
ment, certificates of insurance with original endorsements effecting coverage in a form acceptable to 
TCAG. Endorsements must be signed by persons authorized to bind coverage on behalf of the insurer. 
TCAG and the CONTRACTOR reserve the right to require certified copies of all required insurance policies 
at any time. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 102



Page E-1 

ATTACHMENT E 

TCAG’S GENERAL AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW: CONTRACTOR must provide services in accordance with applicable Federal,
State, and local laws, regulations, and directives. With respect to CONTRACTOR'S employees, CONTRAC-
TOR must comply with all laws and regulations pertaining to wages and hours, state and federal income 
tax, unemployment insurance, Social Security, disability insurance, workers' compensation insurance, and 
discrimination in employment. 

2. PAYMENT DOES NOT IMPLY ACCEPTANCE OF WORK: CONTRACTOR is not entitled to any payments
under this Agreement until TCAG confirms that services provided, including any furnished deliverables, 
satisfy all of the requirements of this Agreement. Payments to CONTRACTOR by TCAG shall not excuse 
CONTRACTOR from its obligation to replace unsatisfactory deliverables, including equipment, compo-
nents, materials, or services even if the unsatisfactory character of such deliverables, equipment, compo-
nents, materials, or services may not have been apparent or detected at the time such payment was made. 
Deliverables, equipment, components, materials, and services that do not conform to the requirements 
of this Agreement may be rejected by TCAG and in such case must be replaced by CONTRACTOR without 
delay and at no cost to the TCAG. 

3. DISALLOWANCE: If CONTRACTOR requests or receives payment from TCAG for services hereunder,
reimbursement for which is later disallowed by the State of California or United States Government, CON-
TRACTOR shall promptly refund the disallowed amount to TCAG upon TCAG’S request. At its option, TCAG 
may offset the amount disallowed from any payment due or to become due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement or any other Agreement between CONTRACTOR and TCAG. CONTRACTOR'S obligations under 
this section 2 will survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

4. LIABILITY OF TCAG: TCAG’S payment obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment 
of the compensation provided for in section 3, “PAYMENT FOR SERVICES,” of this Agreement. Notwith-
standing any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall TCAG be liable, regardless of whether 
any claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect, or incidental damages, in-
cluding, but not limited to, lost profits, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

5. QUALIFIED PERSONNEL: CONTRACTOR shall utilize only competent personnel under the supervision
of, and in the employment of, CONTRACTOR (or CONTRACTOR'S authorized subcontractors) to perform 
the services. CONTRACTOR will comply with TCAG’S reasonable requests regarding assignment and/or re-
moval of personnel, but all personnel, including those assigned at TCAG’S request, must be supervised by 
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall commit adequate resources to allow timely completion within the pro-
ject schedule specified in this Agreement. 

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: The Parties enter into this Agreement with the express un-
derstanding that CONTRACTOR will perform all services required under this Agreement as an independ-
ent contractor. The Parties agree that CONTRACTOR and any of its agents, employees, or officers cannot 
be considered agents, employees, or officers of TCAG. 
CONTRACTOR agrees to advise everyone it assigns or hires to perform any duty under this Agreement that 
they are not employees of TCAG. Subject to any performance criteria contained in this Agreement, CON-
TRACTOR will be solely responsible for determining the means and methods of performing the specified 
services and TCAG will have no right to control or exercise any supervision over CONTRACTOR as to how 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 103



Page E-2 

CONTRACTOR will perform the services. As CONTRACTOR is not TCAG'S employee, CONTRACTOR is re-
sponsible for paying all required state and federal taxes. In particular, TCAG will not:  

(1) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from CONTRACTOR'S payments. 
(2) Make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on CONTRACTOR'S 

behalf. 
(3) Withhold state or federal income tax from payments to CONTRACTOR. 
(4) Make disability insurance contributions on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 
(5) Obtain unemployment compensation insurance on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 

Notwithstanding this independent contractor relationship, TCAG will have the right to monitor and evalu-
ate the performance of CONTRACTOR to assure compliance with this Agreement. 

7. LICENSES AND PERMITS: CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that it possesses and will maintain
during the term of this Agreement all licenses and permits required for its performance of the services 
required under this Agreement.  

8. GOVERNING LAW: The laws of the State of California, without reference to California conflict of laws
principles, govern this Agreement and its interpretation. The Parties agree that this Agreement is made in 
and will be performed in Tulare County, California. 

9. RECORDS AND AUDIT: CONTRACTOR must maintain complete and accurate records with respect to
the services rendered and the costs incurred under this Agreement. In addition, CONTRACTOR must main-
tain complete and accurate records with respect to any payments to employees or subcontractors. All of 
the records must be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting procedures, must be 
clearly identified, and must be kept readily accessible. Upon request, CONTRACTOR must make the records 
available within Tulare County to the Auditor of Tulare County and to his or her agents and representatives, 
for the purpose of auditing and/or copying the records for a period of five (5) years from the date of final 
payment under this Agreement. Additional record-keeping requirements may be located in Exhibit F or G 
(related to federally-funded contracts generally, or FTA-funded contracts specifically). 

10. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
(a) At all times during the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR must comply with the law of the 
State of California regarding conflicts of interests and appearance of conflicts of interests, including, but 
not limited to, Government Code Section 1090 et seq., and the Political Reform Act, Government Code 
Section 81000 et seq., and regulations promulgated by the California Fair Political Practices Commission. 
The statutes, regulations, and laws previously referenced include, but are not limited to, prohibitions 
against any public officer or employee, including CONTRACTOR for this purpose, from making any decision 
on behalf of TCAG in which the officer, employee, or consultant/contractor has a direct or indirect financial 
interest. A violation can occur if the public officer, employee, or consultant/contractor participates in or 
influences any TCAG decision that has the potential to confer any pecuniary benefit on CONTRACTOR or 
any business firm in which CONTRACTOR has an interest, with certain narrow exceptions. 

(b)  CONTRACTOR agrees that if any facts come to its attention that raise any questions as to the applica-
bility of conflicts-of-interests laws, then it will immediately inform TCAG and provide all information 
needed for resolution of this question. 

11. INSURANCE: The attached Attachmet E outlines the minimum scope, specifications, and limits of 
insurance required under this Agreement. Additional insured endorsements required as outlined in 
Attachment E cannot be used to reduce limits available to TCAG as an additional insured from

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 104



Page E-3 

CONTRACTOR's full policy limits. Insurance policies cannot be used to limit liability or to limit the 
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement or act in any way to reduce the policy 
coverage and limits available from the insurer(s). If CONTRACTOR fails to maintain or renew coverage, 
or to provide evidence of renewal, then TCAG may consider that failure a material breach of this 
Agreement. TCAG may also withhold any payment otherwise due to CONTRACTOR for failure to 
provide evidence of renewal until CONTRACTOR provides such evidence. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE:
(a)  To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR must indemnify, defend (at CONTRACTOR'S sole 
cost and expense and with legal counsel approved by TCAG, which approval may not be unreasonably 
withheld), protect and hold harmless TCAG, all subsidiaries, divisions, committee, and affiliated agencies 
of TCAG, and all of their representatives, partners, designees, officers, directors, employees, consultants, 
agents, successors, and assigns, (each, an “Indemnified Party” and collectively, the "Indemnified Parties"), 
from and against all claims (including, without limitation, claims for bodily injury, death or damage to 
property), demands, obligations, damages, actions, causes of action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, pen-
alties, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and 
court costs, and all other professional expert or consultants' fees and costs and TCAG general and admin-
istrative expenses) of every kind and nature whatsoever (individually, a "Claim"; collectively, "Claims") 
which may arise out of, pertain to, or relate (directly or indirectly) to the negligence, recklessness, or mis-
conduct of CONTRACTOR with respect to any work performed or services provided under this Agreement 
(including, without limitation, the acts, errors, and/or omissions of CONTRACTOR, its principals, officers, 
agents, employees, vendors, suppliers, consultants, sub-consultants, contractors, and anyone employed 
directly or indirectly by any of them, or for whose acts they may be liable, or any or all of them). CON-
TRACTOR’S obligation to indemnify applies unless it is finally adjudicated that the liability was caused by 
the sole active negligence or sole willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party. If it is finally adjudicated that 
liability is caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party, then 
CONTRACTOR’S indemnification obligation shall be reduced in proportion to the established comparative 
liability. 

(b)  The duty to defend is a separate and distinct obligation from CONTRACTOR’S duty to indemnify. CON-
TRACTOR shall be obligated to defend, in all legal, equitable, administrative, or special proceedings, the 
Indemnified Parties immediately upon tender to CONTRACTOR of the Claim in any form or at any stage of 
an action or proceeding, whether or not liability is established. Payment to CONTRACTOR by any Indem-
nified Party or the payment or advance of defense costs by any Indemnified Party cannot be a condition 
precedent to enforcing the Indemnified Party's rights to indemnification under this Agreement. An allega-
tion or determination that persons other than CONTRACTOR are responsible for the Claim does not relieve 
CONTRACTOR from its separate and distinct obligation to defend under this section. The obligation to de-
fend extends through final judgment, including exhaustion of any appeals. The defense obligation includes 
an obligation to provide independent defense counsel if CONTRACTOR asserts that liability is caused in 
whole or in part by the negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified Party. If it is finally adjudicated 
that liability was caused by the comparative active negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnified 
Party, then CONTRACTOR may submit a claim to the TCAG for reimbursement of reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and defense costs in proportion to the established comparative liability of the Indemnified Party. 
CONTRACTOR'S indemnification obligations under this Agreement will survive the expiration or earlier ter-
mination of this Agreement until action against the Indemnified Parties for the matter indemnified is fully 
and finally barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose. CONTRACTOR'S liability for 
indemnification under this Agreement is in addition to any liability CONTRACTOR may have to TCAG for a 
breach by CONTRACTOR of any of the provisions of this Agreement. Under no circumstances may the in-
surance requirements and limits set forth in this Agreement be construed to limit CONTRACTOR'S 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 105



Page E-4 

indemnification obligation or other liability under this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement are con-
tractual and the result of negotiation between the Parties. 

(c)  CONTRACTOR must indemnify and hold TCAG harmless from all loss and liability, including attorneys’ 
fees, court costs and all other litigation expenses, for any infringement of the patent rights, copyright, 
trade secret or any other proprietary right or trademark, and all other intellectual property claims of any 
person or persons in consequence of the use by TCAG, or any of its officers or agents, of articles or services 
to be supplied in the performance of this Agreement. 

13. TERMINATION:
(a) Without Cause: TCAG may terminate this Agreement without cause by giving thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice to CONTRACTOR of its intention to terminate under this provision, specifying the date of 
termination. TCAG will pay to CONTRACTOR the compensation earned for work satisfactorily performed 
and not previously paid for to the date of termination. TCAG will not pay lost anticipated profits or other 
economic loss. The payment of any compensation is subject to the restrictions on payment of compensa-
tion otherwise provided in this Agreement and is conditioned upon receipt from CONTRACTOR of all plans, 
specifications and estimates, and other documents prepared by CONTRACTOR in accordance with this 
Agreement. TCAG will not impose sanctions on CONTRACTOR under these circumstances. 

(b)  With Cause: Either Party may terminate this Agreement immediately, by written notice to the other 
Party, should the other Party:  

(1) Be adjudged a bankrupt, or 
(2) Become insolvent or have a receiver appointed, or 
(3) Make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or 
(4) Suffer any judgment that remains unsatisfied for 30 days, and that would substantively impair the 
ability of the judgment debtor to perform under this Agreement, or 
(5) Materially breach this Agreement.  

In addition, TCAG may terminate this Agreement based on: 

(6) Material misrepresentation, either by CONTRACTOR or anyone acting on CONTRACTOR’S behalf, as to 
any matter related in any way to TCAG’S retention of CONTRACTOR, or 
(7) Other misconduct or circumstances that, in the sole discretion of TCAG, either impairs the ability of 
CONTRACTOR to competently provide the services under this Agreement or exposes TCAG to an unrea-
sonable risk of liability. 

For any of the occurrences except item (5) above, termination may be effected upon written notice by the 
terminating Party specifying the date of the termination. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform according to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, then TCAG may, in addition to any other remedy it may have, 
issue a declaration of default after 10 days’ written notice to CONTRACTOR. 

Upon a material breach, the Agreement may be terminated after the failure of the defaulting Party to 
remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the non-defaulting Party within 5 days of written notice specifying 
the breach. If the breach is not remedied within that 5-day period, then the non-defaulting Party may 
terminate this Agreement on further written notice specifying the date of termination. If the nature of the 
breach is such that it cannot be cured within a 5-day period, then the defaulting Party may submit a written 
proposal within that period which sets forth a specific means to resolve the default. If the non-defaulting 
Party consents to that proposal in writing, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, then the 
defaulting Party must immediately embark on its plan to cure the default or breach. If the default or breach 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 106



Page E-5 

is not cured within the time agreed, then the non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice specifying the date of termination. 

TCAG will pay to CONTRACTOR the compensation earned for work satisfactorily performed and not previ-
ously paid for to the date of termination. The payment of such compensation is subject to the restrictions 
on payment of compensation otherwise provided in this Agreement and is conditioned upon receipt from 
CONTRACTOR of all plans, specifications and estimates, and other documents prepared by CONTRACTOR 
by the date of termination in accordance with this Agreement. TCAG will not pay lost anticipated profits 
or other economic loss, nor will TCAG pay compensation or make reimbursement to cure a breach arising 
out of or resulting from such termination. If TCAG terminates this Agreement for cause and the expense 
of finishing CONTRACTOR’S scope of work exceeds the unpaid balance of the Agreement, then CONTRAC-
TOR must pay the difference to TCAG. TCAG may impose sanctions under these circumstances, which may 
include possible rejection of future proposals based on specific causes of CONTRACTOR’S non-perfor-
mance. 

(c)  Effects of Expiration or Termination: Expiration or termination of this Agreement will not terminate 
any obligations to indemnify, to maintain and make available any records pertaining to the Agreement, to 
cooperate with any audit, to be subject to offset, or to make any reports of pre-termination contract ac-
tivities. Where TCAG terminates CONTRACTOR’S services, that termination will not affect any rights of 
TCAG to recover damages against CONTRACTOR. 

(d) Suspension of Performance: Independent of any right to terminate this Agreement, the Executive 
Director of TCAG may immediately suspend performance by CONTRACTOR, in whole or in part, in response 
to health, safety or financial emergency, or a failure or refusal by CONTRACTOR to comply with the provi-
sions of this Agreement, until such time as the cause for suspension is resolved, or a notice of termination 
becomes effective. 

14. LOSS OF FUNDING: It is understood and agreed that if TCAG’S funding is either discontinued or re-
duced for the services to be provided hereunder, then TCAG will have the right to terminate this Agree-
ment under section 13 (a) (“Termination Without Cause”) as of the end of the term for which funds are 
appropriated. Such termination shall be without penalty, liability, or expense to TCAG of any kind, provided 
that TCAG shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with section 13 (a) for services satisfactorily performed 
prior to the date of such termination and to the extent funds have been appropriated for such payment. 

15. SUBMITTING FALSE CLAIMS; MONETARY PENALTIES: Under applicable federal and state law, if CON-
TRACTOR submits a false claim to TCAG under this Agreement, then CONTRACTOR will be liable to TCAG 
for the statutory penalties set forth in those statutes, including but not limited to statutory fines, treble 
damages, costs, and attorneys’ fees. CONTRACTOR will be deemed to have submitted a false claim to TCAG 
if CONTRACTOR:  

(a) Knowingly presents or causes to be presented to TCAG a false claim or request for payment or ap-
proval;  

(b) Knowingly makes, uses, or causes to be made or used a false record or statement to get a false claim 
paid or approved by TCAG;  

(c) Conspires to defraud TCAG by getting a false claim allowed or paid by TCAG; 

(d) Knowingly makes, uses, or causes to be made or used a false record or statement to conceal, avoid, or 
decrease an obligation to pay or transmit money or property to TCAG; or  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 107



Page E-6 

(e) Is a beneficiary of an inadvertent submission of a false claim to TCAG, later discovers the falsity of the 
claim, and fails to disclose the false claim to TCAG within a reasonable time after discovery of the false 
claim. 

16. FORM DE-542: If CONTRACTOR is an individual, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that this Agreement is
subject to filing obligations under Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.8. Accordingly, TCAG has 
an obligation to file a report with the Employment Development Department, which report will include 
CONTRACTOR’S full name, social security number, address, the date this Agreement was executed, the 
total amount of the Agreement, its expiration date or whether it is ongoing. CONTRACTOR agrees to co-
operate with TCAG to make that information available and to complete Form DE- 542. Failure to provide 
the required information may, at TCAG’S option, prevent approval of this Agreement, or be grounds for 
termination by TCAG. 

17. WORKS FOR HIRE: CONTRACTOR acknowledges that all work(s) under this Agreement are "work(s) for
hire" within the meaning of the United States Copyright Act (Title 17 United States Code) and hereby as-
signs to TCAG all rights and interests CONTRACTOR may have in the work(s) it prepares under this Agree-
ment, including any right to derivative use of the work(s). All software and related materials developed by 
CONTRACTOR in performance of this Agreement for TCAG will be the sole property of TCAG, and CON-
TRACTOR hereby assigns and transfers all its right, title, and interest therein to TCAG. CONTRACTOR will 
execute all necessary documents to enable TCAG to protect TCAG’S intellectual property rights under this 
section.  

18. WORK PRODUCT: All work product, equipment, or materials created for TCAG or purchased by TCAG
under this Agreement belong to TCAG and CONTRACTOR must immediately deliver them to TCAG at 
TCAG’S request upon termination or completion of this Agreement. 

19. TIME OF ESSENCE: The Parties agree that time is of the essence under this Agreement unless they
agree otherwise in writing. 

20. CONFIDENTIALITY: CONTRACTOR may not use or disclose any information it receives from TCAG under 
this Agreement that TCAG has previously identified as confidential or exempt from mandatory public dis-
closure except as necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement or as authorized in advance by 
TCAG. Unless required to do so by law, including, but not limited to, the Ralph M. Brown Act or the Cali-
fornia Public Records Act, TCAG may not disclose to third parties any information it receives from CON-
TRACTOR that CONTRACTOR has previously identified as confidential. If TCAG determines that it must dis-
close any information that CONTRACTOR previously identified as confidential, then it shall promptly give 
CONTRACTOR written notice of its intention to disclose such information and the authority for such dis-
closure. CONTRACTOR shall have period of five (5) calendar days thereafter within which to seek a protec-
tive court order to prevent such disclosure or to notify TCAG that it will not seek such an order. TCAG shall 
cooperate with CONTRACTOR in any efforts to seek such a court order. TCAG shall not disclose the infor-
mation until the five (5) day period has expired without a response from CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR 
has notified TCAG that it will not seek such an order, or CONTRACTOR has sought and a court has declined 
to issue a protective order for such information. If CONTRACTOR seeks a protective order for such infor-
mation, CONTRACTOR shall defend and indemnify TCAG from any and all loss, injury, or claim arising from 
TCAG’S withholding of the information from the requestor. This includes any attorney’s fees awarded to 
the requestor. The duty of TCAG and CONTRACTOR to maintain confidentiality of information under this 
section continues beyond the term of this Agreement. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 108



Page E-7 

21. ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACTING: Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, TCAG is relying on
the personal skill, expertise, training and experience of CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR'S employees and 
no part of this Agreement may be assigned or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR without the prior written 
consent of TCAG, which consent TCAG may grant, delay, deny, or condition in its absolute discretion. 

22. DISPUTES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION: CONTRACTOR shall continue with its responsibilities under this 
Agreement during any dispute. If a dispute arises out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach of the 
Agreement, and if the dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, then the Parties agree first to try in 
good faith to settle the dispute by non-binding mediation, to be held in Tulare County, California, before 
resorting to litigation or some other dispute resolution procedure, unless the Parties mutually agree oth-
erwise. The Parties must mutually select the mediator, but in case of disagreement, then the Parties will 
select the mediator by lot from among two nominations provided by each Party. The Parties will split 
equally all costs and fees required by the mediator; otherwise, each Party will bear its own costs of medi-
ation. If mediation fails to resolve the dispute within 30 days, then either Party may pursue litigation to 
resolve the dispute. 

23. PROPERTY TAXES: Under the terms of California Revenue and Taxation Code section 107.6 (possessory 
interest tax), CONTRACTOR’S possession or use of any TCAG-owned real property under this Agreement 
may create a “possessory interest” in the real property. If a possessory interest is created, then it may be 
subject to property taxation and CONTRACTOR may be subject to the payment of property taxes on that 
possessory interest. 

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES: Each Party will execute any additional documents and perform any further
acts that may be reasonably required to effect the purposes of this Agreement. 

25. CONSTRUCTION: This Agreement reflects the contributions of all Parties and so the provisions of Civil
Code section 1654 will not apply to address and interpret any alleged uncertainty or ambiguity. 

26. HEADINGS: Section headings are provided for organizational purposes only and do not in any manner
affect the scope, meaning, or intent of the provisions under the headings. 

27. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES INTENDED: Unless specifically set forth, the Parties to this Agree-
ment do not intend to provide any other party with any benefit or enforceable legal or equitable right or 
remedy. 

28. WAIVERS: The failure of either Party to insist on strict compliance with any provision of this Agreement 
will not be considered a waiver of any right to do so, whether for that breach or any later breach. The 
acceptance by either Party of either performance or payment will not be considered a waiver of any pre-
ceding breach of the Agreement by the other Party. 

29. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between or among the body of
the Agreement (which includes these “General Agreement Terms and Conditions”) and any Exhibit, Sched-
ule, or Attachment, then the terms and conditions of the body of the Agreement shall prevail. 

30. CONFLICT WITH LAWS OR REGULATIONS/ SEVERABILITY: This Agreement is subject to all applicable
laws and regulations. If any provision of this Agreement is found by any court or other legal authority, or 
is agreed by the Parties to be, in conflict with any code or regulation governing its subject matter, only the 
conflicting provision will be considered null and void. If the effect of nullifying any conflicting provision is 
such that a material benefit of the Agreement to either Party is lost, then the Agreement may be 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 109



Page E-8 

terminated at the option of the affected Party. In all other cases, the remainder of the Agreement will 
continue in full force and effect. 

31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement represents the entire agreement between CONTRACTOR and
TCAG as to its subject matter and no prior oral or written understanding will be of any force or effect. No 
part of this Agreement may be modified without the written consent of both Parties. 

32. ASSURANCES OF NON-DISCRIMINATION: CONTRACTOR must not discriminate in employment or in
the provision of services based any characteristic or condition upon which discrimination is prohibited by 
state or federal law or regulation. The Parties recognize that both CONTRACTOR and TCAG have the re-
sponsibility to protect TCAG employees and clients from unlawful activities, including discrimination and 
sexual harassment in the workplace. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR agrees to provide appropriate training to 
its employees regarding discrimination and sexual harassment issues, and to promptly and appropriately 
investigate any allegations that any of its employees may have engaged in improper discrimination or har-
assment activities. TCAG, in its sole discretion, has the right to require CONTRACTOR to replace any em-
ployee who provides services of any kind to TCAG under this Agreement with other employees where 
TCAG is concerned that its employees or clients may have been or may be the subjects of discrimination 
or harassment by such employees. TCAG’S right to require replacement of employees under this section 
does not preclude TCAG from terminating this Agreement with or without cause as provided for under 
this Agreement. Additional nondiscrimination requirements may be located in Exhibit F or G (related to 
federally-funded contracts generally, or FTA-funded contracts specifically). 

33. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY: CONTRACTOR acknowledges that under the Federal Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1989 and the California Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited on TCAG premises. 
CONTRACTOR agrees that any violation of this prohibition by CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, or as-
signs will be deemed a material breach of this Agreement. 

34. RECYCLED PAPER CONTENT: To the extent CONTRACTOR’S services under this Agreement include
printing services, pursuant to Public Contract Code section 22153, CONTRACTOR shall use paper that 
meets the recycled content requirements of Public Contract Code section 12209. 

Jlk/6-14-21/2021557/1638619.docx 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 110



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 
 

 
TO: Lindsay City Council 
FROM: Neyba Amezcua, City Services Assistant Director 
DEPARTMENT: City Services 
ITEM NO.: 10.1 
MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
ACTION & RECOMMENDATION 

Consider Approval of Department of Parks and Recreation General Per Capital Program Expenditure at 
the Centennial Park Playground. 
 
BACKGROUND | ANALYSIS 

The State of California Department of Parks and Recreation provides a per capita allocation to all Cities 
under Proposition 68 – 2018 Parks & Water Bond. There are two programs within the Proposition; 
General Per Capita and the Urban County Per Capita Program.  The City of Lindsay qualifies under the 
General Per Capita Program and the allocation is set at $177,952.00.

 
Funds are available for local park rehabilitation, creation, and improvement grants to local governments 
on a per capita basis.  Grant recipients are encouraged to utilize awards to rehabilitate existing 
infrastructure and to address deficiencies in neighborhoods lacking access to the outdoors. 

Due to requests from residents, Council has directed Staff to look at the different options to install shade 
covers at the Centennial Park Playground. Staff requested quotes for two different type of shades and is 
(1) requesting Council direction on the type of shade to install at the park and (2) approve the funding for 
the project.  

The two shade covers being considered are the Rectangular and Multi-Sail Shade Canopies. There are 
several possible configurations and coverage options. This report is presenting the following 3 options: 

      
  
 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 111



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 2 
 

Rectangular Option 1 & 2:  

      
 

Multi-Sail Option 3: 

 

Options: 

 
Project 

No. 
Project Description Budget Funding Source 

1. Cover only the two main Playground Structures 51,000.00$      
2. Cover all playground structures 100,000.00$    

Recommended Budget Options:

3.Cover all playground structures 205,000.00$    
Recommended Budget Option:

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 112



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 3 
 

1 
Cover only the two main playground structures with 
a rectangular cover. $51,000 Per Capita-CA Parks 

2 
Cover all playground structures with rectangular 
covers $100,000 Per Capita-CA Parks 

3 Cover all playground structures with Multi-Sails  $205,000 Per Capita-CA Parks 
and General Fund 

 

Staff recommends Council to select Project No. 2 and allocating the remaining balance of the per Capita 
funding to the Olive Bowl-Kaku Park Renovation Project.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Per Capita Fund-CA Parks: $177,952   
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Quote Summary & Recommended Budget Calculations 
 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 113



No. Company Name Material Price Engineering Design, Installation, 
Freight, Taxes Discount Total

Quote A USA Shade & Fabric Structures Not Provided Not Provided -$  50,349.22$      

Estimate for 
Swing Set Area Size Needed: 34 ft x 24 ft.        Estimate:  $29,000

Teeter-totter Cover Size Needed: 20 ft x 15 ft.   Estimate:  $20,000

1. Cover only the two main Playground Structures 51,000.00$       
2. Cover all playground structures 100,000.00$     

Quote Summary & Recommended Budget Calculations

Recommended Budget Options:

Rectangular Option

This quote only includes the two big play grounds:
1. Large Playground:  34 ft x 40 ft = $34,848.23

2. Small Playground:  18 ft x 25 ft = $19,787.99

Quote A

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 114



No. Company Name Material Price Engineering Design, Installation, 
Freight, Taxes Discount Total

Quote B Pacific Play Systems, Inc 90,880.00$       134,105.00$                                   (21,000.00)$        203,985.00$    
8 Sails (Carlsbad, CA)

Quote C Ross Recreation Equipment 115,400.00$     98,913.50$                                     -$                    214,313.50$    
5 Sails (Santa Rosa, CA)

Quote D Ross Recreation Equipment 128,670.00$     108,541.93$                                   -$                    237,211.93$    
9 Sails (Santa Rosa, CA)

3.Cover all playground structures 205,000.00$     
Recommended Budget Option:

Multi-Sail Option

Quote B Quote C Quote D

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 115



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 
 

 
TO: Lindsay City Council 
FROM: Juana Espinoza, Finance Director 
DEPARTMENT: 
ITEM NO.: 

Finance Department 
10.2  

MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021  
 
ACTION & RECOMMENDATION 

Consider Approval of City of Lindsay Grant Funding and Compliance Policy.  
 
BACKGROUND | ANALYSIS 

Staff has been working with representatives from the California Department of Transportation and the 
California State Auditor to strengthen the City’s written policies and procedures on the management and 
compliance of awarded grant funds.  
 
The Grant Funding and Compliance Policy as presented here 1) addresses deficiencies as identified by the 
Independent Office of Audits & Investigations Incurred Cost Audit, issued July 2014 by CalTrans and 2) 
provides a framework for developing a plan for the effective use of American Rescue Plan Act funds as 
recommended by the State Auditor’s Office report 2020-804.  
 
This policy replaces Article V. Grant Tracking Procedures of the existing Finance and Accounting Policies 
and Procedures Manual and incorporates recommendations made by these two State agencies as part of 
staff’s on-going dedication to safe guard City resources and meet the requirements of our funding partners.   
 
These updates establish adequate grant management procedures to ensure compliance with federal and state 
regulations, and local guidance and provides staff with a quick, up-to-date reference source to ensure 
compliance with all State and Federal procurement guidelines. The policy also includes examples to address 
the regular review of grant requirements and compliance with the Uniform Procurement Guidance (2 CFR 
200.318-326). 
 
If approved by Council, this policy shall apply to and formalize the current practices of City Staff to 
maintain adequate records of project costs and schedules, including both estimates and actuals, and serve 
to institute internal controls to ensure that expenditure records are complete and in compliance with grant 
conditions. 
 
This policy, as written, completes corrective action #4 and #5 as identified by the Department of 
Transportation and will be presented for review to the State Auditor as part of the November 2021 
Corrective Action Plan.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 116



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Article III: Grant Funding and Compliance Policy – Proposed New Version  
• Article V: Grant Tracking Procedures – Redline Old Policy 
• Department of Transportation Approval  

 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 117



ARTICLE III: GRANT FUNDING AND COMPLIANCE POLICY 

Section 1. WHAT ARE GRANTS? 
Grants are a meaningful source of revenue funds for a variety of projects, and departmental needs, not 

always available through other revenue sources within the City Annual Budget. Grants represent one of 

the ways  the government  (Federal and  State)  fund  ideas and projects  to provide public  services and 

stimulate  the  economy.    These  grants  are  generally  provided  through  legal  contractual  and  binding 

agreements between both the Grantor and the Grantee. The following are policies and procedures that 

guides city grant application, and ensures compliance with  the grant  terms, conditions, and  reporting 

requirements. 

SECTION 2. GRANT APPLICATION 
Preparation: 
It  is helpful to have project  information readily available; since most grant applications have deadlines 
occurring 30 – 60 days  from  release of  their  guidelines.  Following  are     necessary  components  for  a 
competitive grant application.  Gathering information beforehand will help ensure success in meeting a 
tight deadline.  

 A list of approved projects 

 Project descriptions 

 Project goals and objectives 

 Project timelines 

 Estimated costs    

 Project budgets 

 Matching fund contribution 

Determining Eligibility: 
To determine a project’s eligibility for grant funding it is important to review all of the grant guidelines, 
specifications, and requirements.   

1) Department Head (Director) reviews application, assesses project eligibility, discusses with City 
Manager;  reviews  level  of  commitment,  deadlines,  matching  fund  analysis  and  compliance 
requirements.  

2) Director will assign a Project Manager to oversee the project and provide grant compliance. 
3) If  the Project Manager  (PM)  is an outside consultant;  the Director will assign a  staff member 

responsible for overseeing the PM contract and ensuring grant compliance. 

Council Approval: 
City Council approval to submit an application is required for all Grants.   A detailed staff report and a 
resolution will be brought  forth  to City Council  for Council adoption. The  staff  report will  include  the 
following information:   

 Project and grant details 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 118



 Budget summary 

 Administration requirements and funding source  

 Match requirements 

 Advance allowance  

 Compliance requirements  

 Grantee responsibilities 

 Maintenance and operations requirements 

 Long‐term costs including staffing needs after the expiration of the grant.  

In the event the application deadline does not allow the necessary  lead time for council approval; and 
prior council approval  is not a requirement of the application; the Director should ensure the approval 
of the City Manager prior to submitting the application. 

Submitting Grant Application: 
Following  Council  or  City Manager  approval  a  completed  Grant  proposal may  be  submitted  by  the 
Director overseeing the Project or Program.   The Project Manager will follow the grant guidelines, and 
requirements to submit a completed and competitive grant proposal.  

Budget Summary: 
When determining the budget for the grant application all the project expenses must be included in the 
application.  This includes: 

 Total direct cost of the project   

 Project management and oversight 

 City staff time, grant administration and audit costs 

 Expenses that arise as a result of your project 

 City share of costs where applicable    

 Operation and maintenance costs 

 Long‐term or ongoing costs 

Below  are  suggestions  to  establish  accurate  staff  time  and  administration  costs  for  the  application 
budget.  The type of rate used by the Director will depend on the Grant Guidelines and allowable costs 
outlined in the Grant document. 

 Request  a  “Cost  of  Position”  breakdown  from  the  Finance  (payroll) Department  for  either  a 
specific City employee or a position  title within  the City.   This breakdown will  include current 
regular hourly  rates as well as benefits.   The calculation will provide a “fully burdened hourly 
rate” for each employee.     

 Request  the Regular hourly  rate  from  the Payroll Department  for a  specific City employee or 
position title; without the benefits. 

 Request an Overtime rate from the Payroll Department for a specific City employee or position 
tile, for those grants allowing Overtime charges. 

Employee rates provided by Finance ‐ payroll should be current and remain in effect until such changes 
are  submitted  through  a  “change  of  status”  to  Human  Resources,  or  a  change  to  the  employee 
Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU) within the city.   As changes occur to an employee pay status; 
the Department must request updated rates from payroll when charging staff time to grants.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 119



SECTION 3. GRANT ACCEPTANCE 
Notification: 
Upon Grant approval the Director will receive a grant award letter from the funding agency detailing the 
measures necessary to accept the award.   The City should also receive a finalized grant contract which 
will become a binding agreement upon acceptance.   The grant contract and all compliance measures 
will be reviewed by the Project Manager, and the Director.   

 

Approval Process: 
1) The Project Manager will  review  the grant  contract  to ensure ability  to maintain  compliance, 

review  the  grant  for  deliverables  such  as  periodic  reporting,  and will  provide  oversight  and 
recommendations to the Director and staff.  

2) The Director will ensure the department’s capability to comply with the contract by signing the 
award letter and making the appropriate recommendation to City Manager and City Council.  

3) The  Director  will  submit  and/or  review  the  grant  contract  and  financial  requirements  with 
Finance and the City Manager to determine long term implications and compliances.   

Depending on the nature of the contract; the City Manager may also forward the contract to the City 
Attorney for review prior to City Council approval. 

Council Approval: 
The final step  in the approval process  is taking the awarded grant contract and funding acceptance, to 
the City Council for approval.   

 Details of the grant contract and all compliance required should be included in the staff report.   

 The staff report and resolution must specify the acceptance of the grant award, as well as the 
details necessary to load the grant funding into the City’s Budget.   

 All documentation  including  the original grant  contract must be  submitted  to  the City Clerk’s 
office to obtain the Mayors signature. 

 Anticipated grant  revenues, along with associated expenditures/expenses must be outlined  in 
the council resolution. 

 The City Council must approve and sign the Resolution and the proper authority as required  in 
the grant contract must sign the Grant Award. 

 Send a copy of  the approved and signed Council Resolution  to  the Finance Director  to ensure 
the funds are appropriated into the budget. 

Execution of Award: 
The Grant Contract is fully executed and the funds can be spent when the following steps are complete: 

 Granting  Agency  signs  the  grant  contract  and  specifies  the  dates  of  the  “term  of  the 
agreement”. 

 City’s Authorized Signor signs the grant contract. 

 Grant Contract has been approved through Council Resolution. 

 Grant revenues and expenses have been  loaded  into the appropriate account within the City’s 
Budget.  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 120



Grant funding CANNOT be spent before proper approvals and a grant award notification  is received 
from the Granting Agency.  

Authorized Signatory Responsibility/ Grant Fraud: 
All  Grant  applications  require  an  Authorized  Signor  on  behalf  of  the  City.    Dependent  upon  grant 
requirements,  the  Authorized  Signor  is  usually  the  Mayor,  City  Manager,  or  the  Director.    Upon 
signature, the Authorized Signor is binding the City to all terms and conditions of the grant regardless of 
whether the City is the main beneficiary of the funding, the City has applied on behalf of another agency 
for pass through funding, or the city has hired an outside agency to oversee and manage the project. 

The  City  “shall  at  all  times  exercise  responsibility  over  the  implementation  of  the  project.”  All 
departments  involved,  as well  as  the Authorized  Signor, must  fully understand  the  conditions of  the 
grant agreement and follow the required compliance measures put  into place. This will further ensure 
the integrity of the City’s commitment to the Grantor, help maintain audit compliance, and avoid grant 
fraud speculation. 

Non‐compliance can result in loss of final retention reimbursement, terminating the grant agreement, 
repayment of funds, suspension, or debarment from receiving future grants, and/or  implementation 
of grant special conditions.   

SECTION 4: GRANT COMPLIANCE  
Getting started:   
The  Granting  Agency  typically  sends  the  Director  the  original,  signed,  and  fully  executed,  Grant 
Agreement.  The Director will forward the original copy to the City Clerk and copies to project staff and 
Finance  Department.    A  copy will  also  be  kept with  the  department  in  a  centralized  file  for  future 
reference.    The  Project  Manager  will  create  a  spreadsheet  and  file  to  begin  proper  tracking  and 
monitoring of the new grant.  
 
To maintain grant compliance and essential accounting procedures:  

 Grant expenditures must be expensed as detailed in the grant application, grant contract and as 
approved in the City Annual Budget.   

 Review  the Grant Agreement  for  terms  and  conditions  before  initiating  a  contract,  purchase 
order, agreement with a service provider, professional services agreement, or other expense  

 Many Grant  Agreements  have  “Conditions  Precedent  to  Commencement  of  Project”:  ensure 
these conditions are met.  

 Continue  to  comply with  City  policy  and  procedures;  as well  as  those  in  the  grant  contract, 
including submitting deliverables by deadlines.  

 Staff and/or contractors, consultants or service providers utilizing grant funding must disclose all 
relevant conflict of  interest or criminal violations  in writing to the appropriate granting agency 
and follow the guidelines as outlined in the City Council adopted Resolution 20‐21 

 Before  entering  into  agreements  with  vendors  or  contractors,  verify  that  the  provider  or 
business has a valid City Business License.  

 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 121



NOTE:    ALL  Federal  Awards,  Cooperative  Agreements,  or  State  Awards  utilizing  Federal  Funds must 
follow  the  Office  of  Management  and  Budget  (OMB)  Uniform  Administrative  Requirements,  Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements  for  Federal Awards  (2 CFR Chapter 1, Chapter 2, Part 200). These 
guidelines  can  be  found  at  https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi‐bin/text‐
idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl. 

If the conditions of the Grant Contract are not met; the Grantor is under no obligation to disburse 
funds for reimbursement. 

Procurement: 
The purchase of goods, materials, supplies, equipment, services, and non‐public contracts must follow 

the City Procurement Policies and Procedures as well as City Ordinance approved by City Council.  Public 

Contracts  and  Public  Projects  must  adhere  to  Article  III.  Public  Contracts  and  the  Uniform  Public 

Construction Cost Accounting Act.   

NOTE:    ALL  Federal  Awards,  Cooperative  Agreements,  or  State  Awards  utilizing  Federal  Funds must  also  

follow  the  General  Procurement  Standards  in  the  Code  of  Federal  Regulations  (CFR);  Title  2:  Grants  and 

Agreements section §200.318 through §200.326. These guidelines can be found at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi‐

bin/text‐idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl;  in  addition  expenditures  utilizing  funds  through 

Caltrans must follow the Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM, particularly Chapters 5 and 16.  These 

guidelines  can  be  found  at  https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local‐assistance/guidelines‐and‐procedures/local‐

assistance‐procedures‐manual‐lapm.    Feel  free  to  contact  Grants  Management  Analyst  for  additional 

information (ext. 7410).  

 

ALL  Federal  Awards  used  to  procure  vendors  providing  services  to  the  city  in  excess  of  $25,000.00 must 

maintain  evidence  of  vendor  “Suspension  and  Debarment”  verification  through  the  “Systems  for  Awards 

Management (SAM).  Print out copy of verification and submit it to Finance or contact Grant Mngt. Analyst to 

obtain a copy.  This requirement must also be included in your Contract, Professional Services Agreement, or 

PO.  (Refer to Purchasing Policy for boiler plate “Suspension and Debarment” language) 

 

Monitoring the Budget: 
Funds must be spent in the manner approved by the Granting Agency and City Council.   

The Project Manager overseeing the grant funded project is responsible for: 

 Monitoring the project budget 

 Monitoring the City staff time budget  

 Monitoring sub‐contractors, sub‐recipients, service providers 

 Monitoring budgets for contractors, consultants, and professional service agreements 

 Reviewing invoices for payment; specifying appropriate account numbers. 

 Timely submittal of invoices for payment ensuring adequate cash management 

 
 
 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 122



The Project Manager will work with the Finance Department to:  

 Monitor expenses and project budgets. 

 Monitor cash flow and accounts receivables. 

 Prepare and/or review grant payment requests 

 Prepare and/or review Staff time, administrative time, and activity delivery 

 Track the expenses and revenues via grant spreadsheet in accordance with Grant Contract. 

 Provide direct communication with granting agencies and city departments. 

Adjustment  between  budgeted  line  items  to  the  approved  grant  budget; must  be  approved  by  the 
Granting Agency  in the manner stated  in the Grant Agreement.   The Director will provide the Granting 
Agency approval and request a budget adjustment via e‐mail to the Finance Department.   

Adding additional budget to an approved grant via a Grant Amendment must follow the procedures on 
page 6 and request council approval and a resolution accepting the funding and loading the budget.  

Cash Management: 
 Invoices  and  receipts  must  be  paid  and  a  check  cut  to  the  vendor  prior  to  requesting 

reimbursement; therefore timely submittal of invoices is encouraged.  

 All work performed and items purchased within a fiscal year; must be paid within the fiscal year 
the work was performed.  This is an audit requirement and must be adhered to.  

 Provide a brief  justification on  the pay  request  for  invoices submitted  for payment 45 days or 
more beyond the date of the invoice; this will help provide information to auditor, or Grantor.  

 When  submitting  grant  funded  large  invoices  (over  $250,000)  for  payment,  notify  Accounts 
Payable  in Finance Department  in an effort to manage bank balance cash flow and to expedite 
grant reimbursement.  

Internal Controls: 
  Project/ 

Program 
Manager 

Director   Finance   Acct. 
Payable 

Revenue 
Acct Rec 

 

City 
Manager  

City 
Council 

Applies for Grant  X  X  X         

Accepts budget /Signs 
Award 

  X        X  X  

Manages project/program/ 
contractors/vendors 

X             

Manages Grant & Audit 
Compliance 

    X         

Procurement/RFP, BID, PO, 
PSA 

X             

Approves Contracts, PSA, PO 
etc… 

  $7k – 20K        $20‐$50K   Over $50K 

Review invoices‐prepare for 
payment 

X reviews   X approves 
payment 
under $20k 

      X over 
$20K 

X over 
$50K 

Pay invoices/review 
Procurement procedures 

      X       

Issues checks          X       

Review/Monitor  X    X         

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 123



Budget/Actual 

Prepare Reimbursements, 
financial & closeout reports 

    X         

Approve Reimbursement, 
financial & closeout reports 

  X           

Creates  Accounts 
Receivable 

    X         

Receives/Deposits Payment          X     

Enters AR payment /Bank 
Reconciliation 

    X    X     

Reconciles grant budget/ 
balance 

    X         

 
DRAWING DOWN FUNDS:  

ADVANCES 
The Project Manager will review the grant contract for specifics. In the event that the Grant Agreement 
allows agencies to request an Advance of funds and if it is determined to be in the best interest of the 
City;  

1) The City will request an Advance to minimize fiscal impact on the General Fund.   
2) Accounting will track the interest on advanced funds.  
3) Interest gets reported back to the Grantor.   
4) The Grantor makes the determination whether the  interest should go back  into the project or 

returned to the Funder.  
5) Expenditures against advanced funds will be reported to the Grantor at least bi‐annually by the 

Finance Department.  
6) If the Grantee is not utilizing the advanced funding, or has a balance of advanced funding at the 

end of project; the funds must be returned to the Grantee.  

 

REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTS 
Many Granting Agencies  require  grant  reimbursements  be  submitted  in  arrears.    The  City must  first 
expend the funds; pay the invoice and request reimbursement after payment has been finalized.  Grant 
reimbursements will be requested in the manner set forth in the grant agreement.   

1) Project  Manager  will  work  with  Finance  staff  to  prepare  the  reimbursement  request  or 
reviewing the request before submitting to the Granting Agency.  

2) Invoices must be paid and distributed in the General Ledger prior to reimbursement requests.  
3) Once the billing is complete, it will be reviewed by the Project Manager, Department Director or 

Authorized Signor as designated in the Grant Agreement for signature.  
4) This  review  enables  an  examination  of  expenditures,  proper  account  numbers,  staff  time 

accuracy, activity delivery accuracy, and accounts receivable entry. 
5) After the billing is signed, it gets mailed or submitted electronically.   
6) The revenue is then tracked by the Project Manager and Finance to ensure receipt.  

 

 

 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 124



Expenditures: 
When an invoice is received for a grant funded project; it must be thoroughly reviewed to ensure prices 

are correct, work  is complete, specifications have been met, and all back‐up documentation has been 

submitted to support the cost of the invoice.   

To assure the invoice gets reimbursed against the proper grant; the Project Manager should:            

 Determine available budget within vendor contract as well as City financial system.  

 Specify the grant name, agency, and grant number on the pay request or invoice.  

 Specify whether  the  invoice  is  100%  reimbursable  or what  portion  is  reimbursable  through 
which revenue sources. 

 Specify the amount when splitting an invoice between multiple grants or revenue sources.  

 Be specific when paying an invoice between multiple account numbers.  

 Make a notation of the account number, name and grant number on the receipt of an expense 
being paid with a City Credit Card or petty cash.  

 Make a copy of your reimbursable invoice or receipt to send to the Grants Management Analyst 
or scan an electronic copy to put into an electronic grant folder to be accessed by Finance.   

 

All  expenses  charged  to  projects  considered  to  be  100%  grant  reimbursable  should  be  allowable 

expenses  as  stated  in  the  Grant  Agreement  or  other  written  agreement.    For  expenses  that  are 

questionable, consult with your assigned Grants Manager, prior to making the purchase. 

 If an expense it is not reimbursable; the Granting Agency will not pay for the cost of the purchase. The 

Department will be required to find another source of funds to pay for the purchase or service. 

Retention: 
Some grants will hold retention; normally in the amount of 10% from billing requests, or from the final 

payment until the end of the project.   It  is  important to understand the retention when  looking at the 

budgets.  The City expends 100% but receives 90% in revenue.  At the completion of the grant project, 

or the expiration of the grant; the City is required to: 

 Submit all final documents and closeout reports and deliverables 

 Submit a final billing 

 Submit a retention release request in accordance with the grant agreement.  
 

Upon review, when the Grantor feels all conditions have been met, they will pay the final billing, release 

the retention, and close out the grant.   

If there are outstanding deliverables, incomplete submittals; or non‐compliant actions; it is within the 

Grantee’s discretion to keep the retention and the City loses that portion of expected revenue.   

Staff Time / Overtime Expenses / Activity Delivery: 
The Grant  Contract  should  specify what  type  of  staff  time  /  administration  expenses  it  allows.    The 

Project Manager will  determine what works  best  for  the  Department  in  accordance with  the  grant 

agreement and grant approved budget. 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 125



1) Current  applicable  rates  should  have  been  obtained  from  the  Finance  Department  during 
submittal of the grant application; verify with Finance to ensure rates are still the same before 
charging to the grant.  

2) The rates were either approved through the grant application process, or sent to the Grantor for 
approval prior to charging time to the grants.  

3) Rates will remain the same for the duration of a grant; unless there has been a change to the 
employee’s  rate  through  either  a  “change  of  status”,  COLA  increase,  or  a  change  to  the 
employee MOU. 

4) Department should contact Finance ‐ payroll for an updated rate when such changes occur; and 
provide documentation of such change to the Project Manager for the Grant file.  

 

When charging staff time to a grant:  

 Accurately track the time spent on grant projects on a grant timesheet 

 Track the amount of time spent; detail what type of work was performed   

 Grant timesheets should concur with regular city payroll timesheets.   

 When  charging  overtime  to  a  grant; make  sure  the  amount  of  time  charged  to  the  grant; 
matches the overtime in payroll in that same pay period.   

 When charging to multiple grants for the same project be concise in the   description of work for 
each individual grant. 

 Only account for the time actually spent on the grant.  

 Each employee should review the timesheets, and sign them for accuracy 

 A  thorough  review  is  required  to ensure accuracy of what  is  reported  to  the Grantor.   Grant 
timesheets, City  timesheets, payroll  records, and current hourly  rates should match and be  in 
accordance with the allowances in the Grant Agreement.  

 End  of  each  pay  period;  copy  or  scan  timesheets  to  be  used  to  calculate  the  staff  time 
reimbursement and submitted as back up documentation for the Grant.   

 

Reporting Requirements 
There are numerous reporting requirements associated with the Grant Contracts.   These requirements 

should  be  reviewed  thoroughly  by  the  Director,  Project  Manager,  and  Finance  to  delegate  the 

responsibilities  within  the  contract  to  ensure  grant  compliance.  The most  common  reports  are  as 

follows: 

 
Reports Required for Submittal 
 

Prepared and Submitted 
by Finance Department 

Prepared and Submitted by 
Project Manager 

Request for Advance‐ where applicable 
 
 

X 

Progress against Advance/ interest 
tracking‐where applicable 

X  X 

Reimbursement Requests‐ as noted in 
Contract 

  X 

Financial Status Reports‐ quarterly or bi‐
annual 

X  X 

Project/ Program Progress Reports‐ 
quarterly or bi‐annual 

X  X 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 126



Monitoring Reports – as required per 
contract 

  X 

Program Income Reporting‐ as required 
per contract 

  X 

Verification Reporting/  Labor Compliance 
Reporting 

  X 

Annual Program/Progress Reports    X 

Budget Adjustments/ Modifications  X   

Change of Scope/ Project adjustments    X 

Final Disbursement 
 

X   

Retention Release 
 

X   

Final Reports and Deliverables‐ end of 
project, prior to expiration 

  X 

 

It is the City’s responsibility to submit all reports on time and in accordance with the grant agreement; 

regardless  if  the  City  is managing  the  grant  or  not.    The  Grantor will  not  pay  the  reimbursement 

requests if a report has not been submitted.  

Department Oversight: 
To  coincide with  the Grant Policy  and Procedures; Director(s)  are  responsible  to  instill departmental 

procedures  for  review  and oversight  of  grant  compliance,  reporting,  signature  authority  and  general 

checks and balances within the department.   

NonCompliance:  
If  the  City  fails  to  comply with  Federal/State  statutes,  regulations  or  the  terms  and  conditions  of  a 

Federal  award,  the  Federal  awarding  agency  or  pass‐through  entity  (State) may  impose  additional 

conditions,  as  described  in  §200.207  Specific  conditions.    If  noncompliance  cannot  be  remedied  by 

imposing additional conditions, the following actions may be imposed: 

1) Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of  the deficiency by the City or more 
severe enforcement action by the Federal awarding agency or pass‐through entity.   

2) Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part of the 
cost of the activity or action not in compliance. 

3) Wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Award. 
4) Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR part 180 and Federal 

awarding  agency  regulations  (or  in  the  case  of  a  pass‐through  entity,  recommend  such  a 
proceeding be initiated by a Federal awarding agency). 

5) Withhold further Federal awards for the project or program. 
6) Take other remedies that may be legally available. 

 

Records Retention and Audits: 
The Single Audit, also known as the 2 CFR 200.501 requirement, is a rigorous, organization‐wide audit or 

examination of an entity that expends $750,000 or more of combined Federal assistance, Federal grants, 

or Federal awards, received for its operations. Usually performed annually, the Single Audit’s objective is 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 127



to provide assurance to the U.S. Federal Government as to the management and use of such funds by 

recipients.  The  audit  is  typically performed by  an  independent  certified public  accountant  (CPA)  and 

encompasses both  financial and  compliance  components. The Single Audit must be  submitted  to  the 

Federal Audit Clearinghouse, the State Controllers Office, as well as any other agency that requests  it.  

At this point it is public information and can be used as an evaluation tool for future lenders or granting 

agencies.    

The  City  is  subject  to  a  Single Audit  annually.    The  number  of  grants  chosen  to  audit  is  based  on  a 

number of factors: 

 How much was expended from a federal agency 

 How much was spent on a specific grant 

 Audit details, findings from previous years 

 Third‐party references, and operations evaluation.   
 

In general, the auditors will choose between 2 – 4 different grants to test.  The audit can take up to two 

weeks to accomplish and is performed at a charge to the City.   

The  audit will  review Grant  finances, City  compliance with  grant  requirements,  and City Policies  and 

Procedures  for  grant  operations.  While  an  audit  is  being  performed,  all  City  information  and 

documentation will be made available to the auditing firm. Such documents include, but are not limited 

to:    

 Procurement Procedures 

 Payroll Records  

 Finance Records 

 Human Resources Records 

 City Clerk Records 

 Departmental Records from any Departments overseeing the grant.  
 

In  addition  to  being  subject  to  the  Single  Audit,  Grants  can  be  audited  by  the  Granting  Agency  or 

Funding Agency at any  time. Grants can be audited more  than once, and may be audited beyond  the 

grant expiration date.  

Best  efforts  will  be  made  to  save  all  grant  documentation,  information,  and  correspondence  in  a 

centralized department grant file.   

 All Staff will be responsible for keeping grant related e‐mail correspondence in separate a folder 
in their Microsoft Outlook to prevent deletion and/or scan all documents in a central folder.   

 The “Transmittal Form” (Exhibit “A”) shall be utilized when corresponding with Grantees.  
 

The Department should have readily available in one location: 

 Grant application 

 Grant contract 

 Bid documents including newspaper and other advertisements 

 Contractor, consultant, and service provider contracts 

 Contract amendments 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 128



 Permits, licenses 

 Progress reports, monitoring reports, final reports 

 Labor compliance information and interviews 

 Loan or program income information  

 Product delivery, activity delivery 

 Pertinent correspondence with Grantor 

 Pertinent correspondence with vendors or service providers 

 Other documentation necessary in accordance with grant contract   
 

 The Finance Department will maintain a file to include: 

 Grant contract and amendments 

 Grant tracking spreadsheet 

 GL transactions, budget/actual 

 Reimbursement requests with all invoicing and staff time back up 

 Received check copies or electronic deposit documentation 

 Financial status reports 

 Matching fund documentation 

 Retention information 

 Grant correspondence documentation 

 Other pertinent financial information 
 

All grant files must be kept  in the City’s possession for the  length of time noted  in the grant contract, 

“Grant Hold Requirement”.  

The minimum retention period for general ledger, revenue/expense reports, and all supporting posting 

records and histories related to the grant award is detailed in the grant hold requirement, or seven (7) 

years, whichever is greater.  

It is important to retain all Grant Records even after the grant is audited, up to the minimum of the hold 

requirement or seven (7) years, whichever is greater.  

Complete and proper documentation is instrumental to a smooth and successful audit; which reflects 

positively on the City, and in turn increases the chance for successful grant applications.   

   

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 129



ARTICLE V. GRANT TRACKING PROCEDURES 
Grant funding source activity is managed by the Director of Finance and is tracked in the following 
manner: A copy of the signed grant is filed with the Finance Department. A grant tracking spreadsheet 
shall be developed and maintained by the department that wrote the grant and is the primary 
beneficiary (i.e. FTHB grant awards shall be tracked and maintained by the Housing Department; SRTS, 
Measure R Transportation Projects, etc. shall be tracked and maintained by City Services as the work is 
performed) and all financial data shall be routed through the Director of Finance for review and 
approval to ensure secondary oversight for compliance with grant requirements. The spreadsheet 
reports information on all funding sources including: original dollar amount of the grant, beginning and 
ending dates, extensions of terms and amounts, if any, draw downs, and available balances. The grant 
tacking spreadsheet is updated continually and is periodically reviewed by the Director of Finance to 
ensure compliance with the grant award agreement. (See Article VI. Procurement Policy.) 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 130



RE: City of Lindsay Corrective Action Close-Out Tracker

Burke, Daniel G@DOT <daniel.burke@dot.ca.gov>
Thu 4/22/2021 9:53 AM
To:  Juana Espinoza <jespinoza@lindsay.ca.us>
Cc:  Kingsley Okereke <kokereke@lindsay.ca.us>; Sandy Perez <sperez@lindsay.ca.us>; Hom, Julie@DOT
<Julie.Hom@dot.ca.gov>

Good morning Juana,
 
I have reviewed the procedures and they satisfy corrective action item for
Finding 3 once signed.  Further, the procedures also have good examples
to address reviewing grant requirements and compliance with the Uniform
Procurement Guidance (2 CFR 200.318-326).  Please let me know when the
procedures are finalized and signed so we may note this action has been
resolved. 
 
Thanks,
 
Daniel
 
From: Juana Espinoza <jespinoza@lindsay.ca.us>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 21, 2021 12:07 PM 
To: Burke, Daniel G@DOT <daniel.burke@dot.ca.gov> 
Cc: Kingsley Okereke <kokereke@lindsay.ca.us>; Sandy Perez <sperez@lindsay.ca.us>; Hom, Julie@DOT
<Julie.Hom@dot.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: City of Lindsay Correc�ve Ac�on Close-Out Tracker
 
EXTERNAL EMAIL. Links/a�achments may not be safe.
Hi Daniel, 
 
We have worked through the policy template provided. 
 
Can you please review and affirm that the updated document fulfills Item #5? 
 
Thank you, 
 

Juana Espinoza

Finance and Accounting Manager

City of Lindsay

559.562.7102 x 8025

 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 131



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Page 1 
 

 
TO: Lindsay City Council 
FROM: Edward Real, Assistant City Planner 
DEPARTMENT: City Services, Planning  
ITEM NO.: 11.1 
MEETING DATE: September 14, 2021 
 
ACTION & RECOMMENDATION 

First Reading of Ordinance No. 591, Amending Chapter 8.22.010 of Title 8 of the Lindsay Municipal 
Code, Amending Procedures and Chapter 8.22.020 of Title 8 of the Lindsay Municipal Code, Amending 
Permit Issuance. 
 
BACKGROUND | ANALYSIS 

In 1998, City Council adopted Ordinance No. 490 which provided regulations for the sale of safe and 
sane fireworks. Given the conditions of Ordinance No. 490, the sale of fireworks was permitted in the 
City through TUPs considered and approved by City Council on an individual basis. 
 
Ordinance No. 591 is a request by city staff to amend the Lindsay Municipal Code to allow for firework 
sale TUPs to be administratively approved by the City Manager, or their designee, each year during the 
Independence Day holiday period (late June to July 4th). The changes contained in Ordinance No. 591 
would streamline the approval process for firework sale TUPs, reduce staff time dedicated to preparing 
City Council reports, and allow City Services and Planning staff to make more efficient use of their time. 
This change would also ensure that City Council’s time during Council meetings is dedicated to 
consideration and discussion of high-priority city business rather than routine administrative items. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance will provide a fiscal benefit to the City through reduced staff time spent on 
firework TUP applications, staff reports, and presentations. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Ordinance 591 – Redline Copy 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 132



ORDINANCE NO. 591 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY 

AMENDING CHAPTER 8.22.010 OF TITLE 8 OF THE LINDSAY MUNICIPAL CODE, 
AMENDING PROCEDURES; 

AMENDING CHAPTER 8.22.020 OF TITLE 8 OF THE LINDSAY MUNICIPAL CODE, 
AMENDING PERMIT ISSUANCE 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  PURPOSE.  The City Clerk, in keeping with the duties assigned by City Council, has 
revised the provisions surrounding Title 8 of the Lindsay Municipal Code. 

Section 2.  CODE AMENDMENT. Lindsay Municipal Code, Title 8 is hereby amended to read 
as follows (text to be added in red, text to be deleted is in strikeout): 
 

8.22.010 Procedures 

The director of public safety, or his their designee, may, upon due application and approval of the 
city council City Manager or their designee, issue to properly qualified persons and organizations 
a permit for the retail sale of safe and sane fireworks. Applicants must be community-benefit, 
nonprofit associations or nonprofit corporations organized primarily for veteran, patriotic, welfare, 
religious, youth or eleemosynary purposes. Each such organization must have its principal and 
permanent meeting place within the corporate boundaries of the city of Lindsay. There shall be no 
more than one retail stand/booth for each permittee. 

8.22.020 Permit Issuance 

Upon verification of the application by the director of public safety or his their designee, the city 
council City Manager or their designee may authorize a permit to be issued. Such permit shall be 
issued or denied at the discretion of the  city council City Manager or their designee and subject 
to such other reasonable conditions as the  city council City manager or their designee deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare. Permits shall be issued only to persons 
who are twenty-one years of age or older at the time of application. 

All other code sections in Chapter 22 of Title 8 of the Lindsay Municipal Code shall remain 
unchanged. 

Section 4. CEQA REVIEW. The City Council hereby finds that this ordinance is not subject to 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15060(c)(2) [the activity will not result in direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
changes in the environment]. 
 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 133



Section 5. NO LIABILITY. The provisions of this ordinance shall not in any way be construed 
as imposing any duty of care, liability or responsibility for damage to person or property upon the 
City of Lindsay, or any official, employee or agent thereof. 
 
Section 6. PENDING ACTIONS. Nothing in this ordinance or in the codes hereby adopted shall 
be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending or impending in any court, or any rights 
acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act 
or ordinance or code repealed by this ordinance, nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any 
character be lost, impaired or affected by this ordinance. 
 
Section 7. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause 
or phrase of this ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, is for any reason held 
to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remaining sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses 
or phrases of this ordinance, or its application to any other person or circumstance. The City 
Council of the City of Lindsay hereby declares that it would have adopted each section, subsection, 
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more other sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases hereof be 
declared invalid or unenforceable. 
 
Section 8. CONSTRUCTION. The City Council intends this ordinance to supplement, not to 
duplicate or contradict, applicable state and federal law and this ordinance shall be construed in 
light of that intent. To the extent the provisions of the Lindsay Municipal Code as amended by this 
ordinance are substantially the same as provisions in the Lindsay Municipal Code existing prior to 
the effectiveness of this ordinance, then those amended provisions shall be construed as 
continuations of the earlier provisions and not as new enactments. 
 
Section 9. EFFECTIVE DATE. The foregoing ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from 
the date of the passage hereof. Prior to the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the enactment hereof 
a certified copy of this ordinance shall be posted in the office of the City Clerk pursuant to 
Government Code section 36933(c)(l) and a summary shall be published once in the Porterville 
Recorder, a newspaper printed and published in the City of Porterville, State of California, together 
with the names of the Council members voting for and against the same. 
 
  

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 134



THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE, read by title only with waiving of the reading in full, was 
introduced at a regularly scheduled meeting on the __th day of ________________ 2021. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 
__th day of ________________ 2021. 
 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LINDSAY 

________________________________________ 
Ramona Caudillo, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Mayra Espinoza-Martinez, City Clerk 

 

September 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting of the Lindsay City Council 
Page 135


	ITEM 1.00 September 14 2021 Agenda 9.9.21
	ITEM 9.1 August 10 2021 Minutes
	ITEM 9.2 WARRANT LIST 07.23.21-09.07.21
	ITEM 9.3 TREASURER'S REPORT - JULY 2021
	ITEM 9.4 TREASURER'S REPORT - AUGUST 2021
	ITEM 9.5 Constitution Week Proclamation
	ITEM 9.6 Hispanic Heritage Month
	ITEM 9.7 Measure R Citizens Oversight Committee Re-Appointmetn
	ITEM 9.8 REAP MOU staff report
	ITEM 9.8a Resolution 21-40 REAP
	ITEM 9.8b REAP Agreement - City Version (1)
	(b)  Notice personally delivered is effective when delivered. Notice sent by facsimile transmission is deemed to be received upon successful transmission. Notice sent by first class mail will be deemed received on the fifth calendar day after the dat...
	6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: The Parties enter into this Agreement with the express understanding that CONTRACTOR will perform all services required under this Agreement as an independent contractor. The Parties agree that CONTRACTOR and any of i...
	Exhibit B 12-15-20 SIGNED REAP COG MOU[1].pdf
	12-15-20 SIGNED REAP COG MOU
	19-REAP-14029_Executed Agreement
	19-REAP-14029 Revised Pending.pdf
	ExhibitA_Fresno_082020
	ExhibitB_Fresno_082020
	ExhibitD_Fresno_082020



	Exhibit C REGIONAL PLANNING AGNECY GUIDANCE May 6, 2021.pdf
	REAP MPO FUNDING_revised 042621
	REAP Budget


	ITEM 10.1 Per Capita Centennial Park Playground
	ITEM 10.1a Quote Summary & Recommended Budget
	Sheet1

	ITEM 10.2 Staff Memo - Grant Management and Compliance Policy
	ITEM 10.2a Article III Grant Funding and Compliance Policy
	ITEM 10.2b Article V. Grant Tracking Procedures - REDLINED
	ITEM 10.2c Approval from DOT for COL Grant Funding and Compliance Policy
	ITEM 11.1 Staff Report - Firework TUP Amendment
	ITEM 11.1a Ordinance 591 Updated Ordinance - Firework TUP Redline Copy

	____________________: 
	CONTRACTOR: 
	Atn 1: 
	Atn 2: 
	Atn 3: 
	Atn 4: 
	CONTRACTOR has indicated it will utilize subcontractors: Off
	Date: 
	Date_2: 
	By: 
	By_2: 
	CITY OF: 
	ATTEST: 
	By_4: 
	By_5: 
	By_3: 


